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Minmetals Land Limited is a subsidiary and the Hong Kong-listed
real estate flagship of China Minmetals Corporation. It principally
engages in real estate development and specialised construction
businesses. Currently, its real estate development business covers
the Pan Bohai Rim, Yangtze River Delta, Central China, Pearl River
Delta and Hong Kong regions; while the specialised construction
business that based in Shanghai and Hong Kong has coverage over
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Financial Highlights
NI HRE

REVENUE
A

(HK$'000) (F&7T)

2017

2016

For the year ended
31 December
2015
BET-A=+—8
S 2014

2013

5,983,634

5,905,854

11,576,345

|
7,253,266

TOTAL ASSETS
¥ E R

(HK$'000) (T3 7T)

2017

2016
As at 31 December

49,018,381

40,862,081

| |
39,621,377
|

33,175,633

|
99,408,872

R+=—A=+—~H 2015
2014
2013

PROFIT FOR

THE YEAR 2017

A JE i A

(HK$'000) (F 3 71) 2016

For the year ended 2015
31 December
HE+Z-A=+—8
IEFE

2014

2013

619,607
435,929

575,796

1,448,801

997,179
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NAV PER SHARE
Ty ik B E 2017

(HK$) (78 7t)
2016
As at 31 December

m+=—A=+—8 2015
2014

2013

BASIC EARNINGS

PER SHARE 2017
(534

H R £ A 2016

HK ) (B
( cents) (F&1l) 9015

For the year ended
31 December 2014

RET=A=+—§
e 2013

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

Percentage
2017 2016 change (%)
—F—tF ZTZ—RF BOLEE(%)
Revenue (HKS$ million) BN (EEET) 11,936 11,576 +3.11%
Profit attributable to the equity holders KRB RER A AR 2 % F
of the Company (HK$ million) (B85 713 512 +39.26%
Basic earnings per share for profit attributable to RARBRERE AEMEEF 2
equity holders of the Company (HK cents) EARGREF GBI 21.32 15.31 +39.26%
Dividend per share (HK cents) FRAR S (D 6.0 4.0 +50%
Dividend payout (%) % B3 A 2 (%) 28.14% 26.13% +2.01%*
Total assets (HK$ million) BESE(EHEET) 49,018 40,862 +19.96%
Net debt (HK$ million) HEFEEEET) 8,493 5,941 +42.96%
Net gearing ratio (%)* B & & (%) 62.43% 69.48% ~7.05%*
* Change in percentage points * RENHNEE
* Net gearing ratio = (Total borrowings — Cash and bank deposits)/Total equity fORBELEE = (ERAE - R RBITER), T eE
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K Honours and Awards
IR EHEIE

[= N

REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT B b 5%

Minmetals Land Limited o W M E A R A ]

“Top 100 Commercial Property Companies of China 2017 [20174F & # B & 3 3 S TOP 100£%
“Top 100 Real Estate Companies of China 2017" . [20174F /1 Bl [ 3 2 & #1100£% |
[20174F o B 55 1 2 8 72 B (B 5 2 L5

"Excellent Real Estate Management and Team of China 2017”

. “Influential China Real Estate Enterprises 2017" . (2017 B F R B N EE R
. “China Real Estate Brand Enterprises” . [ B F5 i 2 i b 1 3 82
SPECIALISED CONSTRUCTION HERE
Condo Shanghai 5 fn L i
. “The First National Fine Building Coating Construction” . (HEXEEmEERETE]
. “National Quality Construction” (Nanning Wuxu International e [EREEITRE]
Airport Project) (BERITBEEESITRR)
. “China Construction Engineering Luban Award” (Minmetals e [FEERTREEIE]
Wan Jing Caizhizhongxin) (WEESTEFRL)
China Minmetals Tower RN N
. “Quadruple Star Managed Property” . [0 2 A% 18 ) % 82
Huizhou Minmetals Grace Home O o B
. "6S Management Creative Award” . [6SE IE 8l % ]
. “Taste Alliance Services Award” . [ B2 0K o mn AR AR 75 22 )

. “Regional Development Contribution Award” (Golden Key o MMEERERE(S WA RER)
International Alliance)

Nanjing Riviera Royale T A T - AL 4 9

. “Advance Property Management Award"” . [P E IR B HE

. “Jiangsu Province Property Management Demonstration e MIHEAERTHMEEIRE]
Project”
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I Five-Year Financial Summary

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Results E3
Revenue KA 11,935,505 11,576,345 7,253,266 5,983,634 5,905,854
Operating profit R 3,530,528 1,823,934 1,051,661 691,224 1,014,809
Finance income IR ON 147,039 241,362 162,809 78,858 62,404
Finance costs B IS B AR (114,674) (55,669) (57,511) (65,845) (107,213)
Share of results of associates DG N R EE (2,495) (12,135) 16,442 183,936 55,262
Share of results of joint ventures D 1EAERAFIEE (2,610) — — — —
Profit before tax B 75 A g A 3,557,788 1,997,492 1,173,401 888,173 1,025,262
Income tax expense FTiE Rk 32 (2,108,987)  (1,000,313) (553,794) (452,244) (449,466)
Profit for the year AN 5 1,448,801 997,179 619,607 435,929 575,796
Profit attributable to: mA BN
Equity holders of /NGl g
the Company BEA 712,914 512,058 278,156 425,171 476,832
Holders of perpetual KABARTE
capital instruments BEA 1,303 — — — —
Non-controlling interests FEIERR IR R = 734,584 485,121 341,451 10,758 98,964
Assets and liabilities BERER
Non-current assets FERBEE 5,287,308 4,156,994 4,096,367 3,705,549 3,050,867
Current assets mBEE 43,731,073 36,705,087 35,525,010 29,470,084 26,358,005
Total assets EEHE 49,018,381 40,862,081 39,621,377 33,175,633 29,408,872
Capital and reserves attributable ~ AR FIREREAF A
to equity holders of the itz EAR R
Company [ 8,352,677 6,582,124 7,357,221 8,002,783 7,737,531
Perpetual capital KABRTE
instruments 2,393,903 — — — —
Non-controlling interests R AR R 2 2,855,958 1,967,748 4,289,672 4,017,680 3,606,661
Total equity AT 13,602,538 8,549,872 11,646,893 12,020,463 11,344,192
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 10,938,718 11,446,325 8,222,962 11,646,039 8,837,741
Current liabilities REEE 24,477,125 20,865,884 19,751,522 9,509,131 9,226,939
Total liabilities aERE 35,415,843 32,312,209 27,974,484 21,155,170 18,064,680
Total equity and liabilities BmRAMEME 49,018,381 40,862,081 39,621,377 33,175,633 29,408,872
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—— Chairman’s Statement
EiRsE

Dear Shareholders,

Global economy recovered from recession and recorded significant
economic growth in 2017. Major developed countries witnessed
clear signs of economic recovery with inflation rate remaining at low
level. Presidential election in the UK and France, the Trump’s policies
and interest rate hike from the U.S. Federal Reserve dominated
headlines in the financial market in the first half of 2017. Increased
tension in the Middle East and the Korean Peninsula brought
significant geopolitical uncertainty. Meanwhile, economy of
emerging markets also started to improve. China’s economy insisting
on pursuing economic growth amidst steady performance while
implementation of “supply-side structural reform” has been
deepened. Reforming measures in cutting excessive industrial
capacity, inventory destocking and de-leveraging were progressing in
an orderly manner. The continued release of inner motivation as a
result of economic growth has been fueled to drive for better future
growth.

The year of 2017 was a crucial year for Minmetals Land that not
only had it thoroughly implemented the “13th Five-Year Plan”,
reform, consolidation and overall competitiveness had also been
substantially enhanced. We have set a working principle at the
beginning of the year to continually promoting management
consolidation, deepening reform, improving asset quality intensely,

12 | Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2017
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optimizing business coverage and accelerating both strategic
transformation and business model innovation. During the year of
review, the Group devoted tremendous efforts in exploring business
opportunities in new cities, enhancing project development
operational efficiency, brand building, cash collection efficacy and
financial and operational integration through the establishment of
ERP system, and achieved pleasant results.

INDUSTRY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

China’s property market ended in 2017 amidst steady rise, in which
property prices of core Tier 1 and Tier 2 cities remained stable but
transaction volume shrank. Property prices in less popular Tier 2 and
Tier 3 cities escalated with remarkable transaction volume. The scale
of land sales increased for the first time in the past four years with
the largest supply in residential land, which eased the pressure of
land supply but the risk of high land premium remained. Looking
from the perspective of competition situation, large industry players
became even stronger. Transformational innovations with industry
landscape facing tremendous changes appeared in the sector. There
was an acceleration of industry concentration. Sales volume and
market share of leading players kept rising as they enjoyed an
economy of scale. Developers remained rational in land bank
replenishment though their enthusiasm was no less than before.

Against this backdrop, we have set an annual sales target of RMB10
billion for each of our regional hubs. During the year of review, we
had made a consolidation of the Group's strategic layout in Central
China after we successfully moved into the Wuhan market having
auctioned two parcels of land in Panlongcheng and Jiangxia in May
and September respectively. Our land bank in Yangtze River Delta
region was replenished after we successfully acquired through joint
ventures land parcels in Pukou and Hexi in Nanjing in July. Such
acquisitions support the Group’s operation and brand development
in the region. These new projects will start to make revenue
contribution from 2018 and will enhance sustainable development of
the Group. As at the end of 2017, the land bank of the Group was
approximately 3.86 million square metres in which 65% (in terms of
value) is situated in Tier 1 and core Tier 2 cities.

In terms of product development, we have actively researched for
innovative product series. Apart from the “Royale” series, we have
created the "Enchanté” and “Scenery” series for low-density mid-
luxury urban residential development, which shaped the three
principal product series of Minmetals Land. The resultant projects
included Nanjing Enchanté Cove, Enchanté Oasis, Wuhan Enchanté
Crest and Wuhan Scenery Cove. As a member of the “Royale”
series, Foshan Academic Royale will be developed in the style of Neo
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHRE

Asian community with duplex design. Regarding the new residential
project in Yau Tong, Hong Kong, it will be equipped with indoor
and outdoor swimming pools with a coastal lifestyle amidst
panoramic sea views. In addition, the Group has promoted brand
building intensively. A conference designated for launching the new
brand under the theme of “Ideal Urban Living in the New Era” was
held at the end of last year. At the conference, the strategic layout
and business portfolio of Minmetals Land were presented. Besides,
the conference also introduced other brands of the Group such as
“LIVE” for commercial complex development, “Xingfuli” for
community-based commercial property and the brand “VIP-LIFE” for
housing that offers thoughtful and caring living environment.

In terms of development operation, tremendous efforts have been
made to enhance efficiency in new project development. The newly
acquired Wuhan Enchanté Crest project obtained construction work
permit within five months of land acquisition and thus, allows an
early commencement of construction. Benefiting from the joint-
venture operation, the Nanjing Pukou project obtained construction
work permit within five and a half months of land acquisition. The
Hong Kong Yau Tong project has commenced foundation work as
scheduled. In order to optimize the entire real estate operation and
meet the requirements of setting up an ERP System, we had
thoroughly re-examined and revised the authorisation and approval
procedures for our real estate business segment.

During the year of review, all staff of the Group had endeavoured
to complete their assignments and operational targets. Apart from
achieving good operating results, we have also made significant
progress and breakthroughs in quality of operation, operational
capability, business model transformation and innovation, brand
building, quality of asset and set up of information system. As such,
it provides ample resource and management capability for the
implementation of the “13th Five-Year Plan”. QOur 2017
consolidated revenue increased by 3.1% to HK$11.94 billion while
gross profit margin improved to 34.3%. Profit for the year increased
by 45.3% to HK$1.45 billion. Net profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company increased by 39.2% to HK$713 million.
Basic earnings per share was HK21.32 cents (2016: HK15.31 cents).
The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK6.0 cents (2016:
HK4.0 cents) per share for the year of 2017.
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PROSPECTS AND OUTLOOK

Policy and Industry Outlook

Cooling and controlling measures were the key themes throughout
the year of 2017. Tier 1 cities and surrounding metropolitan areas as
well as popular Tier 2 cities and cities in Central and Western China
entered into the so-called “five-limitation era” that there were
limitations on purchaser’s eligibility, mortgage loan, pricing, sales
and limitation on the conversion of commercial properties to quasi-
residential properties. More than 250 property-related policies were
imposed across the country throughout the year. In terms of
political environment, the Political Bureau of the Central Committee
suggested the speeding up of housing system reform. It also
suggested in the Central Economic Work Conference to maintain the
existing real estate regulatory policies and to accelerate the
establishment of policy for rental housing and property sales system.
In the subsequent National Housing and Urban-Rural Development
Conference, the importance of imposing different kinds of
controlling measures towards different tiers of cities and different
kinds of housing demand were emphasized so as to meet the needs
of the first home buyers, upgraders and to curb speculations.

Moving into 2018, we believe that the Central Government will still
keep a firm hold of these objectives and the degree of stringent
controlling measures. Local governments have already fine-tuned the
policy on purchasing restriction pursuant to their own
circumstances. Against this background, we expect the market to
remain relatively stable with lower volatility and the operating
environment shall be slightly favourable than last year. The Group
will review and adjust its strategy as and when appropriate from
time to time.

Looking into 2018, the cooling and controlling measures of Tier 1
and Tier 2 cities moves into Tier 3 and Tier 4 cities in addition to
the tightening of nationwide monetary policy. It is estimated that
the growth cycle in Tier 3 and Tier 4 cities will come to an end.
Whilst the inventory level in Tier 1 and Tier 2 cities is still at record
low, the inventory level in most cities is healthy. Therefore, property
developers will continue to have pricing power in the short run. We
will adjust our strategy on a timely manner and seize opportunities
to deepen our presence in core cities. Meanwhile, having seen the
rental housing and property purchase practices are being
implemented, there are a number of cities elected to have land
biddings with partial or entire self-owned options. Some real estate
companies teamed up with financial institutions for additional rental
credit support or asset securitization initiatives. The traditional
development model has been transformed to a model of renovation
and upgrading of old-town and rental housing operation. We will
explore the feasibility of transforming to an urban developer and
take expedient actions in advance.
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Chairman’s Statement
EEHRE

From a funding perspective, the global financial market is generally
stable. However, a shrinking Federal Reserve balance sheet is likely
to cause policy shake-up in other developed economies and bring
instability to the global financial market in the near future. The pace
of recovery in global trade and investment has accelerated, but
international economic situation is still in the midst of restoration
with mixed future prospects. Under the backdrop of the tightening
global monetary policy, emerging markets have also entered into a
credit tightening cycle which will put pressure on China’s economic
growth, balance of international payments and asset prices. Given a
tightening financing environment both onshore and offshore, we will
try to seek multiple funding channels, lower our inventory level and
improve cash collection rate.

Business Prospects

In 2018, in the pursuit of steady growth and rapid improvement in
the quality of development, we adopted the operational strategy of
striving for growth amidst maintaining stable performance,
promoting business model innovation, enhancing quality of
management and operational efficiency, grasping the best timing for
launching pre-sales and achieving sustainable development.

In terms of investment, we will adhere to a prudent investment
strategy of enlarging our presence in cities where we have
advantageous position, focusing on core regional cities investment
and expanding in selected core Tier 2 cities as and when
appropriate. We will look for alternatives for acquiring land by
exploring new project opportunities through leveraging on the
existing ones. Further, we will seek collaborative initiatives with local
government, leading industry players and companies with
advantageous land resources.

In terms of financial management, we will adhere to prudent
financial management principles to closely monitor debt ratio and
operating expenses, strengthen capital market capability, optimize
asset composition, and utilize our advantageous listed position for
capital raising in Hong Kong.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Minmetals Land has been an advocate of corporate social
responsibility. It has carried out numerous social initiatives such as
the support of local education by sponsoring the Project Hope and
offering scholarships for students of various universities. It regularly
organizes welfare activity called “warming up the rural area” where
assistance would be provided to rural families in need. Besides,
Minmetals Land also provides sponsorships to sporting events and
participates in charity works such as “walk for the love of Qinghai”.
We will continue to serve the society and fulfill our social
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responsibility to attain a harmonious and win-win situation that is
mutually beneficial to the Company, Shareholders, employees,
stakeholders and the community.

CONCLUSION

I would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to the strong
support from our controlling Shareholder, the support and trust of
our Shareholders and business partners, and the hard work and
efforts of our staff over the past year. | would also like to express
my sincere gratitude towards our directors’ contribution throughout
the year. Though the road ahead is full of challenges, we firmly
believe that, leveraging on the advantage of China Minmetals and
our well-established branding, together with our advantageous
status as a Hong Kong listed company, we will further release our
growth potential.

Li Fuli
Chairman
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s operating results for 2017 continued to improve with
consolidated revenue amounting to HK$11,935.5 million,
representing an increase of 3.1% compared to HK$11,576.3 million
of last year. Real estate development operating segment recorded a
revenue growth of 3.3% to HK$10,907.2 million (2016:
HK$10,557.0 million) as a result of the increase in average selling
price of the properties delivered to buyers. Specialised construction
operating segment recorded a revenue growth of 1.0% to
HK$964.3 million (2016: HK$954.8 million), which was attributed to
the completion and settlement of certain projects by Condo Hong
Kong. The revenue from property investment operating segment
slightly slipped 0.8% to HK$64.0 million (2016: HK$64.5 million).

Segment Revenue

3 %5 o] @
AEBMRZZT—ELFNREEERBRA 7
A U A A11,935,500,00058 7T © 8 £ F R HH
11,576,300,000/8 7t E FA3.1% - £ & B E
BREEDBZWABRARN FERZWETFH
S & hnim £ F3.3% %10,907,200,0007 7t (=
T — 7N 1 10,557,000,0008 70) : S BREE
WMBHEERTIAE ZFERELESHZ
I A 8 K 1.0% £964,300,0005 T (= & — /X
% : 954,800,000 7T): MIERELE D E 2K
A BT /80.8% £64,000,0008 78 (—ZF — X
£F : 64,500,000/ 7T) °

Zigi LN

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=t+—-HLEE

Year-on-year

2017 2016 change
—E—t#E —T—AE BREEE
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEEET % BEETL % %
Real estate development B EERE 10,907.2 91.4 10,557.0 91.2 +3.3
Specialised construction EEEE 964.3 8.1 954.8 8.2 +1.0
Property investment MERE 64.0 0.5 64.5 0.6 -0.8
Securities investment BHEE — — — — —
Total st 11,935.5 100.0 11,576.3  100.0 +3.1
Segment Results vigi 3
For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=+—HLEE Year-on-year
2017 2016 change
—T—tF —T—RF REEE
HK$ million HK$ million
BEEAT % BEBT % %
Real estate development FEHEERE 3,665.6 9.3 1,746.1 87.6 +109.9
Specialised construction BERE (123.7) (3.2) 48.2 2.4 N/AT i
Property investment MEKRE 224.4 5.9 180.5 9.1 +24.3
Securities investment EBHRE 39.5 1.0 18.4 0.9 +114.7
Total st 3,805.8  100.0 1,993.2  100.0 +90.9
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DT

Since properties with higher profit margin were being recognised,
overall gross profit margin improved significantly from 19.5% to
34.3%. As a result of a robust commercial office sector in Hong
Kong, valuation for investment properties has growth consistently
leading to a large increase in fair value gain on investment
properties of 22.0% to HK$151.3 million (2016: HK$124.0 million).
The Group’s selling and marketing expenses decreased 14.9% to
HK$185.6 million (2016: HK$218.1 million) due to reduction of
selling expenses from a lower contracted sales during the year. As a
result of a one-off inventory impairment and provision for trade
receivables, the administrative and other expenses increased by
39.2% to HK$590.1 million (2016: HK$423.9 million). However,
administrative and other expenses would have recorded a slight
increase of 9.8% if these items are excluded.

During the year under review, as the Group deployed more cash
funding for land bidding and acquisitions, finance income decreased
39.1% to HK$147.0 million (2016: HK$241.4 million). In addition,
finance costs charged to the profit or loss recorded a significant
increase of 105.9% to HK$114.7 million (2016: HK$55.7 million) as
a result of an increase in raising external funding. As a project of an
associate is at the final stage of sales with lower operational cost,
loss from share of results of associated company was compressed to
HK$2.5 million (2016: HK$12.1 million). Profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company surged 39.2% to HK$712.9 million from
HK$512.1 million of last year, representing a basic earnings per
share of HK21.32 cents (2016: HK15.31 cents) for the year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’'s total assets grew 20.0% to
HK$49,018.4 million (2016: HK$40,862.1 million) whilst net assets
increased 59.1% to HK$13,602.5 million (2016: HK$8,549.9 million),
which is primarily attributed to the appreciation of Renminbi
exchange rate and a RMB2.0 billion perpetual loan granted by a
fellow subsidiary during the year. The financial position of the Group
remained healthy with gearing ratio of 72.3% (2016: 79.1%), net
gearing ratio of 62.4% (2016: 69.5%), and its net current assets
rose 21.6% to HK$19,253.9 million (2016: HK$15,839.2 million).
Deferred revenue, which mainly represents contracted sales carried
forward and will subsequently be recognised as the Group's revenue
when presold properties are completed and delivered to buyers,
declined 16.4% to HK$10,384.0 million (2016: HK$12,419.6

million).
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REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT

- Pan Bohai Rim & %) /8 i1 [&
B Yangtze River Delta £ = i [
B Central China Ed i@

B rearl River Delta Tk = A =

ﬁ Current Real Estate Project
RAEFMWEER

Contracted Sales*

P Ml E 5% J

) Tianjin K32

WlhanfEys

Guangzhou, Foshan

BEMN ~ 1L~ B ¢
Hong Kongs&:

B & 8

In 2017, the Group’s total contracted sales declined 31.2% to MR- ZE—tHF AEEZENHEELEBRD
RMBS8,051 million (2016: RMB11,702 million) and the gross floor 31.2%%8,051,000,0007T A R# (ZZF — /X4 :
area contracted for sale declined 38.2% to 372,000 square metres  11,702,000,0007c A B #) - A IHE LB @@
(2016: 602,000 square metres). Total number of units sold during &l £238.2% £372,000F 5 K (Z T — X F -
the year slid 4.6% to 5,626 units (2016: 5,895 units) and the 602,000 772K) » 4 fHE E [ 22 T (84.6%
average selling price increased 11.9% to approximately RMB21,700  %5,626f& 8 iz (—ZF — /X4 : 5,895 % i) - F
(2016: RMB19,400) per square metre. The majority of the contracted EE EF11.9% 2 & F 5 K4121,7007T A R

sales was derived from Tier 1 and core Tier 2 cities.

(ZZ—RF : 8 FHK19,400t ARHE) - K&
EHABERIEZRE —BEEL_BHRT 2
EWEZERER -
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EEENWR DT

The table below provides an analysis of contracted sales by project —ZT— X NER - T—+F 7 HFHHEEHEILER
for the years 2016 and 2017: PO RINBAT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-BHLEE

2017 2016
—E-tE£ —E—RE
Contracted  Contracted Contracted Contracted
amount GFA ASP amount GFA ASP
E kA 10 FHER BEHNEE BH THER
(RMB million) #@#EE® (RMB/sq.m.) (RMB million) #EEEE (RMB/sq.m.)
(AR#% (sqm) (BEFXK (AR (sqm) (BFHK
Project EH BHET) (FHXK) AR¥%TT) BETT) (FFK) ARERL)
Beijing Fortune Garden LRI 3,035 36,679 82,738 3,136 41,947 74,761
. . poy g ek
Yingkou Platinum Bay EORFEHEE 250 2,178 5,930 101 20,121 5,000
Langfang Minmetals Vanke City B RREE R 564 46,559 12,113 807 82,179 9,818
Tianjin Minmetals International AETERBEBAE _ _ _ 101 9,320 10,791
.. - o FST 95
Nanjing Riviera Royale MROBISR _ _ _ " 154 76,703
. = = VAN
Nanjing Sello Royale RO NER _ _ _ 164 26,504 17526
; . S X
Nanjing Academic Royale RRAR RXEH 1,800 45,268 39,764 2,751 80,140 34,323
Nanjing Yan Shan Ju AREWE 941 21,759 43,232 2,564 72,949 35,149
Changsha LOHAS International RORGEeBEEBRLE
Community 801 131,959 6,073 875 168,241 5,198
o :
Changsha Scotland Town EOHE/NE " 4970 8,042 6 008 5,050
i DERLEL R
Changsha Qin Royale e Lk 214 10,166 21,003 503 63,520 7,920
| S T
Huizhou Hallstatt See BN e A 202 32,160 12,502 38 36,006 10,596
Total @it 8,051 371,698 21,667 11,702 602,179 19,433
* “Contracted Sales” means sales contracts entered into between the Group and * [ERHEEIAAEEBERBEERE MM MER D
purchasers pursuant to the Administrative Measures on the Sales of Commodity REZZE—FOMAMARAMER=ZTEZE—FA—H
Buildings promulgated by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-rural Development ER2EMEHEEERERT2HEEAR ARE
on 4 April 2001 and implemented on 1 June 2001. Sale of commodity buildings HEDRBEERRIBIHEE -

included both pre-completion sales (pre-sale) and post-completion sales.
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Project Profiles

JE H # o

GFA held
for future
Estimated GFA  GFA under development
Attributable GFA  completed development e
interest to Site Area 23] B#T ERF BRZ
the Group wEEE @AHEEE LHEEEE 2 4SEEERE 2 YHEEER
550E (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sg.m.) (sq.m.)
Location/Project e EE Fi i #e i (FHX) (FHX) (FH%) (EHXK) (EHXK)
Pan Bohai Rim REBHE
1. Beijing Fortune Garden LRmE 51.0% 139,000 414,000 308,000 106,000 —
2. Yingkou Platinum Bay EOREAiEE 100.0% 396,000 521,000 158,000 129,000 234,000
3. Langfang Minmetals Vanke City  BS3) T & L5t 50.0% 433,000 704,000 284,000 153,000 267,000
4. Tianjin Minmetals International  KZEFERBEHHEAE 100.0% 21,000 183,000 183,000 = =
Yangtze River Delta REABE
5. Nanjing Sello Royale HARAE LEA 100.0% 179,000 270,000 270,000 — —
6. Nanjing Academic Royale HRAE ZX2H 100.0% 136,000 482,000 403,000 79,000 —
7. Nanjing Yan Shan Ju HRZILE 100.0% 91,000 203,000 192,000 11,000 —
8. Nanjing Enchanté Oasis ARREBRE 100.0% 95,000 255,000 — 255,000 —
9. Nanjing Enchanté Cove AR L 100.0% 68,000 144,000 — 144,000 —
10. Nanjing Pukou Project* MREOER 39.8% 83,400 283,000 — 283,000 —
11. Nanjing Hexi Project* ARFE R * 33.9% 43,000 230,000 = — 230,000
Central China EdiE
12. Changsha LOHAS International RV RiE ¢ EEBEAE
Community 100.0% 643,000 1,084,000 924,000 158,000 2,000
13. Changsha Scotland Town VB NE 100.0% 333,000 442,000 442,000 = =
14. Changsha Qin Royale EDORBGLE S 100.0% 150,000 534,000 128,000 187,000 219,000
15. Wuhan Enchanté Crest* RERHEE* 100.0% 61,000 178,000 = — 178,000
16. Wuhan Scenery Cove* HEE Bk 100.0% 52,400 210,000 = — 210,000
Pearl River Delta K=AME
17. Huizhou Hallstatt See BMERE  MiEE 100.0% 984,000 1,003,000 194,000 41,000 768,000
18. Foshan Academic Royale BILET LR 100.0% 42,500 187,000 = 27,000 160,000
19. Guangzhou Greenery Terrace  EMEH#A 100.0% 30,600 29,000 — 29,000 —
20. Hong Kong Yau Tong Project A& HEEE 100.0% 10,500 53,000 — 53,000 —

* New Project of 2017
R+ ERNEER
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Pan Bohai Rim

EE /iiﬂ_’,‘ﬂ__ﬂ

Beijing Fortune Garden 4t 3¢ 41 [H

Project . Fortune Garden

HE AW nE

Location . Xibeiwang Town, Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC
3 B # B dE 708 e (& JE A 8

Usage . Residential

& T=x

Site area . Approximately 139,000 square metres
3t 28 H T8 #7139,000F 75 K

Gross floor area . Approximately 414,000 square metres
BIEHEE #9414,000F 75 K

Group’s interest : 51%

REBE GRS

Expected construction 1 2018

completion date —E—-NE

TRERETIZEK E B

Fortune Garden is a residential development project located at
Xibeiwang Town, Haidian District, Beijing. It occupies an aggregate
site area of approximately 139,000 square metres and has an
aggregate planned gross floor area of approximately 414,000 square
metres. The project received the “International Award” granted by
the British Association of Landscape Industries in recognition of its
outstanding landscape design. The project is comprised of two
phases. Whilst Phase | was completed and delivered, Phase Il is
expected to be delivered to buyers in 2018. In 2017, a contracted
sales of around 36,679 square metres were recorded under this
project.
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Yingkou Platinum Bay & I T 9% * 81§ i

Project : Platinum Bay

HAE&HE Ak sHiBE

Location . Liaoning (Yingkou) Coastal Industrial Base, Yingkou

b 2h City, Liaoning Province, the PRC
PREFRELALEOMEE(EN) 0 EEFEM

Usage : Residential

A& F=E

Site area : Approximately 396,000 square metres

3t 42 T 18 #7396,000F 77 2K

Gross floor area : Approximately 521,000 square metres

BIEEER #9521,0005F 75 &

Group's interest : 100%

NEBATEER

Expected construction
completion date

: Part Il of Phase IV in 2019

FMH_—R — —F-NF

FHRETREZEKAH

Platinum Bay is a residential development project comprises villas
and apartments. Located at Liaoning (Yingkou) Coastal Industrial
Base, Yingkou City, Liaoning Province, the project occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 396,000 square metres and has
an aggregate planned gross floor area of approximately 521,000
square metres. The project is comprised of five phases. Development
of Phases | and Il was completed in December 2012. Part | of Phase
Il commenced delivery as of the end of 2015 and Part Il of Phase Il
has reached completion in the end of 2017. Part | of Phase IV
commenced construction in May 2017 and is expected to complete
construction by the end of 2018. Part Il of Phase IV that
commenced construction in October 2017 is expected to commence
pre-sale in the second quarter of 2018 and to complete construction
by the end of 2019. The construction schedule of Part Il of Phase IV
is subject to the pre-sale results of the previous phases. Phase V will
be comprised of high-rise units, the construction schedule of which
will be dependent on market condition. The expected construction
completion date for the entire project is subject to further analysis.
In 2017, a contracted sales of around 42,178 square metres were
recorded under this project.

RiEeABFEAEBSRHERNAEEMN ZFEH%
EIER - Tiﬁj\ﬁ T EEOMERE(BO)NEE
¥ @R T E4 A396,0005F 5K B4R

ﬂ%%@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂmwiﬁ cZIEB HH
AHAE  EF— —HR_ZT——-F+_A%
T E=H—"ER_Z—AFFEIMNER "
TER-T—tEFRBRTFNH—EBR=

—tFRAPT  BARZZE-NFFRER

T —ER-Z—+tFE+AHI BFR-Z
—NFE-_FTHKREE R-_Z—NFEER

T —EEIFESREMBERBEEBELM
*-”ﬁﬁ;ﬁﬁ%‘%)ﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ‘ﬁi%iuﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%
ERTME BHEERERERBHALRETE - =
T—+F ZEEMNBEYNHEEEEL R42,178
K e
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Pan Bohai Rim
Bt E

Langfang Minmetals Vanke City H§ 3 1. 9% & £ 3%

Project . Minmetals Vanke City
HE AW ARB R
Location . Jiangxintun Town, Xianghe County, Langfang City,
b Bh Hebei Province, the PRC

o B)A dE & BB I T & W SR F TR
Usage . Residential
mBi& E=E
Site area . Approximately 433,000 square metres
3t 52 T & #9433,000°F 75 K
Gross floor area : Approximately 704,000 square metres
#1281 #)704,000F 75 2K
Group's interest : 50%
REBAIEER

Construction completion date : High-rise units of Phase Il in 4Q 2017
BEIETKRH F_HREEMN — T LFENF

Minmetals Vanke City is a residential development project comprises
villas and high-rise units. Located in Jiangxintun Town, Xianghe
County, Langfang City, Hebei Province, the project occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 433,000 square metres and has
an aggregate planned gross floor area of approximately 704,000
square metres. Phase | of the project was completed and delivered
in 2016. High-rise units of Phase Il commenced construction in 2016
and has reached completion for delivery by the end of 2017. The
remaining part of the project is currently under planning and the
expected construction completion date for the entire project is
subject to further analysis. In 2017, a contracted sales of around
46,559 square metres were recorded under this project.

hEENRARSNERSBEMNZEERRE
HE MR EBYMENGZEFLHE £
88 A& 49 2433,000°F 5K - BRI EEE
T4 B704,000F 5K - 5ZIHB & — B2 TR
RZE-—RNEFERFVER: F_HaEEMLRZ
E-ANEHIT R-E—+tEEEBRILNE
R ZBEHTIHMHEEREIEE HEEE
EXEAPEREE - R_TE—+tF ZEEHN
F ST B L B46,559F 5 K -

Tianjin Minmetals International X ¥t H [ i 9% 5 % K 2

Project : Minmetals International

HE AW PEABEEBXE

Location : At east of Yingbin Main Road and south of

Hh 2 Tuochang Road, Tanggu District, Tianjin, the PRC
HERE T R RIEE N B AR RIS E AR

Usage . Commercial and residential

MB& BEREE

Site area . Approximately 21,000 square metres

3t 88 T 18 #921,000F 77 2K

Gross floor area . Approximately 183,000 square metres

1B AR #)183,000F 75 2K

Group's interest : 100%

REBPTIEHE R

Construction completion date : 2011

EETRTKAS —T——F
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Minmetals International is a mixed commercial
and residential development project located at
the east of Yingbin Main Road and south of
Tuochang Road, Tanggu District, Tianjin. The
project is comprised of office space, apartments,
retail stores as well as car-parking spaces. It
occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
21,000 square metres and has an aggregate
gross floor area of approximately 183,000 square
metres. So far, 96% of the gross saleable floor
area was sold. In 2017, no contracted sales were
recorded under this project.

FTRABEBSAEABRERAE A8 A
MEBSEEEMAZEREEE LR KEEM
RN ERBEARRFESENAR BB AEEYL
/21,0005 75 2K + 4812 [ [ & %Y £183,000F 77
KeigS ZEECENNB%ENEEZEME
B-RZE—tF ZBEEFOHELHR-



Yangtze River Delta

R=AME

Nanjing Sello Royale Fi 3t TLiik « LB &

Project

HE RS

Location

2

Usage

3iB=3

Site area

3 A2 [ 5

Gross floor area

42 TH E R

Group's interest
REEFRIEER
Construction completion date

BETR7TKAH

: Sello Royale

AR NEE

: At south of Hongjing Road, Science Park, Jiangning

District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
REI#HEMAIERBZE AR KEAE

. Residential

£

. Approximately 179,000 square metres

#9179,000F 75 K

. Approximately 270,000 square metres

#9270,000F 75 7K

: 100%

0 2014

—T—mEF

Sello Royale is a residential development project located at the

south of Hongjing Road, Science Park, Jiangning District, Nanjing,

Jiangsu Province. The project is comprised of villas and low-rise
apartments. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
179,000 square metres and has an aggregate gross floor area of
approximately 270,000 square metres. The project was awarded the
“Best Residential Development in 2014 (East & Central China)” at

the first China Property Awards held by Ensign Media. So far, 99%
of the gross saleable floor area was sold.

FiEe NEEANRNIKEAE N IERRIZ2E
SARANBUAMZEERREIER  2EEHRE
NZBRE  EMBREEL 179,000 75K
4 18 E @ M 4 5270,000F 7 # o fEEnsign
Media=E ## 2 25 — & [ China Property Awards |
b ZEEREAI CE-MEEPEERLE
FHESREFEEE|I 5 ZBEEDEW
99% 42 F] & 18 TH H 15 -
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Yangtze River Delta
R=AtE

Nanjing Academic Royale Fi &% T 0% « 5% 3C & 3k

Project . Academic Royale

BEEH Al e RXEH

Location . At Tian He Road, southern part of Hexi, Jianye

) B District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
o B )T % & R (R A 7 3R RO BR

Usage . Residential

& F=E

Site area : Approximately 136,000 square metres

3t 22 T 18 #7136,000F 75 2K

Gross floor area : Approximately 482,000 square metres

B TH E B #)482,000F 75 7K

Group's interest : 100%

REEMGER

Expected construction : 2Q 2019

completion date —TNEFEE_F

AL T2k A H

Academic Royale is a residential development project located at Tian
He Road, southern part of Hexi, Jianye District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province. It is approximately 5 kilometres from the Nanjing Olympic
Sports Centre, the main stadium for the Nanjing 2014 Summer
Youth Olympic Games. The project is situate in the Nanjing Hexi
New City Zone, a district of key future development with a
construction plan of becoming a comfortable living Eco-City. The
project is designed as a high-quality residential community with low
density. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 136,000
square metres and has an aggregate planned gross floor area of
approximately 482,000 square metres. The project is comprised of
four phases. Development of Phase | and Phase Il was completed in
2015 and 2016 respectively. Phase Ill commenced construction in
January 2015 and is expected to deliver to buyers with full
refurbishment in 2018. Phase IV commenced construction in April
2016 and is expected to deliver to buyers with full refurbishment in
the second quarter of 2019. In 2017, a contracted sales of around
45,268 square metres were recorded under this project.
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Nanjing Yan Shan Ju 3 2 I &

Project : Yan Shan Ju

BEEW SWE

Location : At Zhong Ling Jie, Xuanwu District, Nanjing,

3 2 Jiangsu Province, the PRC
HEIHERE R LR REES

Usage . Residential

& F=

Site area : Approximately 91,000 square metres

3t 88 H T8 #791,000F 77 K

Gross floor area . Approximately 203,000 square metres

BB HEEE #9203,000F 75 2K

Group's interest : 100%

REBEIEER

Expected construction 1 2018

completion date —ZT—N\&F

HHRETETEK A Y

Yan Shan Ju is a residential development project located in the
established prime residential area at the southeast of Zijin Mountains
in Nanjing Xuanwu District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province where land
supply is limited. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
91,000 square metres and has an aggregate planned gross floor area
of approximately 203,000 square metres. There are well developed
transportation facilities and the project is in close proximity to the
Ninghang Expressway and Subway Line No. 2. In addition, it enjoys
excellent surrounding environment and neighbours a number of
educational and research institutions. The project is designed as a
high-end low-density residential community comprises low-rise
apartments for first time buyers and upgraders from the local district
and the Nanjing city. It is comprised of two phases. Development of
Phase | that commenced in the first quarter of 2015 has delivered to
buyers with full refurbishment in 2017. Development of Phase Il that
commenced in the third quarter of 2015 is expected to deliver to
buyers with full refurbishment in 2018. In 2017, a contracted sales of
around 21,759 square metres were recorded under this project.

ZUERUNIHEAEIRZRERS IUBRES
AMEEERER NEEMTIHEEEER

REG S EET®E AR EEL A91,000F
Tk BB RIET A 4 A203,000F 75K ©
ZHEBBROTEMABMMENE  BEF -
ARRBEEE REXZBZES MBTIHE
LEHEE R A28/ aEBNasmERE
FTEE BERFFPAZEREATHNEENH
WEF - ZBEHEIMBAAZE E—HR=F
—hAFE—FHT N _T—LFERBEE
RNER BN T —AFE=FHT -
EARZE- N\ FRRHRBEERINFER - B =
T—+F ZEEMNBYHEEEELY A21,759
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Yangtze River Delta
R=AtE

Nanjing Enchanté Oasis Fi &% i e i i Jg

Project . Enchanté Oasis

HEH AW R i R

Location . At the junction of Shuanglong Avenue and

3 B4 Xuelindong Road, Jiangning District, Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC
HEIHEEARIEREREABHERRERR

Usage . Residential

Ri& x££

Site area . Approximately 95,000 square metres

AR 1 #795,000F 75 oK

Gross floor area : Approximately 255,000 square metres

IR AR #9255,000F 75 7K

Group's interest : 100%

REEFTEER

Expected construction : 2Q 2020

completion date —T-TFEE=F

TAHEETI25EK A B

Enchanté Oasis is a residential development project located within
the core centre of Zijin Technology Entrepreneurial Special Zone at
the junction of Shuanglong Avenue and Xuelindong Road, Jiangning
District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province and to the west of Shangginhuai
Wetland Park, the largest wetland park in China. It occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 95,000 square metres and has
an aggregate planned gross floor area of approximately 255,000
square metres. The project is comprised of two phases. Development
of Phase | has commenced in the second quarter of 2017 and is
expected to be delivered to buyers by the end of 2019.
Development of Phase Il has commenced in January 2018 and is
expected to be delivered to buyers by the second quarter of 2020.
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BUMEREAMNRNIGEER IERESHEE
BERFEERABHENRERIAZAZER
HE  RAZH2EEANKAR AR — +
FEAREMAR BARAREBEEX RbER
E#)/R95000F 5K ERSBEMEELN A
255,000 5K - BB o MBI - £ —H
RZZE—+FEFTHT - Bt R 2T —NF
FRXNER : F_HR-_ZFE—NF—A8H
I BAR_ZE_EFE_FRIMNER-



Nanjing Enchanté Cove R 4% i Bt 75 Ll

Project . Enchanté Cove

HEEH bk el

Location . At the junction of Fanggian Avenue and Wushi

3 2 Road, Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC
PETHEAMUIERGAMAEEBERRIR

Usage . Residential

A& =

Site area : Approximately 68,000 square metres

3t 28 T T8 #768,000F 77 2K

Gross floor area . Approximately 144,000 square metres

HEHEEE #9144,000F 75 2K

Group's interest : 100%

RNEBFAIEHERS

Expected construction : 3Q 2018

completion date ZTN\FE=F

TRERETIZ K B B

Enchanté Cove is a residential development project located in the
south-eastern corner of Fangshan, Jiangning District, Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province within the Jiangning University Town at the
junction of Fanggian Avenue and Wushi Road. It occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 68,000 square metres and has
an aggregate planned gross floor area of approximately 144,000
square metres. Development of the project that commenced in the
second quarter of 2017 is expected to reach completion in the third
quarter of 2018 for sales and to be delivered to buyers by the
second quarter of 2019.

MU FTLAMR IHGEE R IERFILEMEA
TIEREBRESIABEEERIR ZEEH
RIER B EEMEEY 568000F 5K ERE
PIZEMEAEL B144,000F F K- ZEEE R =T
—tFEFHT BHAR - N\FE=FR
ITTEREE R NEFE_EXIMNER-
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Yangtze River Delta
ZAtE

Nanjing Pukou Project W ¢ HJH H

Project

HE AW

Location
3 Bh

Usage

A&

Site area

3t 52 T 18

Gross floor area
HIEEER

Group's interest
REEMGER
Expected construction
completion date

HHRZETRTEK A H

. Pukou Project

BOIER

. At the junction of Guangming Road and Lixin Road,

Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
HENIEHE R B AR AR EZIERR

. Residential

=

. Approximately 83,400 square metres

#983,400F 75 2K

: Approximately 283,000 square metres

#9283,000F 75 2K

: 39.8%

© 4Q 2018

“E-N\FENF

Pukou Project is a residential development project
located at the junction of Guangming Road
and Lixin Road, Pukou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu
Province with close proximity to Metro Line
No. 10 Yushan Road Station and is equipped
with well-established facilities. It occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 83,400
square metres and has an aggregate planned
gross floor area of approximately 283,000
square metres. Development of the project that
commenced in December 2017 is expected to
reach completion in the fourth quarter of 2018
for sales and to be delivered to buyers by the
second quarter of 2020.

HAIBE AMMNII&E M B AR KR
FRRXRAZEEHERERER - %Lmﬁmﬁﬁﬁ
gt B ANEERE TS BHEE
B4 B83400F XK BHEBEREELNA
283,000 T K cZEHERZZE—LEF+ZAHH
I'ﬁ%%—g—ﬂiﬁméﬁlﬁﬁﬁ%
B RIZEZZFE_FTINER-

Nanjing Hexi Project Fi %% ¥ /5 JH H

Project . Hexi Project

A AW ABEER

Location . At the junction of Yanshan Road and Shuiximen

) B Avenue, Gulou District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province,
the PRC
BT # A f A8 R R L B B PI R B R R

Usage . Residential and commercial

& EEREE

Site area . Approximately 43,000 square metres

3 28 H 18 #143,000F 75 %

Gross floor area . Approximately 230,000 square metres

BIZHEE A #9230,000F 75 K

Group’s interest 1 33.9%

REBEFIE#ER

Expected construction : 4Q 2019

completion date —E-HEFNE

TREARETIZEAK B B
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Hexi Project is a residential and commercial
development project located in Gulou
District, the northern part of Hexi, Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province. The site enjoys an array of
transportation, commercial and educational
resources. It occupies an aggregate site area
of approximately 43,000 square metres and
has an aggregate planned gross floor area
of approximately 230,000 square metres.
Development of the project is expected to
commence in the first quarter of 2018 and it
is expected to reach completion in the fourth
quarter of 2019 for sales and to be delivered to
buyers by the third quarter of 2020.

AEE AN IHEE TR BHER 2
TEREHEZHEEE HBREHFABETEOR
B HERMEEREERE BRHBREEL
BA3000F F K ERELEEDEEN A
230,000 5K - ZBHEBARZZE—NFE—
FHPIT R_T-NFENFTERIITRERFAH
E RZIEZTFE-FEINER-



Central China
EhihE

Changsha LOHAS International Community & ¥ i 9% « #& & B B +L [

Project : LOHAS International Community

BB EH Ak« EAEBEHE

Location . At Gaoyun Road, Muyun Town, Changsha County,

B Hunan Province, the PRC
TEPREERYBETES TR

Usage . Residential

& T

Site area : Approximately 643,000 square metres

3t 42 T & #7643,000F 75 2K

Gross floor area . Approximately 1,084,000 square metres

BEEEE #91,084,000F 75 2K

Group's interest : 100%

NEB GRS

Expected construction : 4Q 2018

completion date T N\EFEENF

HEHRETRTEXA Y

LOHAS International Community is a large-scale residential
development project with ancillary facilities such as clubhouse,
shops, car-parking lots, schools and landscaped garden. Located at
Gaoyun Road, Muyun Town, Changsha County, Hunan Province, the
project occupies an aggregate site area of approximately 643,000
square metres, including a private lake of 30,000 square metres, and
has an aggregate planned gross floor area of approximately
1,084,000 square metres. The project is comprised of five phases.
Whilst development of Phases | to IV was completed during the
years from 2010 to 2014, the development of Part | of Phase V was
completed in 2015. Development of Part Il of Phase V has
commenced in 2016 and is expected to complete in the fourth
quarter of 2018. In 2017, a contracted sales of around 131,959
square metres were recorded under this project.

hERERBRHTRARETEREEE A
HER BHE BA BEREBEMNTEESZIE
REZE NRBEERPSGEZESZE
4 4 B8 T FE 4 B643,000F 5 K (E B IE
30,000 F I RFLAOHR) - BREIBEEREED
731,084,000F F K- ZIBE £ T HIFME : &
—EOHAR T -FTFE_FT-OFHRIL:
FRH-"EBR-_ZT—HAFEI —ER_ZF
—RNEHIT B R T NFENFRLT -
RZE—+tF ZEEMNEFLVHEEDBENA
131,959 75 K °
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Central China
EEhh &R

Changsha Scotland Town & ¥ #§ B /) 8

Project : Scotland Town

HEEW HBENE

Location : At Yuntang Village and Yuetang Village, Muyun

Hh 2h Town, Changsha County, Hunan Province, the PRC
TEPEERYBRESHETENR AEN

Usage . Residential

A& F=

Site area . Approximately 333,000 square metres

3t 52 T & #9333,000F 75 K

Gross floor area © Approximately 442,000 square metres

HEHEEE #7442,000F 75 2K

Group's interest : 100%

REEMEER

Construction completion date : 2013

BETIRETKRH —T—=F

Scotland Town is a residential development project located at
Yuntang Village and Yuetang Village, Muyun Town, Changsha
County, Hunan Province and is adjacent to LOHAS International
Community. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
333,000 square metres and has an aggregate gross floor area of
approximately 442,000 square metres. So far, 98% of the gross
saleable floor area was sold. In 2017, a contracted sales of around
4,970 square metres were recorded under this project.
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BENEBNRAEARPBEEZHEZENK
AENZAEERIEE WA AE EERHRK
L - A AR TS 40 £333,000°F 5 oK - BIEE
HE4) B442,000F F K25 ZHACEH
BRBINELEEEBE - R_FT—+tF %EH
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Changsha Qin Royale & ¥ T & « I [F 4 3%

Project : Qin Royale
HA AW Atk e i E &
Location : Fu Yuan West Road, Kaifu District, Changsha
Hh B County, Hunan Province, the PRC

B8 RS A R SR B AR R AR T A BR
Usage . Residential and commercial
mBi& EERBEE
Site area : Approximately 150,000 square metres
3t 28 H T8 #1150,000F 75 2K
Gross floor area . Approximately 534,000 square metres
AR #)534,000F 75 2K
Group's interest : 100%
REBIEER
Expected construction : 4Q 2019
completion date —E-HEFNE
TRERETIZEA B B

Qin Royale is a residential and commercial development project
located at Fu Yuan West Road, Kaifu District, Changsha County,
Hunan Province which is within a comfortable living Eco-City zone
under planning, with close proximity to the Kaifu District
Administration Centre. It occupies an aggregate site area of
approximately 150,000 square metres and has an aggregate planned
gross floor area of approximately 534,000 square metres, of which
approximately 331,000 square metres is designated for residential
purpose, approximately 113,000 square metres for commercial
purpose, approximately 5,000 square metres for public ancillary
facility purpose, and approximately 71,000 square metres for car-
parking and civil air defence purpose. Whilst the residential portion
of the project will be developed into a quality residential community
for first home buyers and upgraders, the commercial portion will be
developed as an entertainment complex with a studio in the center
of the development surrounded by office buildings, hotel, shopping
malls, and food and beverage facilities. The project is comprised of
four phases. Development of Phase | which is comprised of villas and
selected high-rise units was completed in 2016. Development of
Phase Il that commenced in the first quarter of 2017 is expected to
launch pre-sale in the first quarter of 2018 and deliver to buyers in
September 2019. Development and pre-sale of commercial
properties of Phase Illl that commenced in the fourth quarter of
2017 is expected to be delivered to buyers in the fourth quarter of
2019. Development of residential units of Phase IV is expected to
commence in the second quarter of 2018 and to launch pre-sale in
the third quarter of 2018. The expected construction completion
date for the project is in the fourth quarter of 2019. In 2017, a
contracted sales of around 10,166 square metres were recorded
under this project.

AELEESBMANRAEARY BHEER
TRAEZEFEREERRER  MEBFER
Sl A REEE R AR =TT A
Dy 4A M A% TE AR 49 A150,000F 73K - D AR 2 42
EEE A A534,000F 5K @R EELD L
331,000 5 K » 78 2 2 5 49 15113,000F 5
K BEE QAR L155,000F 75K - FEF KR AR
HEH#1571,000F 5K - ZE B EF =oK%
BRAENEBE BXEFPAINSLEEZX=ERE-
FEEMBHABERE BIRLFEESAE ¥4 8
FURZGAEPRANEZN ARFEZH
ANAREBE HEREREZE - ZEE ED
ERE  F— B EREESESE
T BERZE—REBT  F_HR T+
FE—ZTHT FBAR_Z—NFE =M
BE R-_ZE-—NAFLAXNER : =%
¥R T tFENFHT Eit N F
—NEENEFEIMNER: FUHEEEMEET
RIE-N\FE_ZTHT  RFEF=FFHIKTHE
E-BHRERERAN -_Z-NEEFNETRKE
HE%E -R-ZT—tF ZEEBNZOHEER
FE#) /510,166 F 15 K o
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Central China
EEhh &R

Wuhan Enchanté Crest & i P Z 8

Project
A AHE
Location
3 B

Usage

&

Site area

3 A% [ A&

Gross floor area
HIETHER

Group's interest
NEBATEER
Expected construction
completion date
TRERR R TIZ e B B

: Enchanté Crest

 ES

. At the junction of Songjiagang East Road and

Huayun Road, Panlongcheng Economic
Development Zone, Huangpi District, Wuhan, Hubei
Province, the PRC

RERILE RET &K R EBENCERERRK
REREREERRRZR

. Residential

£

. Approximately 61,000 square metres

#961,000F 75 K

. Approximately 178,000 square metres

#9178,000F 77 K

: 100%

: 2Q 2020

—T-TFE=-F

Enchanté Crest is a residential development
project located in Huangpi District, Wuhan,
Hubei Province in the Panlongcheng Economic
Development Zone situated at the junction of
Songjiagang East Road and Huayun Road. It
occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
61,000 square metres and has an aggregate
planned gross floor area of approximately
178,000 square metres. The project is designed
as a high-end residential community comprises
low-rise apartments for first home buyers and
upgraders. Development of the project that
commenced in the fourth quarter of 2017 is
expected to commence pre-sale in the second
quarter of 2018 and reach completion by the
second quarter of 2020.

FEREEAMANBILEAR ZMERERBENL
ERERARERREEEERIRZEEEE
THE - B BRMIELY A61,000F 5K BREE
EEEAEL A178,000F 5K - ZIBEBHE A
NEE BXEFPAINSExR/ISEFER"
ERZE—CEFFOZFFHT B ZFE—N
FE_THBEE R _TFEFE_FBI -

Wuhan Scenery Cove I # & 5K i

Project

HE AW

Location
3 B

Usage

A&

Site area

3t 42 T 18

Gross floor area
RIEE A

Group's interest
REBMIGER
Expected construction
completion date
TEEAESE TR 2Rk A 53

: Wuhan Scenery Cove

REHHRKE

. Between south of Third Ring and Fourth Ring of

Wuhan, Hubei Province, the PRC
FEHIE AR ETRE - REMMNIEZE

. Residential

(s

. Approximately 52,400 square metres

#952,400F 75 2K

: Approximately 210,000 square metres

#9210,000F J5 %

: 100%

©1Q 2021

B —FFE—F

Wuhan Scenery Cove is a residential development project located in
between the south of Third Ring and Fourth Ring of Wuhan, Hubei
Province with close proximity to Huangjiahu University Town and the
2019 Military World Game Stadium. The site is well equipped with

transportation, social and lifestyle facilities, including the nearby
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Metro Line No. 8 Stadium Station. It occupies
an aggregate site area of approximately 52,400
square metres and has an aggregate planned
gross floor area of approximately 210,000
square metres. The project is comprised of two
phases. Development of the villa portion is
expected to commence in the second quarter of
2018 with pre-sale to be launched in the third
quarter of 2018 and delivery to buyers in the
third quarter of 2019. Development of the high-
rise portion is expected to commence in the
second quarter of 2018 with pre-sale to be
launched in the fourth quarter of 2018 and
delivery to buyers in the first quarter of 2021.

REEBKEAUANILEARETE ZIRER
WMIRZEZEFEEREIER @ MO HRKER
FZE-NFHABEAEHLHE KB MT
ERESRETE - M ES G TENY - &
AR & 4 A52,400F K - DR @ mEmE
B4 A210,000F K - BB H o M HI %
FEMLHEFR T —NFE_FTHT - BF
F-EHKBEE R_ZE-HhEF=ZEXHEB
X SENOBEAR_E—NEE_FTFHT -
AEFNETREEE RZE-_—FF—FX
NHER-



Pearl River Delta

KZAME

Huizhou Hallstatt See X M 7L 9% « U5 Jjiti 3% &5

Project . Hallstatt See

HAE AW Ak o EHEE

Location : Mai Tian Ling, Boluo County, Huizhou City,

3 24 Guangdong Province, the PRC
HEEREEMTEREEEMSE

Usage . Residential

A& F=

Site area : Approximately 984,000 square metres

3t 28 T T8 #)984,000F 75 2K

Gross floor area . Approximately 1,003,000 square metres

BEHEEE #91,003,000F 75 2K

Group's interest : 100%

REEMIGEER

Expected construction : 4Q 2019

completion date T -NFEEFE

BHEETETKAH

Hallstatt See is a large-scale residential development project located
at Mai Tian Ling, Boluo County, Huizhou City, Guangdong Province
with close proximity to many amenities including golf course.
Surrounded by hills and a 20-acre lake, the project occupies an
aggregate site area of approximately 984,000 square metres and has
an aggregate planned gross floor area of approximately 1,003,000
square metres. The project received 4A tourist attraction rating by
China National Tourism Administration in 2015, and was given an
award for its innovative cultural and resort real estate model in the
10th Annual Real Estate Billboard event hosted by China Commercial
Real Estate Commission. The project is comprised of seven phases.
Development of Phase | and part of Phase Il was completed and
delivered in 2013 and 2014 respectively. Construction of the
majority of Phase Il and Phase Ill was completed in November 2015.
In 2017, a contracted sales of around 32,160 square metres were
recorded under this project.

hiFeREEHEAUREREBINMIEEHZE
RaEs KAUEEHRBE  MORZTUEBE
IS EE MR - AL K20 2 AR
o A R FE 4 5984,000F K - BRI
EEEEL A1,003,000F 5K - ZBER-F
— R FEFE BRI RTE BB RIALR K 2
SE - VTRE2HIFBEEHENSRRET
[EHE R E 5 E &R X b E R E R EE
NEIFTRHE| - ZBEHESLHERE - E—HMU
FE_BHAEI>IRSINR_TE—=ZFR_F
—NFRIRRNER: E= - ZHRBHE
HETERERZ-ZZE—HFT—HABRI -R=-F
—tF ZEENELOHEHEEENA32,160F
FkK e
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Pearl River Delta

KZAME

Foshan Academic Royale fil Il 5% 3¢ 4 bk

Project : Foshan Academic Royale

BE AW BRI SR
Location At Lujingdong Road, Chancheng District, Foshan,
b 25 the PRC
Hh B 1L A A R AR R R
Usage . Residential
& x=E
Site area . Approximately 42,500 square metres
A2 T 78 #942,5007F 77 K
Gross floor area : Approximately 187,000 square metres
HEHEEE #7187,000F 75 2K
Group's interest : 100%
REEEER
Expected construction 1 2Q 2021
completion date —E-—FF-F
TEHIEETIRTK B B

Foshan Academic Royale is a residential development project located
at Lujingdong Road, Chancheng District, Foshan. Being situated in
the Guangzhou-Foshan Urban Integration Development Region, the
project is located at the junction of the Central Nanhai District and
Chancheng District, within half an hour drive to Guangzhou and the
core districts of Foshan. It occupies an aggregate site area of
approximately 42,500 square metres and has an aggregate planned
gross floor area of approximately 187,000 square metres. The
project that comprises mainly high-rise buildings will be developed
into a quality residential community for first home buyers and
upgraders. The project is comprised of two phases. Development of
Phase | that commenced in the first quarter of 2017 is expected to
launch pre-sale in the second quarter of 2018 with expected
completion for delivery to buyers in the fourth quarter of 2020.
Development of Phase Il is expected to commence in the second
quarter of 2018 with pre-sale to be launched in the second quarter
of 2019 and delivery to buyers in the second quarter of 2021.
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Guangzhou Greenery Terrace & J & ti &

Project : Greenery Terrace
BE LW BHe
Location : At Xingnan Avenue, Nancun County, Panyu District,
Hh Bh Guangzhou, the PRC
o B N 2 R I R A SR B g K
Usage . Residential
& x=E
Site area . Approximately 30,600 square metres
3t 52 T & #930,6007F 77 2K
Gross floor area : Approximately 29,000 square metres
BB THE #929,0007F 77 2K
Group's interest : 100%
ANEB ARG HERS
Expected construction : 4Q 2019
completion date —T-NEFENF

HHRETRTEX A Y

Greenery Terrace is a residential development project located at
Xingnan Avenue, Nancun County, Panyu District, Guangzhou within
the Huanan New Town Zone. Being one of the few low-density sites
located in the Huanan New Zone, the close proximity to Metro Line
No. 7 and the various developments and facilities in the Wanbo
Commercial Area in the near future will add tremendous value to
the project. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
30,600 square metres and has an aggregate planned gross floor
area of approximately 29,000 square metres. The project will be
developed into a high-end low-density villa community.
Development of the project that commenced in the third quarter of
2017 is expected to launch pre-sale in March 2018 with expected
completion for delivery to buyers in the fourth quarter of 2019.

BHERMMRENTEREMNERENEZ
TEZERIEL  HEEMIRRE  ZEHiED
EMETEHIE RIS REREERE
MEEZERREE BERBERAZBEEFIER
B o ZIAH AM B TEIEL R30,600F 5K - 2
BB MZE AL B29,000F 5 K BEEAR
SmEEERNER BERZE—tFE=FH

T BARZZE-N\EF=_AMAKEE R_F

—NEEFONFERTRIMNEK
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Pearl River Delta

K=/AitE

Hong Kong Yau Tong Project 7 ¥ 1 3 3 H

Project

HA &
Location

B

Usage

&

Site area
AR T R

Gross floor area
#RRE H H AR
Group's interest

REBEMGHER

completion date

Expected construction

: Yau Tong Project
HYEEE

. Yau Tong Inland Lot No. 44 at the junction of
Shung Shun Street and Yan Yue Wai, Yau Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
EENEHERGEHECTER R AMRILR

: Residential
T=

: Approximately 10,500 square metres
#910,500F 77 2K

. Approximately 53,000 square metres
#953,000F 77 >k

: 100%

1 2022
= —

=

BHZETREEK A D

Yau Tong Project is a residential development project located at the
junction of Shung Shun Street and Yan Yue Wai, Yau Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. With idyllic and unobstructed view of the
Victoria Harbour, the development offers stylish and relaxing living
environment. It occupies an aggregate site area of approximately
10,500 square metres and has an aggregate planned gross floor area
of approximately 53,000 square metres. The project is comprised of 4
high-rise blocks with 688 units which are mostly small to medium-
sized, to meet owner occupier and upgrade demand from single and
expanding families. It also provides three and four-bedroom units for
self-use and upgrade demand. Development of the project has
commenced in the fourth quarter of 2017 with pre-sale scheduled to
commence in 2020. The construction of the project is expected to
complete in 2022.
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Land Bank

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a land bank developable
in gross floor area of approximately 3.86 million square metres
across 20 real estate development projects in 11 cities, namely
Beijing, Yingkou, Langfang, Tianjin, Nanjing, Changsha, Wuhan,
Huizhou, Hong Kong, Foshan and Guangzhou.

New Land Bank Acquisition

Throughout the year of 2017, the Group has added four new
projects to its real estate development portfolio and thus the
developable gross floor area of land bank increased by
approximately 901,000 square metres. The total cost and average
cost for the newly acquired land amounted to approximately
RMB12.4 billion and approximately RMB13,800 per square metre
respectively. Amongst these project locations, Wuhan is a core
regional city of high importance, the debut entry of which
strengthens the Group’s strategic positioning in Central China. The
acquisition of two parcels of land in Nanjing, where the Group has
already established a solid footprint, further consolidates the
Group's leading position in the local market with enhancing brand
penetration that continue to promote rapid expansion of the Group.

Attributable

+- Hb f5 A

WN_ZE—+tE+_A=Z+—HB AEFEET
T EEHEFREESMHRIER - &0 -
HeoRE - BR-RD CRZ-BMN -BE- G
IWEEMN+—@ERT ARSI hHEER
12 T T 18 49 /53,860,000 75 K °

W - M 5k

RZEBE—+tF AEEFENEAEMEERIE
B THEEZRTHRBEmEERMmMIE ML
901,000 75 K o ¥138 +#b 2 i K4 AB12418 7T
ARME - L AL B EF J5K13,8007T
ARB - Hip AEBEBEXRHEE#ARZEE
ROERHEHET  AREEMREZEERRE
HEBNEERE ERAAEERAMEE
BAMEBER LHE BE-—PREAERRT
ERMIEHNELA  IRARBEE N FHE
HHEREBEBARRER -

Estimated Average
GFA Total land cost

interest to  Site area i land cost* EH LA
the Group {EtEHE #EEE  ELHRE* (RMB per sq.m.)
Location/Project Property type F5E (sq.m.) (sq.m.)  (RMB million) (BEHX
e/ THE WRER FistER  (FRK) (FFK) (AREEER) ARBTT)
1. Wuhan Enchanté Crest Residential 100.0% 61,000 178,000 770 4,300
RERNER =
2. Wuhan Scenery Cove Residential 100.0% 52,400 210,000 1,011 4,800
REERKE %
3. Nanjing Pukou Project Residential 39.8% 83,400 283,000 4,150 14,700
MREHEE fF=E
4. Nanjing Hexi Project Residential & commercial 33.9% 43,000 230,000 6,500 28,300
HRAEEE FERBE

Note: on 100% equity basis

5 LA100% A E A
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SPECIALISED CONSTRUCTION

The Group is engaged in the business of specialised construction
mainly encompassing the services of design, production and
installation of curtain walls system and associated metal works via
Condo Shanghai for the PRC market, Condo Hong Kong for the
Hong Kong market and Condo Macau for the Macau market. In
2017, the revenue derived from this operating segment showed an
increase of 1.0% to HK$964.3 million (2016: HK$954.8 million) and
its operating results, net of intra-group transactions, showed an
operating loss of HK$123.7 million (2016: operating profit of
HK$48.2 million).

n
3

|

Condo Hong Kong's active participation in both private development
and public sector over the years has earned itself positive market
recognition within the construction sector, which has led to an
increase in project bidding invitation. However, as curtain wall
construction companies from other regions entering into the Hong
Kong market, competition has intensified. In view of the shortage of
skilled labour, rising trend in direct and indirect costs, Condo Hong
Kong implemented a relatively conservative bidding strategy and
underwent tight risk management measures. In 2017, Condo Hong
Kong has secured new tenders amounting to approximately HK$300
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million with projects on hand amounting to approximately HK$552
million as at 31 December 2017. During the year of 2017, Condo
Shanghai has prioritised operational risk management and secured
new tenders amounting to approximately RMB462.4 million with
projects on hand amounting to approximately RMB371.0 million as
at 31 December 2017. The completion of MGM Cotai Project in
Macau has earned positive recognition from the main contractor and
the employer and thus deepening Condo Macau’s market presence
in Macau and neighbouring areas.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group’s investment property portfolio in Hong Kong comprises
two commercial office buildings, namely China Minmetals Tower in
Tsimshatsui and LKF 29 in Central,
units, all of which are located in Hong Kong with a total gross floor

together with four residential
area of 15,826 square metres. As retail sales continued to be
adversely affected in 2017, popular tourist districts including Central
and Tsimshatsui have seen waves of early surrenders. Occupancy
rate in the said districts have dropped to a new low level in recent
years with significant downward revision in rental rate. Apart from
downward revision on rental rate, the Group also followed market
practice to give marketing incentive to attract potential tenants.

In 2017, in view of intensified rental market competition in Central
and Tsimshatsui, the revenue from this operating segment decreased
0.8% to HK$64.0 million (2016: HK$64.5 million). As at 31
December 2017, the occupancy rate of LKF 29 was 87.4% (31
December 2016: 82.0%) while China Minmetals Tower was 95.0%
occupied (31 December 2016: 97.3%).

4 .L.
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97.3%) °
Building China Minmetals Tower Building LKF 29
ANE A TEAEBBAE NE % LKF 29
Location 79 Chatham Road South, Location 29 Wyndham Street, Central,
3 2 Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong 3 2 Hong Kong
EENEBRDBERBER T 5K EETPRERE - TR
Usage Commercial Usage Commercial
A & [EES A& [EES
Lease term Medium term Lease term Long term
HE R 5] HE R A
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ENTRUSTED ASSET MANAGEMENT

During the year of 2017, the Group has recorded RMB30 million in
management fee income according to the entrusted management
service agreement whereby China Minmetals entrusted the Company
with the management of non-listed assets within its real estate
development and construction division. The entrusted assets include
real estate development and management projects in Beijing, Tianjin,
Shenyang, Liaoning, Qinghai, Hunan and

Shandong, Jiangsu,

Guangdong.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
During the year of 2017, the Group’s operations were financed
mainly by cash flows generated internally from business operations
as well as borrowings.

As at 31
restricted cash and bank deposits) of the Group amounted to
HK$5,631.9 million (2016: HK$5,431.5 million), of which 93.0%,
3.4%, 2.5% and 1.1% (2016: 89.5%, 9.1%, 0.7% and 0.7%) were
denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollar, United States dollar

December 2017, cash and bank deposits (excluding

and Macau Pataca respectively.

The Group had utilised financing to supplement internal resources to
finance the acquisition of new projects and the development of
existing projects. Total borrowings of the Group stood at
HK$14,748.2 million as at 31 December 2017 (2016: HK$11,614.4
million), which mainly comprised borrowings from banks and bond
issuance. The net gearing ratio (net debt to total equity) of the
Group was 62.4% (2016: 69.5%) as at 31 December 2017.

The weighted average borrowing costs of the Group maintained at
a low level of around 3.81% (2016: 3.87%).
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The maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings is as follows:

AEBZERIHBERDT

As at 31 December

B+=B=+—H
2017 2016
—F-tE —E-RF
HKS$ million HK$ million

BEET % BEEAT %
Within one year —FRQ 3,978.2 27.0 299.6 2.6
In the second year E-F 35.9 0.2 5,902.9 50.8
In the third to fifth year FEZEZFERF 9,765.1 66.2 4,452.0 383
Beyond five years HFE 969.0 6.6 959.9 8.3
Total st 14,748.2 100.0 11,614.4 100.0

The currency profile of the Group’s borrowings is as follows:

AEBZEREEBRDT

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
“E—tF§ —E—RF
HKS$ million HK$ million
BEEET % BEBL %
Renminbi AR 143.5 1.0 299.6 2.6
Hong Kong Dollar BT 11,882.0 80.6 8,618.4 74.2
United States Dollar ET 2,722.7 18.4 2,696.4 232
Total st 14,748.2 100.0 11,614.4 100.0

The finance costs charged to the profit or loss for 2017 amounted MR =Z—+tF  EHBRUER LN BAERES
to HK$114.7 million (2016: HK$55.7 million) after capitalisation of %7 %539,100,000/%8 7t (=& — /< & : 407,200,000
HK$539.1 million (2016: HK$407.2 million) into properties under J&7T) & » RIBiENIERR 2 B F5 R 7N 114,700,000
development. The unutilised banking facilities of the Group & Jt(=Z — /X4 : 55,700,000/ Jt) /N &£ &
amounted to HK$4,544.5 million (2016: HK$3,464.6 million) as at R-ZE—+E+_A=+—BEARFEA LT

31 December 2017.

B & % 8 54,544,500,00008 T (=T — X F ¢
3,464,600,0007 7T) °
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND INTEREST RATES

Exchange Rate Risk

The Group’s principal business is located in China where external
financing is denominated in Hong Kong dollar and revenue is
denominated in Renminbi primarily. The Group is exposed to
exchange rate risk on transactions that are denominated in a
currency other than Hong Kong dollar, the reporting and functional
currency of the Company. The Group has been closely monitoring
the fluctuation in Renminbi exchange rate and has adopted
necessary measures to minimise the impact arising from adverse
currency fluctuation including adjustment to the proportion of
borrowings in foreign currency and utilisation of foreign exchange
hedging instruments such as forward foreign exchange contracts or
capped forward contracts. During the year, the Group has entered
capped foreign exchange contracts with certain banks in order to
hedge against exchange rate risk at an aggregate nominated sum of

UsS$80 million.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is also exposed to interest rate risk resulting from
fluctuation in interest rates. Most of the borrowings of the Group
was on a floating rate basis and therefore, an increase in interest
rate would raise the Group’s interest cost. In order to mitigate the
interest rate risk, the Group entered into interest rate swap
contracts in which the Group would receive interest of one-month
HIBOR and pay monthly interest at a fixed rate based on the
notional amount of HK$3.6 billion. As at 31 December 2017,
approximately 42.9% (2016: 54.2%) of the Group’s borrowings was
on a fixed rate basis after hedging with the remainder on a floating

rate basis.
As at 31 December 2017, save as disclosed above, the Group had

not possessed any kind of financial instruments for hedging and
speculative purposes.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, certain assets of the Group were pledged
to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group and
mortgage loan facilities to the purchasers of the Group’s properties,
and these pledged assets of the Group included:

i inventories with carrying amounts
HK$6,165,669,000 (2016: Nil); and

of approximately

il 100% equity interests in subsidiaries.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, guarantees given to banks for mortgage
facilities granted to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties
amounted to HK$13,142.9 million (2016: HK$13,688.8 million). Such
guarantees will terminate upon the earlier of (i) the issuance of the
property ownership certificate which will generally be available
within one year after the purchasers taken the possession of the
relevant properties; or (ii) the repayment of mortgaged loans by the
purchasers. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals
together with accrued interest owed by the defaulted purchasers to
the banks and the Group is entitled to take the possession of the
related properties upon default in mortgage payments by such
purchasers. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to retain
the property sales proceeds previously received from such purchasers
and sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to
the banks. Therefore, after taking into account the creditworthiness
of the purchasers, the Directors consider that no provision is
required in the consolidated financial statements for the guarantees.

EMPLOYEES

The total number of staff of the Group, including the Directors,
increased 5.2% to 785 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 746). The
Group will continue to adopt a remuneration policy in line with local
market practice and standards. The total remuneration and benefits
for the Directors and staff of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 were approximately HK$356.8 million (2016:
HK$254.7 million).

He Jianbo
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
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/\ Corporate Governance Report

TP P

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to
and responsible for the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices. The Board has put in place a corporate governance
structure for the Company which is principally responsible for setting
directions, formulating strategies, monitoring performance and
managing risks of the Group. The respective Board committees
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year ended 31
December 2017,
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing

the Company has complied with the code
Rules, except for the following deviation:

1. Code provision A.4.2 requires that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy in listed companies be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their

appointment. Every director, including those appointed for a

specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at

least once every three years.

Instead of having elected at the first general meeting,

Directors (save for the Chairman and the Managing Director)

appointed by the Company to fill a casual vacancy are subject

to election at the first annual general meeting after their
appointment. Besides, all Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in the manner as set out in the said code provision
save for the Chairman and the Managing Director of the

Company where they are not required to do so pursuant to

the private company act 1991 by which the Company was

incorporated.

2. Code provision A.6.7 requires that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders.
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Mr. Cui Hushan, a non-executive director of the Company, HREBUEN ALY FRTESER

was not available to attend the Company's annual general e EREEFARTR_E—+tFAHA
meeting and special general meeting held on 31 May 2017 ST —HRTZEREBFREG KRR
due to ad hoc business commitment. KE o

BOARD OF DIRECTORS HEH

The Board assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of ZEEC@EEABEREEAARNZERE T &
the Company and is collectively responsible for directing and BEBEHRBENEBARNAZEEK : MEBRAE
supervising the Company's affairs. The day-to-day management, BIMEGHITAARZAEEERE THEEE
administration and operation of the Company, however, are EE7% -

delegated to the management of the Company.

The Board comprises nine members as at the date of this Annual RAFRBH EFSHLBERTMAK B

Report, the composition of which is set out below: Bt T
Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Director Designation Committee Committee Committee Committee
EEgE B 87 HITERE EXESE FMESE REEEE
Mr. Li Fuli Chairman & Non-executive Director M C
FRMNEE IRRFRTES
Mr. He Jianbo Deputy Chairman, Managing Director & Executive Director C M M
I %1% 5% &£ BEF EFRLERANTES
Ms. He Xiaoli Deputy Managing Director & Executive Director M
fPNER LT EFRIBKERNTES
Mr. Liu Zeping Deputy Managing Director & Executive Director M
2IAF K& EFERKBERUTES
Mr. Yang Shangping Deputy Managing Director & Executive Director M
BT EE BFERAKBERATES
Mr. Cui Hushan Non-executive Director
ERILEE FHTES
Mr. Selwyn Mar Independent Non-executive Director C M M
BHELE BUFNTEF
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria Independent Non-executive Director M C M
BEKLZL BUFHTES
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy Independent Non-executive Director M M M
AR B A BUFRTES
C: Chairman £ /& M: Member X 8
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On 27 March 2018, the Board has approved the appointment of
Ms. Law Fan Chiu Fun, Fanny in place of Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria
as an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from 1
April 2018.

Biographical details of Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile” in this Annual Report.
To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships amongst
members of the Board.

All Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of three
years. Save for the case of Mr. Li Fuli as disclosed in the previous
the Non-
executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-

paragraph headed “Corporate Governance Code”,

election provisions of the Bye-laws.

The Company has met the requirements of the Listing Rules to have
at least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third members of the Board and with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
accounting and financial management expertise and professional

qualifications.

The Company received written confirmations from all Independent
Non-executive Directors confirming their independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of
the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

The Directors acknowledge that they have a duty to act in good
faith and in the best interests of the Company and commit
themselves to spend sufficient time to perform their duties. They are
also aware of their collective and individual responsibility to
Shareholders. As such, they have taken active interest in the
Company’s affairs and obtain thorough understanding of the

business of the Company.
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ARBREEZTER RHBYUSEERRA
RHEBIYIBEESR UBPETEEERE -
PIEERBARRXN  ARAFEZHAR

The Company enables the Directors, upon request, to seek advice
from independent professional advisors at the Company’s expense in
the process of discharging their duties. The Company has also

arranged for appropriate liability insurance to indemnify Directors for 2 EERK - FEEHRITA R EH Mo 80X
their liabilities arising from corporate activities. BHRARGBIZIE-
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During the year, a total of four physical Board meetings and two &2
general meetings were held. Notice of not less than fourteen days is
given for regular Board meetings. The attendance of Directors is as

follows:

Name of Director

it amZﬁf\

ST

Number of meetings attended/held

HE BITERRY

Board Meeting
EEE

General Meeting

BREXE

Mr. Li Fuli FRATERZZTE—EFHA 3/3 2/2
(appointed on 18 May 2017) +ABEZT)

Mr. He Jianbo o] R 5 & 4/4 2/2

Ms. He Xiaoli fAl/NBE L 3/4 2/2

Mr. Liu Zeping 21 81 5 A 4/4 0/2

Mr. Yang Shangping HBEHFEEER_ZE—tFRA 3/3 0/0
(appointed on 22 June 2017) —t+_BEZMT

Mr. Cui Hushan ERILEE 4/4 02

Mr. Selwyn Mar HBHEELE 4/4 2/2

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria EERZ T 4/4 2/2

Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy R B o 3/4 2/2

Mr. Zhang Yuanrong RTEEE(R=_ZE—+tFHA 01 0/0
(resigned on 18 May 2017) + )\ B B {E)

Mr. Yin Liang ForEE(R_ZT—+tF A 1/1 0/2
(resigned on 22 June 2017) —+—-H §¥€E)
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING

AND DEVELOPMENT

On appointment to the Board, the newly appointed Director receives
a comprehensive induction package and training covering the
Company’s constitutional documents, internal policies, guidance and
procedures as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is thoroughly
aware of his/her responsibility under the Listing Rules and other

relevant regulations.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other
regulatory regimes. The Company provides monthly reports to
Directors which contain updates on business development and
financial information of the Group.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development. The individual training record of Directors for the year

ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Name of Director

Non-Executive Directors: ERITEE:
Mr. Li Fuli FRAMEE
Mr. Cui Hushan BRIl E
Executive Directors: BITESE:
Mr. He Jianbo fa] g% 5t &£
Ms. He Xiaoli fAl/NEB 2t
Mr. Liu Zeping 2181 7 5 4
Mr. Yang Shangping 15 11 5 A
Independent Non-executive Directors: MBI EHITEE :
Mr. Selwyn Mar BEESTE
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria EEKLLT
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy R B A

Paying visits
to Company’s

L A L R R g

EMAESER MESHESFENARE
HRFI - REARREBERE XM - REK
R-EIMBEFUREREEE R AER
EERESETEMBRITEEZERN A
RERSEFER EMRAUREMEBEER
I~ zEE-

o EEMEHEBN EHRA  BEER
REMEBENNETLEFRNER - KRQ A
NegANEEREAKRESHEBER LM
BERZ®mE -

MEEEHR2EFBEIXEREI -REBE
—EtEF+AZT-HLFE RERZ
Bl smT

Briefings &
updates on
business
operations &
compliance
matters
FHAXBEE
ERESEE
ZEBRR
EHEH

Attending
expert
briefings,
seminars &
conferences
HEHE
B et E
B 8

projects &
subsidiaries
RE
AATIEBR
P /8 2 B £ 75

4 4 v/
v 4 4
4 4

v 4 4
v/ 4 4
v/ 4 4
v 4 4
v v 4
v/ 4 4
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Fuli is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. He lJianbo is the
Managing Director of the Company. This segregation of roles
ensures that there is a clear distinction between the overall strategic
direction of the Group and the management of the Board by the
Chairman and the strategic planning and day-to-day management of
the Group’s business operations by the Managing Director.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

BY DIRECTORS

The Company has established a set of guidelines as its own “Rules
and Procedures for Directors and Relevant Employees of the
Company in respect of Dealings in Securities of the Company” (the
“Rules for Securities Transactions”) on terms no less exacting than
those contained in the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiries of all the Directors, they had
confirmed in writing that they had complied with the Rules for
Securities Transactions throughout the year ended 31 December

2017.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and its results and cash flows for the relevant financial
period. The Directors are also responsible for the timely publication
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017,
financial statements had been prepared in accordance with the

the Directors confirmed that the consolidated

statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards, made
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable, and
the consolidated financial statements had been prepared on a going
concern basis.

EN R E R R
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The Directors confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to
the best of their knowledge, information and belief, they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement made by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the independent
auditor of the Company, about their reporting responsibility on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
in this Annual Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility to establish and maintain
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
through the Audit Committee, to

effectiveness of such systems so as to protect Shareholders’ interest

systems and, review the
and to safeguard the Group’s assets. The Board has authorised the
management to design, implement and maintain its risk
management and internal control systems by clearly defined
responsibility, authority and accountability. Under the guidance of
the Audit Committee, the Audit Department of the

Company monitors the risk management and

Internal
internal control

systems by conducting independent reviews.

The Board acknowledges that effective risk management and
internal control are essential for long term growth and sustainability
of the Group. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Risk Management Framework

The Group adopts a “Top-down” and “Bottom-up” approach
whereby the three defensive lines formed by business units,
the management and the Internal Audit Department join hands
to identify, assess and manage significant risks at corporate,
operational and functional levels.

Each business unit and its management team has the duty to
manage its own risks in the course of its daily operations. It
requires the identifying, measuring and monitoring of the
management measures of individual risk to ensure that it is
within the risk appetite of the Group. It also requires the
implementation of risk management plans as recommended by
the Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee to
address those significant risks that may affect its operation.

The Audit Committee together with the Internal Audit
Department and management regularly monitor and update
the Group’s risk profile and appetite. By reviewing business
and operation reports from Internal Audit Department and
management, the Audit Committee assists the Board to
oversee the risk management and internal control systems on
an on-going bases and review its effectiveness with the
Internal Audit Department.

Directed by the Audit Committee, the Internal Audit
Department follows a risk-oriented approach to furnish annual
internal audit plan. The Internal Audit Department performs
internal audit works and reports findings to the Audit
Committee that provide the Audit Committee with an
independent and objective assessment on the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. The principle tasks of internal audit works of the year
include audit reviews of operations, controlling mechanism,
legal compliance and compliance of internal rules and
regulations. Special attention has been given to matters of
significant risks or changes.

B B A B 2R A
AEENEREBRBHEBEN T2
ERAZEBSB =W EAAR KA
(e bl I Tl e Rl &
EREBECEER CEBERBLE
EEESNCT&

EXEBEUNEEEBEBKEERATEEER
BRWRREETH SHEEH &
ErRERERRERNERER  LEFA
SEERAZE S LREREESE
RERZBEGZEZ REHTEENRA
REEE NEEFEEXRBKEFNE
K e

ERZESERAEENHILEEEEN
ERREHANEENRR %%%ﬁ%ﬁ°
ERZESRBAEENBMEEERER
MEBNEERS HHEFEREEE
R\ E IR R M EREEEE R A I B A A
uB*ﬁnTﬁﬁazw/LHﬁﬁ)&@"

NEEABEBREZZEGMNETR =17
VAR 23 B R 2 77§ 6l E B F R RIEER
A8l AEEFREZLZESERAE
B REAEER  RHAREEMAR
EERGARENBLRZENMG - AFE
E’JEEWT“*%IT’F BREmAERE
CERAL ARIER CERNAER
7%%9‘JEI’JL—H N EMEIREFEE
RERHENEBH)EIR -

AmMESRAF —T—+&4% | 59



Corpora&e(]overnance Report

03

60

= EAWRE

Internal audit reports are presented at the Audit Committee
meetings. Major findings and recommendation are followed up
and updated to the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
Minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are then tabled at
Board meetings to report the Audit Committee’s findings on
risk management and internal control issues such as changes
in the nature and extent of significant risks since the last
review, those newly identified risks of material nature that
require the attention of the Board, and the recommendation
or opinion on management’s response thereto.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information in accordance with its “Policy on Disclosure
of Inside Information” to ensure that inside information
remains confidential until disclosure and the dissemination of

such information is efficiently and consistently made.

Significant Risks and Control Measures
Significant risks have been identified through the process of
risk identification and assessment. A summary of the
significant risks of the Group together with the relevant
internal control measures imposed during the year is listed
below.

a. Working Capital and Debt Risk

Working capital and debt risk remains the key challenge
of the Group and it increased as compared to last year.
All of the Group's residential and commercial property
development and investment in mainland China are
subject to risks associated with the PRC property market
such as policy change, demand-supply rebalance, change
in overall economic conditions and availability of
financing which may pose an adverse impact on the
Group’s financial and operation condition.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is another significant risk identified by
the Group during the year. The events of default caused
by purchasers and strategic partners together with
human error and system inadequacies or failure may
bring about corresponding impact on the Group’s
operations where financial loss, litigation, and reputation
damage may follow.

Review of Risk Management and

Internal Control Systems

The Board shall, through the Audit Committee, review
the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee instructs
the Internal Audit Department to carry out independent
reviews to assess the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The management of the business units annually review
and update their risk registers, and provide assurance
that effective controls are embedded. They also conduct
self-assessment on internal control and confirm that
appropriate internal control policies and procedures have
been established and properly complied with. In
consideration of the Group's risk appetite (i.e. the extent
of risk the Group is willing to bear in pursuit of its
strategic and business objectives), the Audit Committee
reviews the following with reference to the assessment
made by the management and the Internal Audit
Department to assess the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems:

a. the provision of timely and comprehensive
information to the Audit Committee and the Board
to enable effective assessment of the monitoring
measures within the Group in areas such as the
reliability of financial reporting, the compliance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations and the
effectiveness of risk management;
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b.  reviewing internal audit reports to ascertain the
efficiency in rectifying internal control deficiencies
and status update on implementing of

recommendation provided by the Internal Audit

Department; and

C. reviewing management reports to assess the
principal business risk and the management’s
response to changes in the Group’s business and
external environment.

The Audit Committee initiates or as delegated by the Board,
directs independent investigations on material internal control
defects and reviews the findings and the management’s
feedback thereof.

Based on the assessments made by the management and the
Internal Audit Department and taking into account the audit
work of the independent auditor, the Board and the Audit
Committee consider that no significant areas of concern in
respect of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems were identified during the year of 2017.

Based on the review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems performed during
the year, the Board considers such systems effective and
adequate.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

A.

Audit Committee

All the members of the Audit Committee are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Audit Committee is principally
responsible for reviewing (i) the effectiveness of the financial
internal

reporting procedures and risk management and

control systems of the Group; (ii) the appointment of
independent auditor and the efficiency and quality of their
work; and (iii) all internal audit reports as well as management

feedback to such reports.

The Audit Committee held three meetings in 2017. The
attendance of the members of the Audit Committee is as

follows:

EHEZHEY

A.

EREHE
ERZEENRBYHRBUIFNITES  H
TEBE AR VBAKEZHMBER
BFEARRBREBNMABEZERSZER
o (B AZBEN 2 BT ARE TR
RMITIEEE - R(ii)rA A BPE RS A
REEEHZERENRERTR -

ERZEBERN _T—LFBTT=ZRE
#OBRRBHFEGRZBERLT

Attendance
Members of the Audit Committee EZRZEEERE H R E
Mr. Selwyn Mar — Chairman BHRELE — X8 3/3
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria mERAZ T 3/3
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy MR B S A 3/3

The major tasks accomplished by the Audit Committee during
the year are summarized as follows:

a. reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016, the
independent auditor’s letter to the management and the
annual results announcement, and made recommendation
to the Board for approval,

b.  reviewed the interim financial information of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and the interim
results announcement, and made recommendation to the
Board for approval,
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c.  reviewed the management recommendation furnished by EHNBEUZEMEREREE CEZ

64

the independent auditor and the response from the

REEREZEE:

management;

d.  reviewed the audit strategy provided by the independent EHNBUZEMELEHEE=-T—+
auditor and made recommendation to the Board for the FH+_A=+—BILLEFEZEZE
independent auditor's appointment, remuneration and B WMESSHME L ZEA N =
terms of engagement on audit services for the year E—tF T A=+ —HLMBF
ended 31 December 2017; EREZERG 2 BBAE - Fro R e

RBEHREEBER

e. reviewed and made recommendation to the Board on the 2 3 B {E 98 S A% BUAD 12 IE R BUAR
remuneration and terms of engagement of the BeFMEkERGRY ITHEFE
independent auditor for non-audit services; REEEBER

f.  reviewed with the management the accounting principles HEBERIAEBEMN 2L
and practices adopted by the Group; A & BBl

g. oversaw the development and implementation of the EERASERBREEERLNGEIM
Group’s risk management framework and assisted the HMIT W EEFERAEEEB
Board in conducting independent evaluation of the b ¥R 12 Fr A J% [2 B 5 22 A0 A B BE 4%
effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting AR 2B EITE A
procedures and risk management and internal control
systems;

h.  ensured that the management has fulfilled its duty to BMREBEBTELLAERBRD

establish and maintain effective risk management and
internal control systems including adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff working in the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function;

reviewed the top tier risks of the Group and recommended
mitigating actions therefor;

furnished opinions to the management on risks associated
with significant matters of the Group;
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k. reviewed internal audit reports prepared by the Internal
Audit Department, provided guidelines for internal audit
planning and reporting, and ensured that the internal
audit function was provided with adequate resources to
discharge its responsibility; and

reviewed the changes (where applicable) to the
procedures for monitoring connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions and the mechanism of
whistleblowing.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s proposal
regarding the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the Company’s independent auditor for the year ending 31
December 2018. The Company will put forward the relevant
resolution for approval by Shareholders at the AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of the Chairman of the
Board, the Managing Director and all the Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is principally
responsible for the review of the remuneration mechanism and
incentive scheme of the Directors and senior management, and
the establishment and maintenance of a reasonable and
competitive remuneration package to attract and retain
Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee was authorised by the Board to
determine the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management and make recommendation to the
Board for the remuneration of Non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2017. The FMEZESER T —tFRITT—RE
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee is B BEKEBEHEGRZIBANAT
as follows:
Attendance
Members of the Remuneration Committee FNEEERE HERE
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria — Chairman BEKZT — £F 11
Mr. Li Fuli FRAMEEMR-_ZE—LFRA
(appointed on 18 May 2017) TANBEZE) 0/0
Mr. He lJianbo ] RIR 55 4 171
Mr. Selwyn Mar BRETE 11
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy R B S A 11
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong RITEREERZZE—+tFhH A
(resigned on 18 May 2017) + N\ B &) 01
During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and SMEEgRAFEATRBABA_T X
approved the 2016 annual bonus proposal, the 2017 annual ¢fﬁ%k CCIE-LEFTEHAERE
salary adjustment proposal, the salary for a Non-executive TURRFERNEZFZIFRTESHE
Director cum Chairman of the Company and an Executive f%ﬂiﬂﬁ%?%%%m”?@,Z%EEI’\J%?@H°

Director cum Deputy Managing Director of the Company
appointed during the year.

C. Nomination Committee C. RAZE®

The Nomination Committee consists of the Chairman of the REZEEKRERRESFEXR B8
Board, the Managing Director and all the Independent Non- ﬁ‘“@&%h BUHNITEE AFERE
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee is principally RETEENEEARE - VERRERZAE
responsible for formulating policy for nomination of Directors EHEBREAEEHAE BRIEFSH
and leading the process of identifying and nominating B ANBURAEK UREFLZEESFUR
candidates suitably qualified to become Board members. It RAEREEAGITHRBHETHEEEE
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board and MEFFRIDEBRERL I BEREE
makes recommendation to the Board on re-appointment of ENERNBIIERTEENBE LI -

Directors as well as succession plan for the Chairman and the
chief executive of the Company. The Nomination Committee
also reviews the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.
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The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the equality of its performance. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, which
include but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, integrity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Nomination Committee has the
primary responsibility for the implementation of such policy and
review of its effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in 2017. The
attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee is as

EFERMMIEFEXREZTIERE]

JIBEEG REREKEZ TEMEIN
i BEENR RIS TRER/E
. BREETRL)ER - Fik - XIER

HEES B BXRLH X A3
ERHEEH - REZECAEEEARR
HTT > TEEFmE ZBER - AERZ
BRITZ B

REZBEN_Z—LFETT—XE
#FOBERBHREERZBROT

follows:
Attendance
Members of the Nomination Committee REEEE B N
Mr. Li Fuli — Chairman FRERMNEE —FERZZE—+LFRHA
(appointed on 18 May 2017) +NA\HEZT) 1/1
Mr. He Jianbo fa] 178 58 & 11
Mr. Selwyn Mar HBHRETE 1/1
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria BRI 11
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy R B O A 11
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong RITEEER=ZZE—EFHA
(resigned on 18 May 2017) + )\ B & {1E) 0/0

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors, the
structure, size and composition of the Board and the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company.

RAZBEENFRRN CBEILIFATES
B EERRBMABLAERK A
ERARREZEXNBLZTIEHRESEH -

AmMESRAF —T—taE® | 67



Corpora&z(]overnance Report
TEERRE

D. Corporate Governance Functions
The Board
Company's corporate governance policy and performing the

is collectively responsible for determining the
following duties:

a. to develop and review policies and practices on corporate

governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and compliance of legal and

regulatory requirements;

b. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct of
the Company; and

C. to review the Company’s compliance of the CG Code as
well as the disclose made in the Company’s Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the position on the
CG Code compliance and approved the Corporate Governance
Report contained in the Company’s 2017 Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
the independent auditor of the Group, received approximately
HK$3.95 million (2016: HK$3.78 million) for audit services, and
approximately HK$0.9 million (2016: HK$1.2 million) for non-audit
services which include the review of the 2017 Interim Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chung Wing Yee has been acting as Company Secretary of the
Company since August 2006. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Chung has
participated professional training activities for more than 15 hours in

2017.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

A. Convening of special general meeting on
requisition and putting forward proposals at
general meetings
Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
share capital of the Company which carries the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company have the right to
requisite the Directors to convene a special general meeting of
the Company. The requisition must state the purposes of the
meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist and
deposited at the registered office of the Company.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting,
the requisitionist, or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a special general meeting of the Company.

B. Enquiries from Shareholders
The Company’s website provides email address, postal address,
fax number and telephone number by which enquiries may be
put to the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTMENT COMMUNITY

The Company attaches great importance to communications with
Shareholders and the investment community (which refers to the
Company’s potential investors and research analysts reporting and
analysing the Company’s status and performance).

Corporate information is communicated to Shareholders and the
investment community by way of the Company’s announcements,
website, meetings with shareholders and general investor relations
activities.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

AREREAIRFERZ BB /B
Eﬁﬁ—rﬁ’?ﬁﬂﬁ’% BEGER2EERE - AR
AEBRARERIERL A B R HED R -

It is believed that effective communication with investors is essential A A
for promoting their understanding of the Group’s business
development. The Company releases property sales update by way of

announcement and press release on a regular basis.

A. Announcements and corporate website T 8% 2 & B A w) 44 0
The Company maintains its corporate website at AN @35 B E At www.minmetalsland.com
www.minmetalsland.com where announcements, financial BHAG FERREBAESELRTE
reports, press releases and update information of the Group # Eﬂx%&&ﬁ)\iﬁﬁ—rﬁi BAREET]
are available. It serves as a key channel for Shareholders and FEMCEEZRB -WMRNMAIBBAQD A
the investment community to access reliable and timely WU E R A ﬁﬁzﬁ}mﬁjgu@&%%ﬁ
information about the Company. Shareholders would raise "o
enquiries or provide feedback via the designated section on
the Company’s corporate website.
The following corporate information is posted on the KA ATHRRERBEREN T4
Company’s website immediately thereafter the same has been Uit BEEINE B H AN AR A
released by the Company to the website of the Stock
Exchange:
— announcements, notices and circulars — AE -BENRBEXK
— annual reports and interim reports — FHRERPH®RE
—  Bye-laws — ZFRRRERE
— list of Directors — EEEH
—  terms of reference of all the committees of the Board — EFEgRTZZEgCBEAE
—  procedures for nomination of Directors by Shareholders — BRREZEZEFZER

B. General meetings of Shareholders Ji oK &
Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings AAFEBRREGAFLERRRNE - X
or to appoint proxies to attend and vote on their behalf if BEHEE  MAZEREREEETRE
they are unable to attend the meetings. They are welcome to FHRE - RARBBORENARERERNE 12
raise questions and comments at general meetings where FREXRER EFERERARTE L
members of the Board and independent auditor of the REMEERE LEERR 2RERH-
Company are delighted to answer.
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Shareholders are informed of the voting procedures of general
meetings by the chairman of the general meeting. The
Company also provides Shareholders with sufficient and timely
information concerning the date, location and agenda of
general meetings and other information regarding issues to be
decided at general meetings.

The Company ensures votes cast are properly counted and
recorded. Independent scrutineers are appointed to count the
number of votes cast at general meetings. The Company
announces and publishes, on the same day of the general
meeting, the poll voting results on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

Investor relations activities

We believe that, to enhance corporate governance, regular and
effective communication with investors is essential and in
particular, for their understanding of the Company’s business
development. We endeavour to maintain regular meetings and
dialogues with the investment community through participation
in investor conferences, analyst and media briefings, non-deal
road shows and investors’ and shareholders’ visits.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS AH B 7 O
There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents (i.e. WRARFEER » AR FMEBESEHF (BIARRE

the Bye-laws) during the year. B)AWEEFRENE -
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il:l:l:l Environmental, Social and Governance Report

&iﬁ HERER #ﬁd:

OVERVIEW

In a rapidly developing real estate development industry with
growing demand in high-end residential developments, Minmetals
Land strives to fulfill our targets in investment and sales, real estate
development, specialised construction, property management and
sustainability development. To achieve our vision to becoming a
leading

incorporate sustainability into our operation and management

innovative and sustainable real estate developer, we
schemes in recent years. We hereby present our environment, social
and governance report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Report Scope

This report sets out Minmetals Land’s environmental, social and
governance practices and performances during the period from 1
January to 31 December 2017. It covers Minmetals Land’s Beijing
and Hong Kong offices as well as its real estate development
projects and property management services subsidiaries across the

country.

Report Guideline
This report is made in accordance with the Reporting Guidance on
KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix
27 to the Listing Rules.

Environmental

8 3t
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Communication with Stakeholders

In order to maintain good communication with stakeholders and
listen to their opinions and concerns, we maintain regular meetings
and frequent dialogues with stakeholders. Besides, the Company
releases corporate information on its corporate website, company
journals and reports. In 2017, the following communication channels

were adopted to address stakeholders’ major concerns.

BL$F Oy B 0
RTEEFNERTRENEBL T EMFIH
BERAMMBAEINZE RAEFNERTEH
GERYEFE U ARFRAB L - BT
REEREEMALIBIBENZIER - 1
TEEF EMEBATRENERTIER
MEERHRBEINESE -

Main Stakeholders Issues of Major Concerns Responses and Feedback

TERGE BEXEAIRE El 5 X

Government organisation e compliance with laws and regulations e  conducting business in compliance with
BT 7 4 e corporate governance relevant laws and regulations

: o AR EMRMETEBR

. e EER

Shareholders and potential e  financial performance
investors e risk management
R RELEE e information disclosure
y: . B
e [RRER
s [EREARE

&

Customers e quality of products and services
HEE
s EmLRBKEE

s FREBHETHRBER AR

e publishing announcements and reports
on annual results and interim results

e holding annual general meeting of
shareholders

e regularly updating the corporate
website to ensure timely release of
latest company information

s BEMFERTHREASE®RE

s BURRBEXRE

e TEHENLFAMEUER URRER
BRERHHNRAER

e hosting property expo and property
carnival to demonstrate product and
service quality

e providing multiple communication
platforms such as hotlines and
WeChat
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Environmental, Social and Governance

RE #HERERBE

Main Stakeholders

Report

Issues of Major Concerns

Responses and Feedback

FEHGE

Employees °
8T .
_‘. o

0 ~’_h ¥ .
o

°

o

o

Business partners o
B1ERH .

"

Community and the public e
e RkAR

EEERE

career development

salaries and welfares
workplace culture
occupational health and safety

BEZR
B e 48 A
Bk
BERFEELS

open, fair and equitable purchases
compliance of contracts

DA RFRAENRESDR
ETAH

engagement in community
development
environmental influences

HERERZ2EE

REFE

B &5 X

conducting annual and quarterly work
performance conferences

evaluating staff performance on a
regular basis

offering different types of training
activities and workshops

conducting department meetings
regularly

BRFELRFTETEER

EMFEETIRR
B[MZERETAREOFTIRE R
TS

EMRTHMAEZE

hosting suppliers’ conference
arranging press conference to promote
Minmetals Land’s branding

BRHERAE
BOTOBHEREEME

organising community events for
property owners from time to time
participating in environmental friendly
activities

arranging charity events

TEARTHMEETD
SERRNEED
LHEERY

Sustainability Mission and

Our corporate mission: “Building the Best, Creating a Legend”

Our corporate vision:
sustainable real estate developer”

74

“To becoming a leading innovative and

Vision
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OUR WAY FORWARD

Minmetals Land is the listed real estate flagship of China Minmetals in
Hong Kong. The Company engages in the business of real estate
development, specialised construction, property management, property
investment and securities investment. The Company’s real estate
development business covers the Pan Bohai Rim, Yangtze River Delta,
Central China and Pearl River Delta regions.

Our Projects

Currently, Minmetals Land has a portfolio of 20 real estate
development projects in the country. These projects have become
landmark projects in the vicinities where they are located and
gained considerable market recognition. Apart from its existing
project developments, the Company is also actively seeking
investment opportunities arising from other cities to enhance rapid
expansion with an aim of enabling Minmetals Land as a leading and

sustainable real estate developer in the PRC.

Pan Bohai Rim

1. Beijing Fortune Garden

2 Yingkou Platinum Bay

3. Langfang Minmetals Vanke City
4 Tianjin Minmetals International

Yangtze River Delta

Nanjing Sello Royale
Nanjing Academic Royale
Nanjing Yan Shan Ju
Nanjing Enchanté Oasis
Nanjing Enchanté Cove
Nanjing Pukou Project

= o R S
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Nanjing Hexi Project
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. Central China
12. Changsha LOHAS International Community
13.  Changsha Scotland Town
14. Changsha Qin Royale
15.  Wuhan Enchanté Crest
16.  Wuhan Scenery Cove

Pearl River Delta

17.  Huizhou Hallstatt See

18. Foshan Academic Royale

19. Guangzhou Greenery Terrace
20. Hong Kong Yau Tong Project

Our brands are authentic and all intellectual properties are protected
in compliance with the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China. In
2017, Minmetals Land continues to adopt standardised, intelligent
and environmental-friendly strategies to increase the efficiency and
quality of our real estate development projects and to raise our
brand value and reputation. Minmetals Land will continue to
develop high-end projects to meet the needs and requirements of

our customers.

Owur Services

In order to achieve sustainable development and maintenance of all
our real estate development projects, Minmetals Land offers far
reaching after sales services by its highly professional Minmetals
Grace Home Property Management Services team. With top-tier
hardware facilities and competent management personnel, the
professional working team provides not only a comfortable stay for
its customers, but also retains the value of the investment
properties. Our working teams have comprehensive and practical
experiences in property management services. Under the corporate
mission of “Building the Best, Creating a Legend”, the working
teams of Minmetals Grace Home use their best efforts in serving the
clients and gain recognition for its professional, market-oriented and
standardised services. We are committed to the provision of the
”37°C Living”
comfortable and modern.

to our customers and residents that is safe,
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Minmetals Grace Home T 0% B B 35 45 P 1 BX

Property Management Teams

Yingkou Minmetals Grace Home
EORESYE

7Tianjin Minmetals Grace Home @——7———

RERBRE

Nanjing Minmetals Grace Home
AR AENE

Changsha Minmetals Grace Home
Y RENRE

Huizhou Minmetals Grace Home
BINARERE

Yingkou Minmetals Grace Home ‘B0 TR B

As the vice presidential company of Yingkou Property Management {EAZOYEEEH eI e REN O ARE
Association, Yingkou Minmetals Grace Home is enthusiastic to make 1REBBFN  THEIF 2 HAEFTRHTE
innovative developments in services and offer breathtaking =SEE/NRGER -

experiences to property owners.
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Tianjin Minmetals Grace Home

Setting the mission of “Connecting with clients to create pleasant
living”, Tianjin Minmetals Grace Home continues to raise its brand
value and influence by providing outstanding property management
services that sets itself a good model in the industry.

Nanjing Minmetals Grace Home

Nanjing Minmetals Grace Home is a member of Nanjing Property
Management Association that provides best quality of services for
customers of Minmetals Land’s various real estate development
projects in Nanjing.
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Changsha Minmetals Grace Home

As a member of Changsha Property Management Association,
Changsha Minmetals Grace Home provides excellent services such as
maintenance of ancillary facilities and equipment, safety
management, community re-creational and culture activities and
other user-friendly services for various types of properties.

Huizhou Minmetals Grace Home

Huizhou Minmetals Grace Home has been awarded by Golden Key
International Alliance “Ultimate Luxury Mansion Award” and “Luxury
Mansion Ultimate Service Award”. To better serve the Hallstatt See
community, Huizhou Minmetals Grace Home continues to provide
high-end services to customers.
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Activities for Property Owners

To achieve our goal of providing excellent services and ideal living
style to property owners and residents, Minmetals Grace Home has
arranged from time to time festive celebration activities and sports
events during the year of 2017.

Festive Activities

Women's Day Celebration

BHR=I\IEXE

Mid-Autumn Festival Party
PRETBERBRE

—

EEWB
RTBERRHIBRERBNEERE URBE
THERAEXFNEEZRER ABUERZ
E—ttFATHRETIRHEESENHAE
REBLEEED -

Fii B 1% B

Celebrating of Mother’s Day
BRERE

New Year Decoration and Celebration activities

MERE BAEE
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Sports Events

Vertical Marathon

EESRN

Badminton Matches

TIEIRIL T

| Lake Run at Hallstatt See
S e iE Y IR R R B

eI

Sports For All Day
ERERADE

Lake Run at Platinum Bay

£H g S IR 9L BE

Free Yoga Classes

RERMNERRARE
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We make use of various communication channels to take note of the
needs and expectations of property owners and residents. In 2017,
we held seminars in our real estate development projects and took
the opportunities to listen to the opinions of owners. We also
organised equipment room open days to display our efforts in
promoting safety standards of our home place.

Communication Activities

Owners Congress
EXBoE

WORKING AT MINMETALS LAND

We believe that staff are Company’s valuable assets. We attach
great importance to human resource management on recruiting,
training and employee welfares. In the recruiting process, we ensure
that there is equal job opportunity for all candidates. We respect the
uniqueness of each of our staff and place utmost confidence in their
potential and abilities. We strongly encourage employees to promote
communication and mutual respect amongst themselves. We also
provide sustainable career development which includes competitive
remuneration package, incentives and a variety of training

programmes. Minmetals Land is committed to building and
maintaining a working environment that is safe, friendly and allow

for career aspiration for all staff.
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Join Us

In the recruitment process, we apply universal selection criteria that
are legal in all respects. To achieve this end, we adhere to strict
compliance with the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. We have formulated our own
Recruitment Policy which sets out in details our policies in
recruitment, compensation and dismissal, promotion, working hours,
holidays, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
fringe benefits and welfares. Staff may refer to the Employee
Handbook for internal rules and regulations relating to employment,
working hours, compensation, promotion, holidays, welfares and
code of conducts and ethics.

Minmetals Land is strictly prohibited to engage child labour or
forced labour. Given the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Regulation on the Implementation of the
Employment Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China, we
have stated clearly in the employment contract that Minmetals Land
and its employees are of equal legal status, and neither party may
impose its will on the other. There will be reference checks to make
sure that all employees are of 18 years old or above. During the
reporting period, there were no reported case of non-compliance of
these laws and regulations.

The enlighten thoughts of university graduates is essential to the
long-term development of the Company. We therefore organise
events to recruit such young talents across the country each year.
During the year of 2017, we hosted career fairs in 6 universities,
namely Nanjing University of Finance and Economics, Southeast
University, Nanjing University, Nanjing University of Science and
Technology, South China University of Technology, and Sun Yat-Sen
University.
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In 2017, Minmetals Land had a total number of 578 employees (i.e.
within the reporting scope of this report). The tables below provide
analyses of total workforce by gender, employment type, age group
and geographical location.

Gender

4 5l

Male Female

Category 2

Total no. of headcount

BTHEY 349 229

E-T—+FER ABRMERARERER
E)HXLIEAS78 BT - MR- EFEHEA - F
BRARARMES D EEE T ARNMTNERA
/—J_—\o

Age
FH#AR
Below
20
205
HUTF

20-29  30-39  40-49
20-29%% 30-395% 40-495%

10 127 267 143 31

Senior
Management

BREERE

Category

Total no. of headcount BT

Employee Category
BIEER
Middle

Management

PREERE

10 71 497

Location

Hong Kong BAE
Beijing b=
Tianjin Rz
Guangdong Province BRE
Jiangsu Province LEE
Hunan Province WA
Hubei Province iRt
Liaoning Province REA

Total no.

of headcount

ETHY

36
113
15
125
147
70
27
45
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Growing Together

In order to maintain the excellent standard of our real estate
development projects and property management services, we attach
great importance to training for enthusiastic and competent staff
members. We recognise the contributions that those well-equipped
staff would make to the Company. We are highly committed to
assisting our employees to make good use of their potential, to
enrich their knowledge, and to enhance their professional skills. To
meet our employees’ career aspiration, we have incorporated in our
Employee Handbook target and principles of our training
programme, details of the training courses, and the methodologies
adopted. A list of our training courses is set out below:

Training Series

BilRERT

Il R R
RTREEENFEHEZREBEAREHNY
XEERY IRUEZSEHEEH TERHR
M BXREAEASKFRENES  BEHI
BETHEARARKENEEE - Bt - HMAH
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XFCBRMAECEIFMFRLTBERE TH
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TRIEMEHERMNFIRERD

g

Job Qualification Training
fe i & & 559

Induction Training
AR

Professional Training
BEAMBE

Real Estate Development Training Series

HE R RS

Engineering Training Series

TEREBKRI

Law and Contract Studies Series
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We make use of different kinds of training methods to increase the
effectiveness of individual training course. Set out below are some
training programmes that we have organised during the year.

BT A ESZIRENYR - RAFHE
TEBRAERNBENTE - AT RBEMNF P EHR
B — LEE IR B R

After training activities,

e A

Internal and External Training Classes

Py B B Hh &B 1 Il BE

We invited lecturers with expertise on particular
fields to provide lectures.
HRAEHEREEEME  HMAFAEFHER
£ SR SRR £ & Y

e

Company Visits

SEHEER

We organised tours for employees to local and
overseas real estate development projects to study
their management modes and business strategies.

HMESEZEK28BA  HEMERBEERE -

I 2B H E AR B R -

7

there would be assessments on the

Forum Workshops

BEETIEH

We orgainised customised workshops for
individual departments to discuss management
strategies and those local and international hot
topics.

EAEBMIENEREARKENEBIfY -
TR E R AR A RE R SR T 3R -

Exchange Programme and Job Rotation
i T 137 i B i i B 3

Employees with good potential were offered
opportunities to a 3 to 6 months exchange
programme to gain hands-on work experience in
outsider companies.
BRAGEREENE I EBHEENARETA
HA={E A B F R TIERIR - WERE A BIRAE o

EE-RBIEBERE 2REHNETH

effectiveness of such activities. Employees who have participated in
the training course should complete an evaluation form in this
respect. Employees may also be required to attend interviews, writing
tests, oral examinations and to submit reports for such purpose.

FEHB(EILER) HMASABETIRER
AHEAERBIEHNEE  FHIARRER
#KER DA RBEEHAERES -
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Seminar on real estate development studies

A partner of Messrs. Mayer Brown JSM conducted a seminar on the
Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance to employees of
our Hong Kong headquarters in March 2017. There were thorough
discussions on the application, interpretation and practices of the
ordinance.

57 b 7 O i

R-ZE—LF=A FLIRMEBANEER
ARBERFETIEHENC—FEEWEHER
) BEATEMT S LEHEONER  BE
AREBERELRFRET T RANR -

In 2017, we have collected staff training and development data
from (i) Minmetals Land’s headquarters in Beijing, (ii) 3 real estate
in Huizhou,

development subsidiaries Nanjing and Changsha

respectively, and (iii) 4 property management subsidiaries in
Huizhou, Tianjin, Yingkou and Changsha respectively. Since all the
employees in this statistic sample had participated in the Company’s
training programs, an attendance rate of 100% was recorded in this
respect. The table below sets out the average training hours

completed per employee by gender and employee category.

Gender

14 5

Male
5

Category

Percentage of employees S IIEEED

Female

R-ZE—+F HARELFHET O RLEE
(=KD RN BMN BRERDPOFEHEE
F P /B8 2 B) DA R (i) R IR 0 B2 O M~ RO
EARRDPOMEEBRRNEIREINEHH
B-hEHEHEERN MEEIHEK2EBA
NRERHEOFIES  ZEIE T LHIES
100% © oM - FAPI o Bl iz BR1E Bl A K 42 & 18 5
o MATEREIKEINFERE:

Employee Category

&S &5
Middle

Management

iR E B E

Senior
Others
Hith

Management

T BREEE

receiving training 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Average training FH 8 Il

hours completed FOREEEEE

(hours/person) (/NEE/A) 29.2 25.4 22.0 23.7 29.6
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Professional Ethics

To achieve our goals in providing equal opportunities to all staff, we
appraise employees with regard to their abilities, skills and work
performances regardless of their age, gender, and ethnicity.
Employees should be familiar with the ethical requirements
regarding duties and responsibilities, conflict of interests, integrity
and the duty of confidentiality as stated in the Code of Conduct
and Business Ethics for staff of Minmetals Land Limited (the “Ethics
Code”).

Procurement Integrity & Anti-Corruption

Pursuant to The Invitation And Submission of Bids Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of
Hong Kong and the Corruption Prevention Advisory of Hong Kong
Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC), we commit to
offer our suppliers a fair bidding platform that tenders are assessed
with regard to quality, cost, and credibility. We will act in
accordance with the procurement policies of Minmetals Land at all
times. As such, the followings are strictly prohibited:

o revealing to others details of the submitted tenders before the
announcement of tender results

o bid rigging, price fixing, market division and all forms of
collusion that may affect the bidding results

o employees in contact with bidders in private or accepting,
soliciting any form of advantages or rewards from bidders

Duty of Confidentiality

The protection of our partners and consumers’ information is of
utmost importance to us. To secure consumers’ privacy, we adhere
to the strict compliance of the Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Hong Kong Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance. We also incorporate such requirement on the part of the
staff in the Ethics Code where employees are obligated to keep
confidential all information of contracts and consumers while they
are under employment and after they cease to be a staff of the
Company. Violation of this code provision would risk themselves
with legal liability.

Discrimination and Harassment

Minmetals Land is determined to providing an equal and
harassment-free working environment for all staff. As such, there is
zero tolerance of discrimination in race, ethnic groups, gender,
nationality or age.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Every employee is obligated to maintain the safety and health of the
workplace. We adhere to the strict compliance of the Work Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, and the Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance. We highlight in the Ethics Code employees’ duty to
immediately report cases regarding potential hazards in equipment
or operation process at work. In 2017, there were no recorded
cases of occupational death or injury.

Minmetals Land has established a system for occupational health and
safety to minimise the safety risks to employees and contractors.
Regarding safety training, Minmetals Land has formulated Production
Responsibility Regulation and Education and Training Regulation to
clearly define safety supervision duties as well as to strengthen
staff's safety awareness. For crisis management, we act in
accordance with Work Safety Incident Hazard Identification and
Control Regulation and Work Safety Incident and Violation Reporting
Regulation, which clearly specify actions that need to be taken
before and after safety incidents. Further, we have set up a
monitoring and reporting system and act in accordance with Work
Safety Incident and Violation Reporting Regulation, Work Supervision
and Monitoring Rules and Contractor Safe Working Management
Regulation to enhance production safety management of
contractors. The aforesaid regulations specify safety management
behaviors and responsibilities for both Minmetals Land and its
contractors for the purposes of preventing the occurrence of
accidents at work as far as possible.

The following occupational health and safety measures have been
applied in office management:

o providing sufficient sanitary equipment, such as protective
masks, antibacterial liquid hand soap and alcohol based
antibacterial tissues

o ensuring adequate lighting and circulation of fresh air in work
place

o regular cleaning of carpets, water dispensers and air-

conditioning systems

o regular pest control arrangements to prevent pest infestation

o providing influenza vaccinations

o conspicuous placement of emergency escape route diagrams in
offices

o implementing emergency preparedness by carrying out regular

safety inspections as well as holding health and safety
seminars and annual fire drills

o providing sufficient and appropriate firefighting equipment and
first aid facilities
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Changsha Fire Drill

On 13 May 2017, a fire drill training was organised by Changsha
Minmetals Grace Home. We invited local fire department to provide
training to our employees and property owners. They were taught of
safety evacuation in case of emergencies, operation of fire
extinguishers and basic first aid knowledge. We believe that it is
crucial to minimise exposure of safety risks to our employees and
property owners. We will continue to organise events of similar
nature and to encourage every one of us to participate.
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Employee Welfare and Activities

We considers our employees are valuable assets of the Company and
thus, we provide comprehensive welfare and benefits plan to meet
employees’ needs. It will also help them to make up their own plan
to secure a promising future. Apart from providing basic employee
benefits as required by laws and regulations, we offer further
welfare and benefits, such as annual body check-ups, medical, life
and accident insurance, employee’s compensation insurance, housing
and provident fund, paid annual leave, sick leave, marriage and
funeral leave. According to the Company’'s Welfare and
Reimbursement Policies, Beijing Headquarters offers a variety of
allowances for transportation, meal, cellphone fees as well as
holiday bonus. In times of birthdays, weddings, maternity periods,
sickness or bereavement of family members, employees are provided
with respective benefits. There are regular recreational and sports
activities for employees to enjoy a balanced lifestyle.

Celebrating International Women’s Day

Just a few days before the International Women's Day, our female
colleagues of the Beijing headquarters received hand cream gift
boxes. In the morning of the Women'’s Day, roses were distributed
to female staff. Later in the day, there was a workshop hosted by
cosmetic expert from China Central Television where our female
staff were advised on skin care and make up techniques.

Monthly Birthday Party

Our Beijing Headquarters started a new page in July 2017 that
monthly birthday party would be organised since then. On 14 July
2017, Mr. He lJianbo (our Deputy Chairman and Managing Director),
Mr. Yang Shangping (our Executive Director and Deputy Managing
Director) together with over 60 employees celebrated the birthday of
11 colleagues who were born in July. Mr. He gave his warmest
wishes to those colleagues and was delighted to see more welfare
events for employees to be organised in future. As such, Mr. He
hoped this would create a sense of belonging.
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PRESERVING NATURE

At the 19th National Congress of the Communist Party of China (the
“19th Congress”), the idea of green development had been
highlighted. Being a leading real estate developer who upholds
sustainability as one of its most significant development concepts,
we strictly comply with the national and local environmental
protection laws and regulations such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Energy Conservation Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental Impact Assessment, and the Water
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China. Besides, we have also formulated administrative measures to
conserve energy and water as well as to reduce waste in our daily
operations. In 2017, there was neither reported cases of prosecution
for violations of environmental protection laws and regulations
against the Company, nor has the Company received any complaints
in this respect.

Green Office

The Company believes that increasing employees’ environmental
protection awareness is the first step to achieve sustainability. In
2017, we advocated “Living in Harmony with the Nature”.
Accordingly, many of our subsidiaries and offices followed and
implemented green office policies to encourage low-carbon and
environmental-friendly working and living style. As a continuation of
our strategies in 2016, below are some of the relevant measures
that we had implemented during the year:

o using energy-saving products in office and turning off electrical
equipment such as fax machines, photocopiers, air
conditioners, lights, computers, etc. after office hours for
energy saving

o maintaining room temperature at 25.5 degrees in Celsius,
installing heat-dissipating double-net curtains

o advocating paper-free office by converting documents and other
papers into digital forms as environmental-friendly measures to
save money and boost productivity

o by means of audio conferencing and telephone conferencing to
save costs and reduce greenhouse gas emissions arising from

traffic and transportation of business trips

o posting notices and reminders at offices to remind employees
and visitors to conserve water and energy
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Resource Saving Reminders

In Minmetals Land’s Hong Kong office, we placed stickers with
resource saving reminders in pantry rooms and places near switches
of office lights to remind our employees to cherish water and
electricity resources.

The administration department of Yingkou Minmetals Grace Home
checks the office area’s water facilities and replaces malfunctioning
equipment in a timely manner. Recycling boxes are also set for
various paper sizes to collect papers that are only printed on one
side.

Green Service

Our real estate development project in Yau Tong, Hong Kong is
designed for BEAM Plus certification and projects in Mainland China
are awarded ISO 9001 International Quality Certificates.

BEAM Plus Certification — Yau Tong project

in Hong Kong

In 2016, Massive Leader Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Minmetals Land) won the tender of a site in Yau Tong Inland Lot
No. 44 at the junction of Shung Shun Street and Yan Yue Wai, Yau
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong. With a site area of approximately
10,500 square meters, the site has been planned for residential
development.

To achieve better environmental performance, Building
Environmental Assessment Method (BEAM Plus) for New Buildings
Version 1.2 will be applied throughout the construction stages for
this project. Modifications will be made to the construction practice,
building design, material usage, monitoring to the satisfaction of the
Architect & BEAM Consultant. Representative BEAM Plus credit items
such as water, air, and noise pollution control, construction and
demolition waste management plan, and material selection have
been carefully considered and

implemented in design and

construction phases following the BEAM Plus Assessment.
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Green Purchasing

Minmetals Land’s vision is to become a leading innovative and
sustainable real estate developer. We wish to take a step forward to
reducing impact on our environment by green purchasing in our
supply chain management. We hope that this will eventually
encourage more property developers and suppliers to join us in
assuming social responsibilities in environmental and sustainable
development.

In June 2016, the Society of Entrepreneurs & Ecology (“SEE”), China
Urban Reality Association, China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce,
China Vanke, and Landsea Green Properties launched the program
of “China’s Real Estate Industry Green Supply Chain Action”
("Green Supply Chain Action”), which is the first voluntary action
for emission reduction in the sector. Minmetals Land is proud to be
a member of such exercise in support of the Chinese government’s
commitment to the Paris Agreement.

Mission Statement
Minmetals Land joined the Green Supply Chain Action program and
set out below is our mission statement:

o Minmetals Land voluntarily participates in the Green Supply
Chain Action. We will engage suppliers with regard to their
environmental performance and establish higher standards for
suppliers accordingly

o Minmetals Land will select suppliers that would meet the green
purchasing criteria and a green suppliers list will be released in
this respect. Suppliers that fail to meet the criteria will be
asked to make rectifications

o Minmetals Land will regularly disclose progress on the Green
Supply Chain Action and assume the responsibility for the
authenticity of the disclosure

o Minmetals Land will actively participate in the discussion and
execution of the Green Supply Chain Action. At the same
time, we will concentrate our efforts in engaging more green
suppliers and continuously revising our green purchase policies

We will continue to seek opportunities to cooperate with
government authorities, non-governmental organisations and non-
profit making organisations to promote the regulations and to
arouse attention of the media and society. We are determined to
achieve a win-win situation for the Company and the society in this
regard.
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Execution Plan

Minmetals Land had made further studies in the Green Supply Chain
Action. In June 2017, Minmetals Land had further communication
with its major sponsor — SEE's representatives. Later in July 2017,
Minmetals Land joined the conference in discussing the promotion
and execution of the Green Supply Chain Action. By summarising
conference progress and conclusions, Minmetals Land established
the China Real Estate Green Supply Chain Action Research Report
and the first version of Minmetals Land Limited Green Supply Chain
Action Execution Plan. Currently, we are revising our purchasing
management system with reference to these two documents.

Steel/Cement/Glass
SRR

Aluminum Alloy
ne®

-y VES
BTREIRBETH TR ELRBERB DR
B RMYIRBROTHIETTRA#GT =%
—tFERNA FRARETH I ETBZHEAN
WESEEARRBEN T EHEABETTRAN
THRMNBR WE_ZT—tFLARET [4RE
THIEEN RS RO EFmELE KE
(AR 1TB ET TARARY - BBMREGHIA
REREBE  VIFHR(PBEFEHETREEH
FERITE) — AMMEIANRNTER T(RE
WEFRTHIERSTR) - B RAPERE
AEMBXHFBIEEMORBEEERS -

Insulation
~ Materials

PROR A

Artificial Panels for
Indoor Decoration
= N2 B A IR

AmMESRAF —T—+aa® | 95



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HERERBE

Our research findings show that, among the five categories
promoted by the Green Supply Chain Action, aluminum alloy and
artificial panels are relatively easier to implement in the current
purchasing plan. We follow the green purchasing procedures for
selection of products and services that possess the following

qualities:
o low carbon footprint and pollutant emission
. high energy, water and raw materials usage efficiency

o products which contain environmental friendly materials or
recycled materials

o minimum impact on users’ health

Procedure in Engineered Floor Panel Purchasing

In 2017, Minmetals Land started practicing green purchase of
engineered floor panels in accordance with the White Papers of
Purchasing Standards published by the China Supply Chain
Estate
management scheme on purchasing and work procedures that we

Promotion Committee of Real Industry. Below is the

have implemented.

[ARETE | EHEBETUNIIEZERBERE
RMEIN RARKBESMEKREES AL
REZEMRBENRBEAETETSEN - £
BiEFT BHMARTARRABERBOART
BRE UELEZAGEATHENHERD
2 o S AR 7%

o R RISRYYEN

s EER KERMEEEARE

. ESHBRIRREKHE

e HERENREENFZERZ&N

254 B G AR 19 HR A L AE D
RIT—tF ARHUEFAGERPEESHE
TEFEHEBELEZBEERMAN(TEE
ET¥SEHERRBESEARE)AMRE
EARMHAER  ATREMEENREBE R
FRUARTERR

Sign
Supplementary

Third Party Contract with
Drafting ) . Supplier Execute
. Revise Bidding . .
Post Compliance Formgldghyde Define Execution Documents and . regarding Purchasing
Statement Emission . . increased Green Process as
BHAREDR " Specifications ' evel Contracts » Purchase Terms ' Agreed
B BB AT S BT 4 - N .
ERE=HHE mEnasn & & o ' sczon P mreezma
FEEKRERE - HERETHR Rk
AR E AR 2E AR AEE M
HEZERE
£

Headquarters

BEHAT

96 ‘ Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2017

Regional Offices

ESHT




Headquarters’ Duties:

o submit Engineered Floor Panels Bidding Document, Engineered
Floor Panels Supplier Catalog and Engineered Floor Panels
Contract to the Working Group of the Green Supply Chain of
Real Estate Industry

o communicate with third party organisations and update related
documents based on given specifications. Inform suppliers to
cooperate with third party’s investigation

o coordinate random inspection on products

o follow up with the sample products’ formaldehyde release
testing report. Once all related requirements have been
satisfied, suppliers can be added to the Green Supply Chain
White List

Regional Offices’ Duties:

o notify engineered floor panel suppliers to provide related
certifications to third party organisations

o record the confirmation of receipt, product models and date of
production at construction sites

o submit samples of products for third party inspection. In the
case that the testing result repetitively fails to meet green
purchase specifications (three consecutive times), Minmetals
Land will terminate the contract with the supplier
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Environmental Data

This report covers Minmetals Land’s real estate development and
property management businesses and accordingly, impacts on the
environment and natural resources primarily comes from energy and
water usage at our office premises and vehicles owned or controlled
by Minmetals Land.

Indicator

B

BB s

R H) B FR 0 B & R A X A T
EMEERTENTEZEY At ARFY
REKBEARBREENETEZERIRN QA
RGFAMEERMKERNER AR AR E
PR WHES 2 EBWMME R -

Data in 2017
“E—tEEH

Air Pollutant Emissions’

KRSRVHEREE
NOx Emissions kg 326.4
R A AL PINO, T
SO, Emissions kg 1.1
B 8L SO, TR
CO Emissions kg 737.7
— &b #xCO F&
PM,s Emissions kg 14.4
FERLIPM, 5 T
PM;o Emissions kg 15.7
FERLHIPMy T

Resource Consumption and Intensity

BEREREREE
Electricity Consumption? kWh 575,245
wHEE? T BB
Electricity Consumption Intensity kWh/person 1,194
AREBE FRE/A
Water Consumption? tonnes 6,626
BREKE 7]
Water Consumption Intensity tonnes/person 17.6
ABFEKE e/ A
Natural Gas Consumption* m?3 13,708
BRARBE 377K
Natural Gas Consumption Intensity m>/person 391.7
ABRRRABE 375 RIA
Office Paper Consumption® tonnes 6.6
MABEKERAE ]
Office Paper Consumption Intensity tonnes/person 0.05
AR AREERE e/ A
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Indicator Data in 2017

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Intensity

BERBHREREE

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (in CO, Equivalent) tonnes 171.6

from Mobile Combustion Sources® o
AERREXNNBERBHER(CALKRES)S
Greenhouse Gas Emissions (in CO, Equivalent) tonnes 403.5

from Energy Indirect Emissions’ Mg
INBBE NEKRERBYER(ZALRES)’
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions (in CO, Equivalent) tonnes 575.1
BERBHMEE (CELRES 7
Greenhouse Gas Emissions Intensity tonnes/person 0.75
ADRERBHERE(ZALREE g/ A

Total Hazardous Waste Produced and Intensity®
FERRYELYEERERE

Total Waste Batteries Produced kg 0.74

BHWEARS T
Intensity of Waste Batteries Produced kg/person 0.006
AESHEES Fr/A
Total Printer Cartridges Produced pieces 33
BREESELERE 18
Intensity of Printer Cartridges Produced pieces/person 0.37
ANIERREESE (EVUN
Total Waste Light Tubes Produced pieces 45
BEEELRE 1&
Intensity of Waste Light Tubes Produced pieces/person 0.27
ANBEREEEE EVIN

Total Non-hazardous Wastes Produced and Intensity®
EEBRRVELHEERER

Waste Paper Produced tonnes 5.8
R EERS 145
Intensity of Waste Paper Produced kg/m? 12.9
EAREERE T 5/ 75 oK

TEBEAR QA
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Notes:

Ear s

Air pollutant emission comes from vehicles owned by Minmetals Land in China
and Hong Kong. The emission data is calculated with reference to the Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange, (i & #4 &) & H
WO B RS EE (377)) from the Ministry of Environmental Protection of
People’s Republic of China, and the AP-42 Compilation of Air Pollutant Emission
Factors by United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)

In 2017, we collected electricity usage data of all offices and subsidiaries within

the reporting scope.

In 2017, we collected water usage data of our headquarters in Beijing and Hong
Kong, 4 real estate development subsidiaries and 3 property management
subsidiaries.

The natural gas consumption data comes from two property management
subsidiaries in Nanjing and Tianjin.

The office paper usage data comes from real estate development subsidiary in
Changsha and 3 property management subsidiaries in Nanjing, Tianjin and
Yingkou.

The greenhouse gas emission here refers to direct emissions from vehicles that
are owned or controlled by Minmetals Land. In 2017, Minmetals Land have 4
vehicles in Hong Kong and 32 vehicles in China that are in use. The emission
data is calculated with reference to the Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange, the ([ X iBiB M E A= REHMIEE
FiA R 5 1ER (5197)) issued by the Ministry of Environmental Protection of
People’s Republic of China.

The greenhouse gas emission here refers to “indirect energy” emissions resulting
from the generation of electricity that is purchased by Minmetals Land. The data
is calculated with electricity usage of all offices and subsidiaries within the
reporting scope with reference to {20114 20124 /B & 15, |49 F 15 — AL hix
PEREA F)from the National Development and Reform Commission of People’s
Republic of China.

The hazardous waste data was collected from Minmetals Land’s real estate
development subsidiary in Changsha and property management subsidiaries in
Nanjing, Tianjin and Yingkou. All hazardous waste produced are handled by
qualified third parties.

The non-hazardous waste data was collected from Minmetals Land’s real estate
development subsidiary in Changsha and property management subsidiaries in
Nanjing, Tianjin and Yingkou.

100 ‘ Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2017

GEE

RET Y HEAORR R 2 7 R B A it A R B
BEREHNEHORAN - ARFRBBENFE

FE2E B EHNCREBARESUERERE
S FEARKMBEBRERESEHHCERKDE
PEROE B b B IE m (FAT) ) A R EB B RIRER
& /3 % 6 EAP-42 Compilation of Air Pollutant
Emission Factors

—EF BARETHERS
R M B AR R EHE -

EENA DR

“EEF BMRETABEMEL NG TER
AE - IHREHMEMBRARAR=ZRYEERNE
REE KB -

K98 0P BB OB RO B 0 58 B R B % W 3 R
BAM -

MR FBAE BB RIRN AR & H) 5 E M B 2~ & A
R=ZRUNRER REARZONDEXEEHRER

el

1t B B B PR B TR 3 2 A R B A 3 LA
E/ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&% HWERNERER -R_F—LF -
AEMENEERTEANBO I EONEE =T _"WE
W ARBMBEBENAENE2EABIMEMY
(REBREBIERERESDARPEARAMER
FRESEHNCGELRBERCRBERBIMZ
HhrRHRERERET)) -

P ::

BEHREREHIRR ARBENEENELE
BRPAEEANMEREREEER - LEMERERE
HEAREEEANNABENBARMNARE
B HENEL2ZEEREARANBEERERMAE
ZEEHMHHQONMEMNFFRHEREER T =
SALTREEREATF) -

BEEERRMWELERSELARLEMREDNEIL
EMBRAR  MEMRER  REUAREOSZHY
%%I@WE"?°$"ﬁ§¢ﬁ’ﬂ?ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%?§§%i’:}§
ABEREEENE=ZTETZERE -

BEBRVELBRSEABHELREDNFEHE
MBRAR ARMRER REAREOFHMNYE
EEMERA



GIVING BACK

Protecting our Environment

Tree Planting Activity on Chinese Arbor Day

On the China Arbor Day on 12 March 2017, our Youth League
Committee arranged a “Green Hometown” team building activity. A
total of 18 colleagues of our Beijing offices participated in the tree-
planting activities.

Under the guidance of the site officials, our colleagues worked in a
team to dig holes, position saplings, backfilled soils and watering each
sapling. In the end, the team members wrote down their wishes on
cards and hanged them on the saplings in the hope that these will
turn Beijing into a beautiful green place in the future.

It is hoped that our employees would cherish our environmental
resources and to devote more efforts in protecting our environment
through these activities. In this event, colleagues from different
office locations experienced an enjoyable team building exercise.

el i #L &

N T

1 #f 6 7€ 5 # ) 1 B)

T +tF=A+ZAEETEHEHES  RE
WEBZAMTFEIHAME T AMREAL
EXE]IATENEHKEMEGREREY R
MEBREEXTNBEFEISNT ARNE
BEE -

EEBRL BIMEIHFAENEERED
TafE REREBEHEL NEHE DELE
MEK-R&R BIMBRARBENRA &
EERETFEEN /SRR SRR/ E
BRI AR BRI R —IRFAR -

BM#ALBBURBEHZBHETIDERIRE
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B -WMAEGEREDAUA T ARRERNR
EZHEMER REMACEXZETRRNESZ

AmMESRAF —T—+as® | 101



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE #HERERBE

Serving our Community

“With Books Dreams Come True,

Through Clothing Warmth are Shared”

In 2017, Tianjin Minmetals Grace Home team organised a donation
event for children who live in poverty-stricken areas in Tibetan
Autonomous Prefecture, Qinghai Province. In the event, clothings
and books donated by our employees and property owners were
given to the children. It is our sincere hope that these children
would make use of these materials.

ol g &
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Visiting Children in Mountain Areas near West Beijing
On 20 July 2017, our Beijing office initiated a charity event for
children who live in undeveloped mountain areas near west Beijing.
In the morning, two staff representatives visited Datai Village in west
Beijing Mentougou area where people there are poverty-stricken
miners and their families. Children of these families study in a
temporary shabby classroom in the local community service centre.
Our staff representatives visited the classroom and brought
backpacks, stationaries and books to these children. Both our
colleagues and the children had unforgettable memories in the event
and everyone was deeply moved by the cheerful faces of the
children. Minmetals Land will continue to support those poverty
communities in future.

B 5T P ) I T &
“E—tFLtA-TH ABEMEILRAERA
RTHEPDRAARMABLEET F RO QEE
BoAPEALT WMERREIREANEML
REAROPIREEREN  ZHERPETEZR
WABE AR GEHRENNBEIRERE
18 R BE Y T A B M AL [ AR A R D B B B 3K
ELR-BEEHD BEIRRZEBT &M
BENYE YRZTFMASTETRMAERANS
B XAERMUERERZ - BB REE  HM
MEBETRKRESEZFMANZETHTNEE
WA FPIRG AR IE1RRRITH - ABME
FERBUBAERPEEHEWHE  bHZ
FRMRKET FTREFODE -

Your comments are welcome
If you have any comments about this report, please forward it to
the following address:

18th Floor,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham Road South,

Tel: (852) 2613 6363

Fax: (852) 2581 9823

3 A % 5 G o
MY AREGERE R
BRIEHRXZ T :

AR

BAENERPEZRBEE LT NARPEAREK
E+ N2

&5 ¢ (852) 2613 6363

{E & : (852) 2581 9823
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
SEREEEEABRBN

Directors

Mr. Li Fuli
FREAEE
Chairman

ESi

Mr. He Jianbo

o 3% e &

Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
BIERREFTHLRE

Mr. Li Fuli, aged 52, was appointed as a Non-executive Director and the
Chairman of the Company in May 2017. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Financial Accounting from the Renmin University of China and an Executive
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business in the PRC. Mr. Li joined China Minmetals in 1991. He is
currently a Senior Vice President of China Minmetals and a director of CMCL
(@ non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals). Mr. Li has been serving
various departments and subsidiaries of China Minmetals group for
investment, trading, financial and corporate management businesses and has
extensive experience in strategic investment, corporate finance and financial
management, and corporate management.

FENXE RFEFR+ - R tLtFLARZERLRRBFNTE
ERIF -FTREERTRAARABUBEA BRI RPERIHZRTHRT
BAERBEL -FEER-AA—FNMATBELE RATBELERALE
EABBROD (RTEABZIEENBAR) CEE - TREXARRPETA
BZEMFINMBRRERE  BERE B RMEXREERER WK
BRIRE EMBRERMEER URGCEEEBFEHAFLEELR -

Mr. He Jianbo, aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director and
Managing Director of the Company in December 2007. He was appointed to
the position of Deputy Chairman of the Company in April 2013. Mr. He is
responsible for the operation of and strategic planning for the Company. Mr.
He is a Senior International Business Engineer in the PRC. He is also a
Council Member of the Chinese Association for International Understanding,
a Vice President of the Liaoning Province Youth Federation and a Vice
President of the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce. He graduated
from the Peking University in 1992 with a Bachelor's Degree in Economics
and obtained a Master's Degree in International Finance from Peking
University and a Master's Degree in Business Administration from Saint
Mary’s University, Canada. Mr. He joined China Minmetals in 1992 and had
served the positions of director of general administrative office, director of
strategic planning division and a member of the strategic planning committee
of China Minmetals. Mr. He has over 20 years of experience in corporate
management, strategic planning and investment.

FaEligsE BFEN+ N\ R-TTLF+ _AEZERARBNTES
REFELE R-Z-=ZFRARRZREARFABEEF -REEAXAQF
MBEBFEERKBERE -MEERTESREEBBEHN  TATEEEREIR
HEREEFHES BEELFTFHASR IR 2R TIABFER SR

CREER -MAER-NMN_FEXRUERKE REKEBEEE LB
BEABALRABPEREREXBLIEMURNEAEBREASRTIHEEBEL
B - AEER - AN _FMATERRE  SREETHFEABERNIEE
T BRMREIERERZESZE RNOEXEE KBRRIALKRETE
BEB_+tFZ2LEKR-
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Ms. He Xiaoli, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in February 2002. Ms. He is now an Executive Director and a
Deputy Managing Director of the Company. Ms. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Accounting from North China University of Technology and a
Master's Degree in Business Administration from the University of South
Australia. She is a qualified PRC Senior Accountant and a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. He was the head of business division and the deputy
minister of accounting information division of the finance department of
the previous China National Nonferrous Metals Industry Corporation.
Ms. He has extensive experience in financial management of
enterprises.

Bt RELTHR R_ET_F_ARZERARANTE
FRARARRZHTEFREFRALE RHEALENTIXRKELE
BEELENRANBYERASTHERRTISZM  TATESR
SR MRFEEMEAMBESE - EMARRBZA - AT B
TRTFEECEBIXERAVBHEZEXEEXFIENGHERRE
BRESR REeXVBKER T ABEALEELR -

Mr. Liu Zeping, aged 49, was appointed as a Non-executive Director of
the Company in June 2010. He is now an Executive Director and a
Deputy Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Liu holds a Bachelor’s
Degree from Military Academy of Engineering and an Executive Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua University. He is a
Professorate Senior Engineer in the PRC. Mr. Liu joined China
Minmetals in 1992 and was a director and the President of 23rd
Metallurgical. Mr. Liu has extensive experience in real estate
development and construction business.

FAFERE RFOTAR R_ZE—ZTFNAEZERRRAEHR
TEF ARARAZATESREFRALE -REARDP IER
BREBLBUNBFEARINERELZM  TATEARKSRT
RE B EER-—NAN-FMATHRERE EERBEB _+ZAEEHR
EER NEUERBZRERITAREEEER -

Ms. He Xiaoli
fNELT

Deputy Managing Director
BEREIBERE

Mr. Liu Zeping
BAFEEE

Deputy Managing Director
EFRIeKE
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Mr. Yang Shangping
BEFEEE

Deputy Managing Director
EFRALR

Mr. Cui Hushan
E#REWL%E

Non-executive Director
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Mr. Yang Shangping, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive Director
and a Deputy Managing Director of the Company in June 2017. He
holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Structural Engineering from Tongji
University and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Fudan
University. Mr. Yang joined the Company as the general manager of a
real estate development company of the Company in Nanjing in 2007.
Mr. Yang is responsible for the sales and marketing, strategic
investment and design divisions of the Company and is a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He had participated in project
works for China Overseas Holdings Ltd. and Shanghai Vanke Co., Ltd.
for over 10 years. Mr. Yang has extensive experience in project
management as well as sales and marketing and costing management.

BEEEE RFEFOTOFK R-T—LtFNABRZTERARBNIT
EEREFRNAKLE -BRAFABLIEZEBIRELREBXRET
BEREL -BAER _ZZLFMALRRA  HEXRAFBET —K
NRERNFEHEZRRBRARNALE REEARAZHEE &
BRENRARELIE TR/ARAETHERARAZESF -KER
TEEIEEERARMALEEENMEHEARARKFHAEEETLEF
BHF GCHEERREEE L2HEELMKNAEESETEHOERLEERE
EE e

Mr. Cui Hushan, aged 60, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company in August 2016. He holds a Master's Degree in Law
from the Renmin University of China and a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Texas at Arlington in the U.S.A.
and is a Senior International Business Engineer in the PRC. Mr. Cui
joined China Minmetals in 1988 and has been serving various
departments and subsidiaries of China Minmetals group for investment,
trading and corporate management businesses. He has also worked for
the National Committee of Economic Systems Reform for macro
management affairs of large enterprise groups. Mr. Cui has extensive
experience in strategic investment, international business, and corporate
planning and management.

ERLEE RBERTHR RIZE-R"ENABRZERARAENT
EE -REFEATPEARARBEBBRTBULEEE R ENM MM EER
BhRrIMERRTEM  TATESRBEREBEH - £XER AN
FMATELAR  TRNTEABRZEMPILME LR IR BEXR
B EHREXEEXD RNE2HBREHEBHNEZES® A
BEREEEZEEREIE REBRUERE BHEREL UREER
EMERESTEHALELR -

106 | Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2017



Mr. Selwyn Mar, aged 82, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2002. Mr. Mar
graduated from the London School of Economics, University of London.
He is a Chartered Accountant, a director of Nexia Charles Mar Fan
Limited and the Managing Director of Marfan & Associates Limited. Mr.
Mar was the President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 1991, a member of the Appeals Panel of Securities &
Futures Commission and a member of the Board of Governors of Chinese
International School. Mr. Mar has been actively involved in commercial
and industrial undertakings in Hong Kong and the PRC in the past 40
years. Presently, he sits on the board of three other Hong Kong listed
companies. Mr. Mar is an Honorary Fellow of the Lingnan University.

BREXE RFEN+_Hm R _ZEZE_F+ - ARZEREALQAE
VYFEATEF REXRRIAALERKIALESREER  ARFFE
Rl BAEGHMTARAREEREAENERRAFAELTLAL
B-BFREENR-NAN—FLEFTEEHMRAEER TEHEES
FEEBERLZEQLHZEGZENEZEBBRERESFENE -
BEERNBEON+FREB2ETERTBEZEERIEEE A/ S
SIN=FHEELTRARZEEEKE -FALEREERBZRER L -

Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy, aged 70, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2015. Mr. Lam
graduated from the University of Hong Kong. He also held a Master's
Degree in Science of Management from the Stanford Graduate School
of Business. He joined the Hong Kong Government as Administrative
Officer in 1970 and had worked in areas like housing, environmental
protection, land administration, procurement, financial services,
infrastructural development and mega projects. He has served as the
CEO of the Airport Authority and the Managing Director of the Urban
Renewal Authority. Currently, he is a member of the Lantau
Development Advisory Committee, the Country Marine Parks Board, and
a court member and an adjunct professor of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Lam was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star
Medal by the Government of the HKSAR in 2008 and has been a
Justice of Peace since 2004.

HPBEE BFLt+Hm R T HAFNARZERRLRRBEILIFE
HWITEF -REXERBERE TALARAKBERSBEL -MEL
R—NEZEFMATEBNEIRBEBIE BREEFEE RE i
BRE R EEkARBEESFEH ITEIHSEERATRE
BRTBRAH MELRR/RANRLERAANZES BHLIEREFR
ZESQEBULEERBIAREEMNZEENE NEFEHK - MELER
—ER)N\FEEERINTHRRAEZESEZANES  UARB -FFX
FREEZERAFHL -

Mr. Selwyn Mar

Independent Non-executive Director

BUFNTES

Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy
HPBxE

Independent Non-executive Director

BUFRITES
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5.

Ms. Law Fan Chiu Fun, Fanny
BEMT Lt

Independent Non-executive Director

BUFNTES

Pl

T

Ms. Law Fan Chiu Fun, Fanny, aged 65, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2018. Ms.
Law graduated from the University of Hong Kong with an Honours
degree in Science. She received a Master degree in Public
Administration from Harvard University and was named a Littauer
Fellow. She also has a Master degree in Education from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Prior to her retirement from the civil service
in 2007, Ms. Law was the Commissioner of the Hong Kong
Independent Commission Against Corruption. During her 30 years in
the civil service, Ms. Law has worked in many fields, including medical
and health, economic services, housing, land and planning, home
affairs, social welfare, civil service, transport and education. Ms. Law is
currently a member of the Executive Council of the Government of the
HKSAR and a Special Advisor to the China-US Exchange Foundation.
She is now an independent non-executive director of four other Hong
Kong listed companies. She is also the Chairperson of the Hong Kong
Science and Technology Parks Corporation and an external director of
China Resources (Holdings) Co., Ltd.. Ms. Law was awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star and the Grand Bauhinia Medal in 2003 and 2017
respectively by the Government of HKSAR in recognition of her
distinguished service to the community. She is also a Justice of Peace
since 2008.

EEHTLE BEAt+Am R_ZE— N\FHOAEZTAEKRRE
VHEHNITEZS -HABEASLEBE+  ERHASAHTHEL
B4 - W Flittauer Fellows# AN ABER X KEHBEHEL - &
ZTETRAEEERFRABE R_ZTLFHIRARKIEE -EEA
RBEN=TFH BLXTHPHELZEHE  BREEEGE  CERS -
BE- - LtiiRs REEH HSEMN ABKESFH BHIAHMESL -
BLLTHRAEBREBRINTRERNTHREZKEURFPERRES SR
BIEM - BN ASIINNEES ETARZBYIRTES  WELSE
ERNEEARNER UREBHEE)ARARINIBEE -BLLH
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Senior Management
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Mr. Law Yiu Wing, Patrick, aged 54, joined the Company in
September 2006. Mr. Law is now the Company’'s Chief Operating
Officer, Hong Kong. Mr. Law is responsible for the management of the
investment properties in Hong Kong and is the general manager of
Condo Hong Kong and Condo Macau (both are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company engaged in specialised construction
business in Hong Kong and Macau respectively), and Massive Leader
Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company engaged in the real
estate development project in Yau Tong, Hong Kong). Mr. Law holds a
Bachelor of Building (Hons.) Degree from the University of New South
Wales, Australia and a Master of Business Administration Degree from
the Australian Graduate School of Management (AGSM). He is a
member of the Australian Institute of Building, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Law has
extensive experience in property development, strategic planning,
financial and general management gained from listed companies.

EREEEE BFRI TG R_ZEENFAAMAARARG B AARX
RAEREERE AEREREVETEIE TAKRMNEEEE
MR (O AEARRDFNEBRBFINEEELEZEER 2 2ENEB
AR AR ZEHEBER AR (AARANEHEAETEREREHELRE
BZ2EWBRAR) 2HEE -HHEABNTEHBIASBEES (L
2)EB + By KB N E B 2 F(Australian Graduate School of
Management) TEERBE L2 - BRMNEEMES  FESHARE
FERMNEFMASe8 EXECARBEEELTRA REME
BR KBRS UBEA—RTREEESHFAHESLELR -

Mr. Tang Ying Kit, Edward, aged 44, joined the Company as the
Financial Controller in April 2013. He is an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Tang holds a
Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Finance (Honours) from
the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Tang worked in listed company and state-owned
enterprise in Hong Kong. Mr. Tang has extensive experience in
corporate finance, financial and general management.

MEREEE BFN TR RE-—=FNAHERRAMBHEE
REBSTMAGLRBERKHFEEGAMAETE  URKEFHE
AHASEARER W ARANMBABRINERSBRY B RLES
TEM -MEERMARARAR  BEBBEA LT RAIRBEAERE
REXMB MBERTHREETEAFEELR -

Mr. Law Yiu Wing, Patrick
BEREE

Chief Operating Officer
HEME

o

Mr. Tang Ying Kit, Edward
EHRGEELE

Financial Controller
M5B E
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The Board would like to submit the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND

GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are real estate development,
property
investment. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

specialised construction, investment and securities

set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 152.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK6
cents (2016: HK4 cents) per Share payable in cash to Shareholders
whose names appearing on the register of members of the
Company on Tuesday, 12 June 2018.

Subject to Shareholders’ approval at the AGM, the dividend cheques
will be distributed to Shareholders on or about Wednesday, 27 June
2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development, possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are provided in
the “Chairman’s Statement” as well as the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 12 to 17 and pages 20 to 49 of this Annual
Report respectively.

The financial risk factors and management of the Group are set out
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

No important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end
of the financial year ended 31 December 2017.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the “Financial
Highlights” on pages 4 to 5 of this Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group strives to maintain balance between its core real estate
development business and the ecological environment, looking for
green development opportunities from environmental challenges in
order to promote sustainable development. The Group actively
practices environmental protection actions covering the whole
building life cycle through integration of resources and scientific
management of the industry chain, aiming to create a harmonious
environment between man and nature communion. The Group also
promotes the “return to nature” concept in project planning and
design. The real estate development projects of the Group adopt the
notion of green design “according to local conditions, resource
conservation and comprehensive utilisation” in order to increase
their applicability and life, and to maximise the integration between
projects and natural environment. On the construction side, the
Group continues to strengthen its construction management, by
strict implementation of the “four conservations one protection”
measure on land, water, raw materials and energy savings, and
environmental protection so as to reduce the hazardous effect of
dust, waste water, construction waste and noise to neighbouring
residents and the environment.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements. During the year under review, the Group complied
with the requirements under the Companies Act of Bermuda,
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), the
Listing Rules, the SFO (Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and
relevant rules and it has

other regulations of places which

operations.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
The Group's success depends on the support of key stakeholders,
such as employees, customers and Shareholders.

Employees

Employees are important and valuable assets of the Group. The
Group rewards and recognises performing staff by competitive
remuneration package and standardised performance appraisal
system with incentives. The Group has thorough career development
program to promote career development and progression by
appropriate training and providing opportunities within the Group
for career advancement.

Customers

The Group’s principal customers are buyers of its real estate
development projects. The Group has established property
management subsidiaries in Nanjing, Changsha, Yingkou, Huizhou
and Tianjin to ensure professional and caring property management
services to buyers of its properties. Our customers are eligible to join
our M-Land Club which offers promotions, recreational activities and

value-added services.

Shareholders

The Group strives to enhance corporate value to Shareholders. The
Group is poised to foster business development for achieving the
sustainability of earnings growth and rewarding Shareholders by
stable dividend payouts taking into account capital adequacy levels,
liquidity positions and business expansion needs of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 26 and Note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties held for investment and
properties under development of the Group are set out on pages 26
to 45.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2017,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act of Bermuda,
amounted to HK$528,469,000 (2016: HK$608,885,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 9.

SHARE OPTION

2003 SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The 2003 Share Option Scheme,
Company on 29 May 2003, expired on 28 May 2013. However,

which was adopted by the

share options granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme prior to
its expiration shall continue to be valid and exercisable in

accordance with their terms of issue.
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Details of the movements in share options granted under the 2003
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2017 are

as follows:

BZET - FEREFEEDL CERE  RE
BT+ HF+-_A=+—HIFEZEHHF
BaR

(i) Directors

=
Mr. He Jianbo 30.11.2012  30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) ~ 1.20
] 88 55 4 30.11.2012  30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (M 5£2)
Ms. He Xiaoli 30.11.2012  30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) ~ 1.20
i/ NBZ+ 30.11.2012  30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (M 5£2)
Mr. Liu Zeping 30.11.2012  30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2)  1.20
28T L& 30.11.2012  30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (M 5£2)
Mr. Yang Shangping (Note 3) 30.11.2012 30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) 1.20
15 18 T 5 4 (B EE3) 30.11.2012  30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (M 5£2)
Mr. Yin Liang (Note 3) 30.11.2012  30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) ~ 1.20
F ok E (H3) 30.11.2012  30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (P 7+2)
(ii) Employees and others 1.12.2008 1.12.2010 to 30.11.2018 (Note 1) 0.45
EE REAM 1.12.2008 1.12.2010%230.11.2018 (i 7% 1)
30.11.2012  30.11.2014 to 29.11.2022 (Note 2) ~ 1.20
30.11.2012  30.11.2014%29.11.2022 (Fff 72)
Total #3t
Notes:
1. These share options are exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage

of share options of each tranche exercisable within the periods commencing
from 1 December 2010 to 30 November 2018, from 1 December 2011 to 30
November 2018 and from 1 December 2012 to 30 November 2018 are 30%,

30% and 40% respectively.
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2,200,000 - — 2,200,000 -
4,113,999 - 589,334 - 3,524,665
36,100,000 - — 36,100,000 -
49,883,999 - 589,334 45,770,000 3,524,665
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These share options are exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage
of share options of each tranche exercisable within the periods commencing
from 30 November 2014 to 29 November 2022, from 30 November 2015 to 29
November 2022 and from 30 November 2016 to 29 November 2022 are 30%,
30% and 40% respectively.

Mr. Yang Shangping was appointed in place of Mr. Yin Liang as a Director of
the Company on 22 June 2017. Prior to the aforesaid changes of Directors, Mr.

Yang Shangping was a deputy general manager of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no share options in respect of the 2003

Share Option Scheme were granted, lapsed or cancelled during the

year.

2013 SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company adopted the 2013 Share Option Scheme on 7 June

2013 to recognise and acknowledge eligible persons for their

contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

No share options have yet been granted by the Company pursuant
to the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

The principal terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme are set out as

follows:

1)

@)

Participants

Any directors or any employees of any company of the Group
and any advisers of, consultants of, contractors to any
company of the Group or any person who has any relationship
(whether business or otherwise) with any company of the
Group or any person whom the Directors consider, in their
contribute or can

sole discretion, has contributed or will

contribute to the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the
2013 Share Option Scheme is 333,785,270,
approximately 9.98% of the issued share capital of the

representing

Company as at the date of this Annual Report.
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3)

#)

)

()

(7)

HE

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No share options under the 2013 Share Option Scheme may
be granted to any eligible person, which, if exercised in full,
would result in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon the exercise of the share options already granted
or to be granted to such eligible person under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
share options) in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of such new grant. Any
grant of further share options above this limit shall be subject
to the requirements under the Listing Rules.

The period within which the Shares must be taken up
under a share option

The Directors may in their absolute discretion determine the
period during which a share option may be exercised and
notify each grantee, save that such period shall not be later
than 10 years from the date on which the Directors make an
offer of the share option subject to the provisions for early
termination as stipulated in the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

Time of acceptance and the amount payable on
acceptance of the share option

The offer of a share option made in accordance with the 2013
Share Option Scheme must be accepted within 28 business
days from the date on which the offer is made and the
amount payable on acceptance of the share option is HK$10.

The basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined by the Board at the
time of grant of the relevant share option and shall not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price per Share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant share option; (ii) the amount equivalent
to the average closing price per Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant share
option; or (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life
The 2013 Share Option Scheme is valid until 6 June 2023.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual
Report are:

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Fuli (appointed on 18 May 2017)

Mr. Cui Hushan

Mr. Zhang Yuanrong (resigned on 18 May 2017)

Executive Directors

Mr. He Jianbo

Ms. He Xiaoli

Mr. Liu Zeping

Mr. Yang Shangping (appointed on 22 June 2017)
Mr. Yin Liang (resigned on 22 June 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Selwyn Mar

Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria

Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy

On 27 March 2018, the Board has approved the appointment of
Ms. Law Fan Chiu Fun, Fanny in place of Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria
as an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from 1
April 2018.

Mr. Yang Shangping and Ms. Law Fan Chiu Fun, Fanny will retire
from the offices of Director at the AGM in accordance with Bye-law
102 of the Bye-Laws and Ms. He Xiaoli and Mr. Selwyn Mar will
retire from the offices of Director at the AGM in accordance with
111(A)
abovenamed Directors offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Bye-law of the Bye-Laws and, being eligible, the

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company and any
of its subsidiaries within one vyear without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Rule 13.51(B) of the Listing Rules,
information of Directors for the year ended 31 December 2017 are

the changes in

as follows:

Changes in Director's emoluments during the year are set out in
Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The interests of Directors in competing businesses that are required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules as
informed by the relevant Directors are as follows:

Mr. He Jianbo, being the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and
an Executive Director of the Company, is also a director of Yingkou
Industrial Park, Minmetals Real Estate and Minmetals Land Holdings.

Ms. He Xiaoli, being an Executive Director and a Deputy Managing
Director of the Company, is also a director of Minmetals Land
Holdings.

Mr. Liu Zeping, being an Executive Director and a Deputy Managing
Director of the Company, is also a director of Yingkou Industrial
Park, Minmetals Real Estate and Minmetals Land Holdings.

Yingkou Industrial Park, Minmetals Real Estate and Minmetals Land
Holdings are companies established under the laws of the PRC.
Yingkou Industrial Park is engaged in the development of Minmetals
(Yingkou) Industrial Park. Minmetals Real Estate is engaged in real
construction, property
estate advertising and

estate development and operation,
management, real estate agency, real
exhibition and other real estate related business. Minmetals Land
Holdings is engaged in real estate development, construction
contracting and sub-contracting, property management, surveying
and designing of construction projects, project investment, provision
of technical

services, investment consultancy and corporate

management consultancy.
In case the Board decides that there are issues of conflict between

the Group and the aforementioned companies, conflicting Directors
will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions.
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Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual Report, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had any competing
interests in a business which competes or is likely to compete with
the business of the Group (as would be required to be disclosed
under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules if each of them were a
controlling shareholder).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO), which have been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or pursuant to the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, or as recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, were as

BREXFBEEEN RAFHAH HEES
FREFEEZHBEATNBAREEBERL
Rl RERB AR B F 2 F A5 P R A 5 A (f
BESARERERANARE EHRRFES10
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Wt B 2 BB A7 2 HE 2% I iR A
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Btk EFRARBZEBITHRAEBR
Apr R EAAAAEEE(ZES RS ERD
ZEB)ZBORBBERNTEARRBES R
HEKME+RAELRENSB(BEZR
ZEBFRBPEGIEXEB LR RIERE 2
BamEORR) HRE LT RAMETAINEZ
BRETAMANE ARE LBz s MRA
BRWAT :

follows:
Long Position in Shares W 2 58
Approximate
percentage of
total issued Shares
Number of G2 31T
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held BREEsZ
EENE e A ZRHEE #Baaatt
Mr. He Jianbo Personal 2,040,000 0.06%
AT 818 4 & A
Ms. He Xiaoli Personal 1,163,333 0.03%
A/ NEZ L & A
Mr. Yang Shangping Personal 2,006,667 0.06%
HiEE LA & A
Note: Details of Directors’ interests in share options of the Company are disclosed in M3t : BIRZEER ARG BB EE S 2 FE > SN LB

the section headed “Share Option” above.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company or any of their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the SFO) as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of
age, was granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any
equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) during the year ended
31 December 2017.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option” and
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, the Company
had no other outstanding options, convertible securities, warrants or
other similar rights as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, there was no repurchase or exercise of
options and convertible securities during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or
the laws of Bermuda.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, according to the register of interests kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the following
entities had interests in the Shares and underlying Shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO:

Long Position in Shares
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Approximate
percentage of
total issued Shares

Interest in Shares HEBTREEE

Name of Shareholder BREZE RGP ZERS ZHAE S
China Minmetals & Bl B 2,071,095,506 61.92%
CMCL HERH 2,071,095,506 61.92%
CMNH hEEEER 2,071,095,506 61.92%
CMN hiER RN 2,071,095,506 61.92%
Album Enterprises BEAME 2,071,095,506 61.92%
Minmetals HK BEXEAME 2,071,095,506 61.92%
June Glory June Glory 2,071,095,506 61.92%
Note: June Glory is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Minmetals HK, which in turn is owned — M3 : June Glory 5B E ARz 2EMB AR MEE AR

as to approximately 39.04%, 38.95% and 22.01% by CMCL, Album Enterprises
and Top Create Resources Limited respectively. Album Enterprises and Top
Create Resources Limited are wholly owned by CMN, which in turn is owned as
to approximately 99.999% and 0.001% by CMNH and CMCL respectively. CMCL
is owned as to approximately 88.4% by China Minmetals. Accordingly, each of
China Minmetals, CMCL, CMNH, CMN, Album Enterprises and Minmetals HK
was deemed as interested in the 2,071,095,506 Shares held by June Glory.

Al AR 1) - B 1 % RTop Create Resources
Limited? 5 #F & H £J39.04% - 38.95% }22.01% %
o B M % MTop Create Resources Limited s T 7
BeRNE2ERE MEBEERNVAIERABEEEE
& K AR 19 9 Bl 4%5 B H £999.999% £0.001% AR # -
FEAERSE ARRDHS84%WE - Bt - FEA
- AERYD ABEEER ABRAEERH - BB
TEREERIBES W R AEEGIune GloryfTiEE 2
2,071,095,506/ iX 15 2 # &= ©
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The following contract of significance was entered into or subsisted
between the Company or its subsidiaries and the Company’s
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2017:

Minmetals Land Beijing and Minmetals Zhidi (both are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company), and Minmetals and Jingyi Futures Co.,
Ltd. (“Minmetals Futures”, formerly known as “Minmetals Futures
Co., Limited”,
entered into a construction project management agreement on 24
February 2014 for
management services for the project involving the construction of a

a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals)
the provision of construction project

commercial complex and certain ancillary facilities for the use by
Minmetals Futures as its southern headquarter in the PRC. Details of
the transaction have been published in the Company’s

announcement dated 24 February 2014,

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance were entered
into or subsisted between the Company or its subsidiaries and the
Company’s controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, or any of their subsidiaries was a party, in which
a Director had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of any business of the Company were entered
into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group's five largest suppliers combined and the percentage of
the revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers combined were less than 30%
of the total purchases and total revenue of the Group respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
The continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:

1. A financial services framework agreement dated 3 November
2015 was entered into between the Company and Minmetals
Finance (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals)
whereby Minmetals Finance would provide current and fixed
deposit services, loan services and settlement services to the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries for a term of three years
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018. The annual cap
on the maximum daily outstanding balance of deposits
(including accrued interests) to be placed by the Company and
its PRC subsidiaries for each of the three years ending 31
December 2018 was RMB1,800,000,000. The deposit services
to be provided by Minmetals Finance to the Company and its
PRC subsidiaries and the aforesaid annual cap were considered
and approved by the independent Shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 10 December 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the maximum daily
outstanding balance of deposits (including accrued interests)
placed by the Company and its PRC subsidiaries with Minmetals
Finance was RMB1,795,985,146 (2016: RMB1,798,110,058).
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An entrusted management services agreement dated 18 March
2016 was entered into between the Company, China
Minmetals and CMCL (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Minmetals) whereby the Company would provide management
services to China Minmetals and CMCL in relation to the
entrusted assets for a term of two years from 18 March 2016
to 17 March 2018 (”Entrusted Agreement”). The annual
management fees payable by China Minmetals and CMCL
under the Entrusted Agreement (the “Entrusted Management
Fees”) shall be RMB30,000,000 for each of the two years
ending 17 March 2018 whereby each of China Minmetals and
CMCL will be responsible for RMB3,000,000 and
RMB27,000,000 respectively. As all the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the annual fee receivable by the Company
under the Entrusted Agreement are less than 5%, the
Entrusted Agreement is subject to annual review, reporting
and announcement requirements, but exempt from circular,
independent financial advice and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

A supplemental agreement to the Entrusted Agreement dated
13 July 2017 was entered into between the Company, China
Minmetals, CMCL and Minmetals Land Beijing (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) whereby the parties agreed
that the management services in relation to the entrusted
assets be provided by Minmetals Land Beijing and accordingly
the Entrusted Management Fees be payable to Minmetals Land
Beijing.

The aggregate sum of Entrusted Management Fees payable by
China Minmetals and CMCL to Minmetals Land Beijing for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB30,000,000 (2016:
RMB24,508,197).
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A tenancy agreement dated 31 May 2016 was entered into
between Minmetals Capital (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Minmetals) as the tenant and Texion (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) as the landlord (“Tenancy
Agreement |”), details of which are set out below:

Premises : 9th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79
Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Period . two years commencing from 1 June 2016 to
31 May 2018 (both dates inclusive)

Rental © HK$173,790 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management
and air-conditioning charges)

Other charges : HK$28,385.70 per calendar month (being the
tenant’s share of service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

The annual cap for the rent payable by Minmetals Capital to
Texion in respect of Tenancy Agreement | for the period from
1 June 2016 to 31 December 2016, for the year from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017 and for the period from 1
January 2018 to 31 May 2018 were HK$1,216,530,
HK$2,085,480 and HK$868,950 respectively. As all the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual rent
receivable by Texion under Tenancy Agreement | are less than
5%, Tenancy Agreement | is subject to annual review,
reporting and announcement requirements, but exempt from
circular, independent financial advice and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

A deed of novation dated 31 December 2017 was entered into
between Texion, Minmetals Capital, and Brightway Asset (a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals) whereby
Minmetals Capital agreed to novate and Brightway Asset
agreed to assume all Minmetals Capital’s rights and obligations
in and under Tenancy Agreement | for the period from 31
December 2017 to 31 May 2018.
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The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Capital
under Tenancy Agreement | for the year ended 31 December
2017 was HK$1,911,690 (2016: HK$1,042,740).

A tenancy agreement dated 31 May 2016 was entered into
between Minmetals Cheerglory (a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Minmetals) as the tenant and Texion as the landlord
("Tenancy Agreement II”), details of which are set out below:

Premises : 11th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79
Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Period . two years commencing from 1 June 2016 to
31 May 2018 (both dates inclusive)

Rental © HK$173,790 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management
and air-conditioning charges)

Other charges : HK$28,385.70 per calendar month (being the
tenant’s share of service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

The annual cap for the rent payable by Minmetals Cheerglory
to Texion in respect of Tenancy Agreement Il for the period
from 1 June 2016 to 31 December 2016, for the year from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017 and for the period from 1
January 2018 to 31 May 2018 were HK$1,216,530,
HK$2,085,480 and HK$868,950 respectively. As all the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual rent
receivable by Texion under Tenancy Agreement Il are less than
5%, Tenancy Agreement Il is subject to annual review,
reporting and announcement requirements, but exempt from
circular, independent financial advice and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Cheerglory
under Tenancy Agreement Il for the year ended 31 December
2017 was HK$1,911,690 (2016: HK$1,042,740).
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A tenancy agreement dated 31 May 2016 was entered into
between Minmetals HK (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Minmetals) as the tenant and Texion as the landlord
(“Tenancy Agreement Ill”), details of which are set out below:

Premises © 19th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79
Chatham Road South, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

Period . two years commencing from 1 June 2016 to
31 May 2018 (both dates inclusive)

Rental : HK$173,790 per calendar month (exclusive of
government rates and service, management
and air-conditioning charges)

Other charges : HK$28,385.70 per calendar month (being the
tenant’s share of service, management and
air-conditioning charges)

The annual cap for the rent payable by Minmetals HK to
Texion in respect of Tenancy Agreement Il for the period from
1 June 2016 to 31 December 2016, for the year from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017 and for the period from 1
January 2018 to 31 May 2018 were HK$1,216,530,
HK$2,085,480 and HK$868,950 respectively. As all the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual rent
receivable by Texion under Tenancy Agreement Il are less
than 5%, Tenancy Agreement Il is subject to annual review,
reporting and announcement requirements, but exempt from
circular, independent financial advice and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals HK under
Tenancy Agreement Ill for the year ended 31 December 2017
was HK$1,911,690 (2016: HK$1,042,740).
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A property management service contract dated 22 December
2016 was entered into between Jiahe Risheng (a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) and Jiasheng Properties (a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of China Minmetals) whereby
Jiasheng Properties would provide property management
services to the sales office, show flats and unsold residential
units of LOHAS International Community for a term of two
years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2018 (“Service
Contract 1”). The annual cap for the service fees payable by
Jiahe Risheng to lJiasheng Properties in respect of Service
Contract | for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2018 were RMB5,859,000 and RMB5,915,000
respectively. As all the applicable percentage ratios in respect
of the service fees payable by Jiahe Risheng under Service
Contract | are less than 5%, Service Contract | is subject to
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements, but
exempt from circular, independent financial advice and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The aggregate sum of service fee paid by Jiahe Risheng to
Jiasheng Properties for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
RMB3,450,881 (2016: RMB3,684,429).

A property management service contract dated 22 December
2016 was entered into between Zhongrun Chengzhen (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Jiasheng
Properties whereby Jiasheng Properties would provide property
management services to the unsold residential units of
Scotland Town for a term of two years from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2018 (“Service Contract II"”). The annual cap
for the service fees payable by Zhongrun Chengzhen to
Jiasheng Properties in respect of Service Contract Il for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2018 were
RMB1,932,000 and RMB1,464,000 respectively. As all the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the service fees
payable by Zhongrun Chengzhen under Service Contract Il are
less than 5%, Service Contract Il is subject to annual review,
reporting and announcement requirements, but exempt from
circular, independent financial advice and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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The aggregate sum of service fee paid by Zhongrun
Chengzhen to Jiasheng Properties for the year ended 31
December 2017 was RMB264,233 (2016: RMB487,754).

A loan framework agreement dated 30 March 2015 was
entered into between Beijing Wanhu (a 51%-owned subsidiary
of the Company), MLIML (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Beijing Vanke (a company holding 49% equity
interest in Beijing Wanhu) (“Wanhu Framework Agreement”)
whereby Beijing Wanhu may from time to time provide loans
by way of entrustment loans to MLIML (or its designated
wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC) and Beijing Vanke based
on the same terms and conditions and in proportion to their
respective shareholding in Beijing Wanhu. The term of Wanhu
Framework Agreement is three years from 1 May 2015 to 30
April 2018. The cap amount of entrustment loans to be
provided by Beijing Wanhu to MLIML (or its designated
wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC) and Beijing Vanke shall
not exceed RMB2,295,000,000 and RMB2,205,000,000
respectively.

A supplemental agreement to the Wanhu Framework
Agreement dated 4 August 2015 was entered into between
Beijing Wanhu, MLIML and Beijing Vanke whereby Beijing
Wanhu would charge interest on loans granted to MLIML (or
its designated wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC) and Beijing
Vanke for the period from 4 August 2015 to 30 April 2018
with reference to the benchmark interest rate to be
announced by the People’s Bank of China from time to time
(“Wanhu Supplemental Agreement 1”).
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Based on the maximum amount of loan that may be granted
by Beijing Wanhu under the Wanhu Framework Agreement,
the cap amount of the interest receivable by Beijing Wanhu
from each of MLIML (or
subsidiary in the PRC) and Beijing Vanke under Wanhu
Supplemental Agreement | would not exceed:

its designated wholly-owned
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From From From From

4 August 2015 to 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2017 to 1 January 2018 to

31 December 2015 31 December 2016 31 December 2017 30 April 2018
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MLIML RMB65,742,000 RMB157,781,000 RMB157,781,000 RMB52,594,000
HEEZRIRE 65,742,000t A R 157,781,000 AR#E 157,781,000t ARM  52,594,0007T A R #
Beijing Vanke RMB63,164,000 RMB151,594,000 RMB151,594,000 RMB50,531,000
EmEH 63,164,0007T A R#  151,594,0007T A R#  151,594,0007C ARY  50,531,0007T A R

A second supplemental agreement to the Wanhu Framework
Agreement dated 6 December 2016 was entered into between
Beijing Wanhu, MLIML and Beijing Vanke whereby (i) the term
of the Wanhu Framework Agreement was extended to 31
December 2019, and (ii) the cap on the total amount of loans
to be provided by Beijing Wanhu by way of entrustment loans
to MLIML (or its designated wholly-owned subsidiary in the
PRC) and Beijing Vanke, and the cap amount of interest
receivable by Beijing Wanhu for the period from 1 January
2017 to 31 2019 was ("Wanhu
Supplemental Agreement I1”).

December increased
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The revised cap amount of loans to be provided by Beijing
Wanhu by way of entrustment loans to MLIML (or its
designated wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC) and Beijing
Vanke for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019 under Wanhu Supplemental Agreement Il are
RMB3,519,000,000 and RMB3,381,000,000 respectively. Based
on the maximum amount of loan that may be granted by
Beijing Wanhu under Wanhu Supplemental Agreement Il, the
cap amount of the interest receivable by Beijing Wanhu from
each of MLIML (or its designated wholly-owned subsidiary in
the PRC) and Beijing Vanke for each of the three years ending
31 December 2019 were RMB167,000,000 and RMB161,000,000
respectively.

Beijing Vanke is a substantial shareholder of Beijing Wanhu
and is therefore a connected person at the subsidiary level of
the Company. As the Independent Non-executive Directors
have confirmed that the terms of the Wanhu Framework
Agreement as supplemented are fair and reasonable, on
normal commercial terms and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole, the Wanhu Framework
Agreement as supplemented is subject to annual review,
reporting and announcement requirements, but exempt from
circular, independent financial advice and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101
of the Listing Rules.

The aggregate amount of entrustment loans provided by Beijing
Wanhu to Beijing Vanke and the aggregate amount of interest
received by Beijing Wanhu from Beijing Vanke for the year ended 31
December 2017 were RMB3,133,500,000 (2016: RMB2,205,000,000)
and RMB94,548,831 (2016: RMB58,016,991) respectively.
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A loan framework agreement dated 6 December 2016 was
entered into between Kuangshi Jiye (a 50%-owned subsidiary
of the Company), Hanten (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Beijing Vanke (a company holding 50% equity
interest in Kuangshi Jiye) whereby Kuangshi Jiye may from time
to time provide loans by way of entrustment loans to Hanten
(or its designated fellow subsidiary in the PRC) and Beijing
Vanke based on the same terms and conditions and in
proportion to their respective shareholding in Kuangshi Jiye
(“Langfang Framework Agreement”). The term of Langfang
Framework Agreement is three years from 1 January 2017 to
31 December 2019. The cap amount of entrustment loans to
be provided by Kuangshi Jiye to Hanten (or its designated
fellow subsidiary in the PRC) and Beijing Vanke shall not
exceed RMB300,000,000 and RMB300,000,000 respectively.
Based on the maximum amount of loan that may be granted
by Kuangshi Jiye under the Langfang Framework Agreement,
the cap amount of the interest receivable from each of Hanten
(or its designated fellow subsidiary in the PRC) and Beijing
Vanke for each of the three years ending 31 December 2019
were RMB14,000,000 and RMB14,000,000 respectively.

Beijing Vanke is a substantial shareholder of Kuangshi Jiye and
is therefore a connected person at the subsidiary level of the
Company. As the Independent Non-executive Directors have
confirmed that the terms of the Langfang Framework
Agreement are fair and reasonable, on normal commercial
terms and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole, the Langfang Framework Agreement
is subject to annual review, reporting and announcement
requirements, but exempt from circular, independent financial
advice and Shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

No entrustment loan was provided by Kuangshi Jiye to Beijing
Vanke and no interest was received by Kuangshi Jiye from
Beijing Vanke for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).
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10.

A tenancy agreement dated 29 December 2015 was entered
into between Fifth Plaza Co (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Minmetals) as the landlord, and Minmetals Land Beijing
and Condo Shanghai (both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company) as the tenants (“Tenancy Agreement IV") in
respect of the leasing of the premises situated at Minmetals
Plaza, Beijing, the PRC.

A supplemental agreement to Tenancy Agreement IV dated 30
December 2016 was entered into between Fifth Plaza Co,
Minmetals Land Beijing and Condo Shanghai whereby Condo
Shanghai would terminate its portion of the lease under
Tenancy Agreement IV with effect from 1 January 2017 and
Minmetals Land Beijing would assume all the obligations of
Condo Shanghai under Tenancy Agreement IV with effect
from 1 January 2017.

A second supplemental agreement to Tenancy Agreement IV
dated 11 May 2017 was entered into between Fifth Plaza Co
and Minmetals Land Beijing whereby the monthly rent per
square metre and the rental area of the leased premises be
reduced for the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2018.

10.
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Details of Tenancy Agreement IV as supplemented are set out

below:

Premises . part of 7th Floor, BM and B1 Floors, Tower
A, Minmetals Plaza, 3 Chaoyangmen North
Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC

Car Parking Seven car parking spaces at Minmetals Plaza

Spaces

Period . three years commencing from 1 January
2016 to 31 December 2018 (both dates
inclusive)

Rental . the rent for the premises (exclusive of

management, electricity and public facility
charges) was RMB220,331.10 per calendar
month

the rent for the car parking spaces (exclusive
of management fees) was RMB8,400 per
calendar month

The annual caps for the rent payable by Minmetals Land
Beijing in respect of Tenancy Agreement IV as supplemented
shall not exceed RMB2,744,773.20 for each of the two years
ending 31 December 2018. As all the applicable percentage
ratios in respect of the annual rent payable by Minmetals Land
Beijing under Tenancy Agreement IV as supplemented are less
than 5%, Tenancy Agreement IV as supplemented is subject to
annual review, reporting and announcement requirements, but
exempt from circular, independent financial advice and
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The aggregate sum of the rental paid by Minmetals Land
Beijing under Tenancy Agreement IV as supplemented for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB2,562,641 (2016:
RMB14,133,077).
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11.

A conditional construction contracting agreement dated 4
November 2013 was entered into between the Company and
23rd Metallurgical (a non wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Minmetals) whereby the Company may from time to time
invite 23rd Metallurgical or its subsidiaries to tender and
award construction contracts, subject to successful tender, in
respect of the existing and future real estate development
projects of the Group in the PRC for the period from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016 (the “23rd Metallurgical
Agreement”). The 23rd Metallurgical Agreement has expired
on 31 December 2016.

A conditional construction contracting agreement dated 19
April 2017 was entered into between the Company and China
Minmetals whereby the Group may from time to time invite
China Minmetals, its subsidiaries and entities whose financial
statements have been accounted for in the financial
statements of China Minmetals on a consolidated basis
(“China Minmetals Group”) to tender and award construction
contracts, subject to successful tender, in respect of the
existing and future real estate development projects of the
Group in the PRC and Hong Kong for the period from 19
April 2017 to 18 April 2020

Agreement”). The contract sum to be awarded by the Group

("Construction Framework

to China Minmetals Group for periods from 19 April 2017 to
31 December 2017, 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018, 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 to 18
April 2020 will not exceed the annual caps below:

11.
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The Construction Framework Agreement and the aforesaid
annual cap were considered and approved by independent
shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 31 May 2017.

The aggregate contract sum awarded by the Group to China
Minmetals Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
RMB1,074,098,931 (2016:
awarded by the Group to 23rd Metallurgical or its

no construction contract was

subsidiaries).

ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the above continuing
connected transactions (“Continuing Connected Transactions”) have
been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions were carried
out:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the

Company than terms available to or from (as appropriate)

independent third parties; and

(¢) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s independent auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, was
engaged to report on the Continuing Connected Transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740
Transactions under the Listing Rules”

“Assurance Engagements
“Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its
unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group on
pages 125 to 138 of this Annual
paragraph 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter

Report in accordance with

has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO
RULES 13.18 AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

OFL (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as the
borrower, the Company and MLI (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) as the guarantors and certain banks as the
lenders (the “Lenders”) entered into a term loan facility
agreement for a 5-year term loan facility (“Facility 1”) in the
principal amount of HK$5,300,000,000 on 20 December 2013
(“Facility Agreement 1").

Pursuant to Facility Agreement |, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall
beneficially (directly or indirectly) own not less than 31% of
the issued Shares of the Company as well as remain the single
largest beneficial Shareholder of the Company and has control
over the management of the Company. A breach of any of the
aforesaid conditions would constitute an event of default and
the Lenders may (i) cancel all commitments under Facility
Agreement I; and/or (ii) demand that all or part of the loans
together with accrued interest and all other amounts accrued
under Facility | be immediately due and payable; and/or (iii)
demand that all or part of the loans be payable on demand.

Condo Hong Kong (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
as the borrower and the Company as the guarantor, accepted
the offer from a bank (the “Bank”) for the grant of general
banking facility in an aggregate amount of HK$100,000,000
(“Facility 1I") on 9 April 2015. Facility Il has no fixed term and
is subject to periodic review of the Bank.

As one of the conditions of Facility Il, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall remain
the single largest Shareholder of the Company maintaining at
least 31% of the beneficiary interest of and have management
control over the Company. Upon a breach of any of the
aforesaid conditions, the Bank may suspend, withdraw or make
demand for repayment of the whole or any part of Facility Il
offered to Condo Hong Kong.
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Condo Macau (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) as
the borrower and the Company as the guarantor, accepted the
offer from a bank (the “Bank”) for the grant of general
banking facility in an aggregate amount of HK$200,000,000
(“Facility 11") on 27 April 2015. Facility Ill has no fixed term
and is subject to periodic review of the Bank.

As one of the conditions of Facility Ill, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall remain
the single largest Shareholder of the Company maintaining at
least 31% of the beneficiary interest of and have management
control over the Company. Upon a breach of any of the
aforesaid conditions, the Bank may demand for immediate
repayment of all sums of moneys granted to Condo Macau
and the interest accrued.

Condo Hong Kong as the borrower and the Company as the
guarantor, accepted the offer from a bank (the “Bank”) for
the grant of general banking facility in an aggregate amount
of HK$100,000,000 (“Facility IV") on 27 November 2015.
Facility IV is subject to annual review of the Bank.

As one of the conditions of Facility IV, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall remain
the single largest Shareholder of the Company and have
management control over the Company. Upon a breach of any
of the aforesaid conditions, Facility IV is repayable in full
amount on demand by the Bank.

OFL as the borrower, the Company and MLI as the guarantors
and certain banks as the lenders (the “Lenders”) entered into
a facility agreement for a 4-year term loan facility (“Facility V")
in the principal amount of HK$6,000,000,000 on 8 June 2016
(“Facility Agreement V").
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Pursuant to Facility Agreement V, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall own
beneficially (directly or indirectly) at least 31% of the entire
issued share capital in the Company as well as remain the
single largest Shareholder (directly or indirectly) of the
Company and has management control over the Company. A
breach of any of the aforesaid conditions would constitute an
event of default and the Lenders may (i) cancel all or any part
of the commitments under Facility Agreement V; and/or (ii)
declare that all or part of the loans together with accrued
interest and all other amounts accrued under Facility V be
immediately due and payable; and/or (iii) declare that all or
part of the loans be payable on demand.

OFL as the borrower, the Company and MLI as the guarantors
and a bank as the lender (the “Lender”) entered into a term
loan facility agreement for a 4-year term loan facility (“Facility
VI") in the principal amount of HK$1,800,000,000 on 28 June
2016 (“Facility Agreement VI").

Pursuant to Facility Agreement VI, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall own
beneficially (directly or indirectly) not less than 31% of the
issued Shares of the Company as well as remain the single
largest beneficial Shareholder of the Company and has control
over the management of the Company. A breach of any of the
aforesaid conditions would constitute an event of default and
the Lender may (i) cancel all commitments under Facility
Agreement VI; and/or (ii) demand that all or part of the loans
together with accrued interest and all other amounts accrued
under Facility VI be immediately due and payable; and/or (iii)
demand that all or part of the loans be payable on demand.
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Massive Leader Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) as the borrower, the Company as the guarantor
and certain banks as the lenders (the “Lenders”) entered into
a term loan facility agreement for a 5.5-year secured term loan
facility (“Facility VII") in the principal amount of
HK$5,500,000,000 on 20 March 2017 (“Facility Agreement
vIr).

Pursuant to Facility Agreement VI, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall own
beneficially (directly or indirectly) not less than 31% of the
entire issued share capital in the Company as well as remain
the single largest Shareholder of the Company and has
management control over the Company. A breach of any of
the aforesaid conditions would constitute an event of default
and the Lenders may (i) cancel all or part of the commitments
under Facility Agreement VII; and/or (ii) declare that all or part
of the loans, together with accrued interest, and all other
amounts accrued under Facility VII be immediately due and
payable; and/or (iii) declare that all or part of the loans be
payable on demand; and/or (iv) exercise or direct the security
agent to exercise any or all of its rights, remedies, powers or
discretions under the Finance Documents (as defined in Facility
Agreement VII) and in respect of the Transaction Security (as
defined in Facility Agreement VII).

Condo Hong Kong as the borrower and the Company as the
guarantor, accepted the offer from a bank (the “Bank”) for
the grant of general banking facility in an aggregate amount
of HK$70,000,000 (“Facility VIII”) on 26 October 2017. Facility
VIl is subject to annual review of the Bank.

As one of the conditions of Facility VIII, China Minmetals, the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, shall remain
the single largest Shareholder of the Company maintaining
(directly or indirectly) not less than 31% shareholding interest
of and have management control over the Company. Upon a
breach of any of the aforesaid conditions, all amounts due
under Facility VIII shall be due and payable and the Bank shall
not be required to make any further advances under Facility
VIII.
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9. Condo Hong Kong as the borrower and the Company as the
guarantor, accepted the offer from a bank (the “Bank”) for
the grant of general banking facility in an aggregate amount
of HK$150,000,000 (“Facility IX”) on 26 October 2017. Facility
IX is subject to annual review of the Bank.

As one of the conditions of Facility IX, China Minmetals, the
shall
maintain controlling shareholding in the Company. Upon a

ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company,

breach of the aforesaid condition, all amounts due under
Facility IX shall be due and payable and the Bank shall not be
required to make any further advances under Facility IX.
Save as disclosed above, the Company does not have other
disclosure obligations under Rules 13.18 and 13.21 of the Listing
Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the notices submitted to the Company pursuant to the
SFO, the Directors are of the view that sufficient public float exists
for the issued Shares as at the date of this Annual Report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed with the
independent auditor the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and has also discussed
auditing,

reporting matters including the review of the accounting practices

risk management and internal control, and financial

and principles adopted by the Group.
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"

Report of the Directors
ESEEHRE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements as contained in this Annual
Report have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who will
retire at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

appointment at the AGM.

By order of the Board
He Jianbo
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VR TR

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MINMETALS LAND LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Minmetals
Land Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 152 to 277, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter

FEZEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAMEZNAHAREXSHETREE

Valuation of investment properties

REMEME

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter because the valuation process is
based on an estimation of future results, a set of
assumptions and a determination of key inputs, which
are judgemental. Any changes to these inputs may have
a significant impact on the fair value. Management
determined the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2017 with the assistance of
an independent external valuer.
BABREMELREIRIREREZER  RARM
BEBREDARKREZE M —EREREETZEE
WABBAER AHERZEERAEME - ZFHA
HEZ2AMNEHHAEESARBEERNEATE - BB
BEBIIBEEMZHH T ETEEEREME
RZTE—tF+_A=+—HZARE"

Details of the investment properties and the related key
estimation uncertainty are set out in Notes 14 and 4,
respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.
FEAREMERBBEIZ2EATANER ZFH1B 2 5
HNFEE M BHRERMT145%4 -
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Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of
investment properties included:
BMAREEBEREMEMERTZEFEEBEAT
BEIERT

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the external valuer engaged by
management.

B REREMZENIINEEM 2 ER e S
REBIME -

o Obtaining a copy of valuation report prepared by the
external valuer and discussing with the external
valuer to understand the basis of determination of
valuation.

BMEVGBRINBEEM ARG ERS - I EINED
HERBR  THRETHEMNELE-

o Challenging the external valuer the methodologies
and judgements used in valuing the investment
properties and obtaining the market evidence that
the external valuer used to support the key inputs.
ERIBEEMELEREMESARANTG A
KB - I BAS SNED AR B R A A S R B8 A BUR
BT 5 R o

o Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures of the fair
value measurement of investment properties
including the fair value measurement hierarchy, the
valuation techniques and significant unobservable
inputs in the consolidated financial statements.
FEGEEMBRRNEBREVEZAAEAE
ZHREEH BRARENEER HEFERE
RAOA B R ARIE -



Key audit matter

AEXEIR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAMEZNAHAREXSHETREE

Revenue from sales of properties

HEMEKRA

We identified the revenue from sales of properties as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the amount
and volume of sales transactions recognised during the
year.
BHPBEHEMERABIIRBEREZER REARF
NERNHERX IS HEMNBEEK -

Details of revenue from sales of properties are set out in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEREEMRWAFIBHNER S B MK M FES -

Our procedures in relation to revenue from sales of
properties included:

BRI EEDERARTZRFEERS

o Testing key internal controls over revenue
recognition on a sample basis.

RN A B AR RN T EREES -

o Selecting property sales transactions on a sample
basis and:
BEMBEREYREERS XL H:

— reading the signed sales and purchase
agreements to understand the relevant terms
of the timing of property delivery and title
transfer.

BECEZZEEmS  UATRYEIMNRE
e B G ) BRF [ A AR A MR o

—  obtaining evidence regarding the property
delivery and title transfer.

REBME X R LRGBS -

—  reconciling the monetary amounts of recorded
transactions and related payments to the
signed sales and purchase agreements.
RELHRXINEESERBEBANRES R
ZEEEWMEHER-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial

statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mok Sau Fan.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2018
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21 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
WNSERR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

2017 2016
—E—tE _—ZT—KF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#ET FH T
Revenue B 5 11,935,505 11,576,345
Cost of sales 3 B B AR (7,841,935)  (9,316,033)
Gross profit E7 4,093,570 2,260,312
Other income, other gains and losses Halg A~ Efblias K & 18 7 61,306 81,644
Fair value changes on investment properties ®R& ¥ QN 7 EE 14 151,334 123,977
Selling and marketing expenses HEREIHER (185,569) (218,096)
Administrative and other expenses THREAMEX (590,113) (423,903)
Finance income B s A 9 147,039 241,362
Finance costs B 75 K 7R 9 (114,674) (55,669)
Share of results of associates DIEHE N ELS 16 (2,495) (12,135)
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEE RN ESE 17 (2,610) —
Profit before tax B %t 7 izs 1 3,557,788 1,997,492
Income tax expense FriS BB X 10 (2,108,987) (1,000,313)
Profit for the year KEFRH 6 1,448,801 997,179
Profit for the year attributable to: AEEGAEBR :
Equity holders of the Company RAGIRERE A 712,914 512,058
Holders of perpetual capital instruments KABEATEEEA 1,303 —
Non-controlling interests R R = 734,584 485,121
1,448,801 997,179
Earnings per share for profit attributable AT REHFA
to equity holders of FE1LiEm A2z
the Company, in HK cents SEEF - &AW
Basic BN 11 21.32 15.31
Diluted B 11 21.30 15.30
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=1 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

T \/\f' m R H M2 E WS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ

T tFF+ZA=t—HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Profit for the year AN F E i A 1,448,801 997,179
Other comprehensive income/(expense): BREEHEBEZERAN
(ZH):
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to H & A e EF 7 2 1B
profit or loss: ZIHE :
Currency translation differences E%%%ﬁ 1,000,250 (1,045,516)
Fair value (loss)/gain on hedging instruments in ReEREAFHNEHRTA
cash flow hedges ZRARIE(ER)
Y g (39,552) 115,637
Share of other comprehensive SLEEE AR HE M E
income/(expense) of associates WA/ (FAX) 79,886 (78,151)
Share of other comprehensive income of ShEERRAMEE
joint ventures WA 3,156 —
1,043,740 (1,008,030)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to BHEE T & E# 74 E 525
profit or loss: ZHEE
Gain on revaluation of owner-occupied BERAMEEZEEREY
properties upon transfer to investment (B 2B MK
properties — 3,045
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair BEMEE R EIE
value through other comprehensive income ”Aj‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ'iz,ﬂﬂ‘%
BEEHMELAZ
Wz (B#E) 311,135 (129,063)
311,135 (126,018)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for RNEEZH M2 H
the year WA (ZH) 1,354,875 (1,134,048)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for XEERBEZA
the year WA () &8 2,803,676 (136,869)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for FEERBEZTRAN
the year attributable to: (TH)BEFEBER :
Equity holders of the Company KArlRERFE A 1,904,065 (363,145)
Holders of perpetual capital instruments XKABARTEFTAEA 1,303 —
Non-controlling interests FEEMR AR R = 898,308 226,276
2,803,676 (136,869)
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NING B &R0 3=

As at 31 December 2017 R=F—tHF+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—FE—tE ZEZ=—REF
NOTES HK$000 HK$ 000
B 7 FHET FAT
ASSETS &aE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BE &R E 13 190,025 186,661
Investment properties AW 14 1,814,294 1,662,326
Goodwill kS 15 = 8,879
Interests in associates i) R NI X 16(a) 1,218,443 1,141,052
Interests in joint ventures REERA 2R 17(a) 99,065 —
Financial assets at fair value through FERHEMEERSE AN
other comprehensive income Bt BEE 21 792,817 481,682
Other financial assets Hih i & e 22 76,085 115,637
Deferred tax assets RIERIHE E 29 1,096,579 560,757
5,287,308 4,156,994
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 25,353,243 18,919,140
Amounts due from customers for BWEFZAEXHNITRERIE
contract work 19 119,020 347,537
Prepayments, trade and other TENHIE - B5 KHAM
receivables & WK IE 20 12,003,147 11,764,690
Cash and bank deposits, restricted ZREIIR e KIRITERK 23 623,774 242,201
Cash and bank deposits, unrestricted DR HI3R & R IRITIF K 24 5,631,889 5,431,519
43,731,073 36,705,087
Total assets EEAH 49,018,381 40,862,081
EQUITY i
Share capital A& 7 25 334,503 334,444
Reserves f# 1 26 8,018,174 6,247,680
Equity attributable to equity holders EATIREREA
of the Company FE1h Z HE 8,352,677 6,582,124
Perpetual capital instruments KABAXIR 27 2,393,903 —
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R R 2,855,958 1,967,748
Total equity WA 13,602,538 8,549,872
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2017 2016
—®—t& =—T-A%

NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 3 FHET FHBT
LIABILITIES BfE
Non-current liabilities ERHER
Borrowings f& 3K 28 10,770,064 11,314,859
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE 29 168,431 131,080
Other liabilities EmaE 223 386
10,938,718 11,446,325
Current liabilities mENBE
Borrowings & 3K 28 3,978,151 299,564
Other financial liabilities EMyEaE 22 41,960 —
Trade and other payables 8 5 K H th fE 5 518 30 9,516,785 7,753,209
Deferred revenue IR IE A 31 10,383,976 12,419,623
Taxation payable JE - 7 18 556,253 393,488
24,477,125 20,865,884
Total liabilities =Rk 35,415,843 32,312,209
Total equity and liabilities EERaEEE 49,018,381 40,862,081
Net current assets MENEEFE 19,253,948 15,839,203
Total assets less current liabilities BEHBERBREBAERE 24,541,256 19,996,197

The consolidated financial statements on pages 152 to 277 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 27
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

FIRREF2ITENHEETBERRER_Z—N
FZAZt+tREESSH AW FERE I

HTIIALTRERES:

He Jianbo 1 &l ;i He Xiaoli {/NEE
DIRECTOR & = DIRECTOR E =
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=1 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
L \/\%ﬁéﬁ“iﬁé

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=Z—

tFE+Z A=+ —HLEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AT RERH AR

Perpetual
capital Non-controlling
Share capital Reserves Total instruments interests Total equity
KR E 32l
(&3 i BE AFIR (&2 51 Hnas
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHT THT THT FHT THT THT
(Note 26) (Note 27)
(M &E26) (ME27)
As at 1 January 2016 R-ZE—A"F—f—H 334,428 7,022,793 7,357,221 — 4,289,672 11,646,893
Profit for the year FRNE A — 512,058 512,058 — 485,121 997,179
Other comprehensive expense for the year FRE 2 EME X - (875,203) (875,203) — (258,845) (1,134,048)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for AFEBRFREE
the year, net of tax (RA%) JhA#E — (363,145) (363,145) = 226,276 (136,869)
Issue of shares BIIRH 16 56 72 = — 72
Acquisition of the equity interests of 1R) JF 22 AR AR 3R 4 B B
subsidiaries from non-controlling G4 T
shareholders — (343,088) (343,088) — (2,275,483) (2,618,571)
Reversal of employee share option BEEEERERT
benefits — (2,050) (2,050) = = (2,050)
Dividends paid to shareholders of the RARARREZ 2R S
Company — (66,886) (66,886) — — (66,886)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B A A FEERRE
shareholders of subsidiaries TRZEE — — - = (272,717) (272,717)
16 (411,968) (411,952) — (2,548,200) (2,960,152)
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-R"E+ZA
=+—H 334,444 6,247,680 6,582,124 — 1,967,748 8,549,872
Profit for the year FR A — 712,914 712,914 1,303 734,584 1,448,801
Other comprehensive income for the year & R E 2 KA — 1,191,151 1,191,151 — 163,724 1,354,875
Total comprehensive income for the year, A& ERH % 2EUA
net of tax ek ) — 1,904,065 1,904,065 1,303 898,308 2,803,676
Issue of shares BIRG 59 206 265 — — 265
Issue of perpetual capital instruments BITKAEATA — — — 2,392,600 = 2,392,600
Capital reduction paid to a non- m—RHBRARZ—%
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary FERBREL 2
RAHIH — — — — (10,098) (10,098)
Dividends paid to shareholders of mMARRRR L2 RS
the Company — (133,777) (133,777) — — (133,777)
59 (133,571) (133,512) 2,392,600 (10,098) 2,248,990
As at 31 December 2017 —T—t5+=A
Er=10 334,503 8,018,174 8,352,677 2,393,903 2,855,958 13,602,538
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21 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

IWNSHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—T—tE —ZEZ—KF
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 5 TFER FET
Operating activities BEEE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KBS EE(FTA)
Re 33(a) 2,556,737 (584,430)
Income tax paid BT ER (2,087,999) (1,255,742)
Interest paid 21 F & (653,763) (462,855)
Net cash used in operating activities HETEHFMARESEHE (185,025)  (2,303,027)
Investing activities BEEE

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Advance to an associate

Loans to a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary

Interest received

Investments in joint ventures

Advances to joint ventures

Advance to a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary

Dividends from an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

BEWE BMELERE

HEME  BERREM

(SE S|

A—KBERRBRE

ERXRT-—ZHWBRAZ
— BB BR

B F 8

RERERT

A& ERABBRE

A—XMBRFZ—%3F
ERBRBE

KE—KBERRZBE

REGTHRMAREFHE

(11,250) (3,084)
1,933 664
(6,612) (88,062)

(1,110,731) (1,412,307)

147,039 241,362
(98,292) =
(4,750,871) =
(125,058) =
— 120,860

(5,953,842) (1,140,567)

AmMESRAT —T—+taa® | 157



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/—ﬁ IE%/)ILE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE—-T—

tFE+Z A=+ —HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—tFE ZZZT—KF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FER FET
Financing activities REE
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG P15 KIB 265 72
New borrowings iR R = 5,383,203 4,708,833
Repayment of borrowings EBEERK (2,329,768) (5,672,898)
Issue of perpetual capital instruments BITXAEBARTAR 2,392,600 =
Advance from a fellow subsidiary RE—XKRARMBAAZ
g 1,036,812 2,124,419
Dividends paid to the shareholders of the AT T AR AR Z &S
Company (133,777) (66,886)
Dividends paid to a non-controlling ENF—RHMBRAEZ—
shareholder of a subsidiary BIEERBRR 2K E — (272,717)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of WEEHB AR Z
subsidiaries FE 12 AR M A — (2,618,571)
Capital reduction paid to a non- M—RWEAG 2 —%
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary FEEBRBR R 2
P 2 R (10,098) —
Net cash generated from/(used in) AEESME
financing activities (A REFHE 6,339,237 (1,797,748)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash #in, CRd)BRE RIES
equivalents ZLEY 200,370 (5,241,342)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of HF#ZRE KB LEEY
the year 5,431,519 10,672,861
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FR2BERREEEY
year 24 5,631,889 5,431,519

158 | Minmetals Land Limited Annual Report 2017




21 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MWVINE B 7% 37 3R B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —BREHR

Minmetals Land Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries hEMERR AR (ARARD REWEA
(collectively, the "Group”) is principally engaged in real estate A(ABIAEE) T EXHREHESR
development, specialised construction, property investment and B BERE PERERBHFEE -F
securities investment. The People’s Republic of China is the ZEANRENBARNEBEB 2ETEME -
major market for the Group’s businesses.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in RARA—REBREFMKILZEBRA
Bermuda. The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Ale RARIEBBHERZIFIABERA A
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate ([BE R FT]) ET - HEHEZER A R Alune
holding company is June Glory International Limited Glory International Limited © — R 7 & &
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) and its ultimate BRHENRIYMAR  MERKZERAR
holding company is China Minmetals Corporation RYBABEEEERAR  —KEFER
(incorporated in Mainland China). HIPK 3L HY R &) o

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of RARWMEMHERER T EEFEMEHE
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate RERMIARER]EE o

Information section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong BRIESHER LFEVBRERABT
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HK dollar(s)”), unless otherwise ([BrDIE  BARA 2NEEEEH
stated, which is also the functional currency of the Company. EIE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. M AT B KRG ET 9 AT i B 5

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

o Q) ([ 8 S0 25 3 4 10 1) Y

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) WEH
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily i ZIK A B 5 ﬂ%lJ A B 2 7 s W
effective for the current year oY ) 2 (T

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

RAEE KRB S REAATE B85
MR ((BEERHEAR)) B2 BB
BREERZ (5E] -

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative BB ER BB E
BT Z2EFT
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax ARG EA RAEREBERARE
Assets for Unrealised Losses B2 2185 EBIEBEEE
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual BEAMBmE BEMBREER
Improvements to HKFRSs ZE BI| 581255 —E-MEE=F
2014-2016 Cycle ZAEET —NFREZFE
Mt 2 — 2D
Except as described below, the application of the amendments BR TSRt oh - SR AN F LS 7] B S

to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

BHRELENTEHAKBENANFE RBE
FEZHBRBARMRE R FiRa 0
BREMBBEBEEXTANEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. Al M RR B ET B A W 5
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING e O (7 98 3 5 3 Y 1)) iy
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED) WM ()

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative s o 5l UE QN 5B 79% bk 85 51 3

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in AEBERAFEERERAZEZER © %
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide ZEITERERIFLHRE  UEHBRE
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to MERERNERESSMEIBNaRE
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, It BREASRIIERSEL - I &
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the BIIMER - EeRBEENREREDE
amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial SERKRERER T AREEHNER
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future ERER ERRTHSREENEDY -
cash flows will be included in cash flows from financing

activities.

Specially, the amendments require the following to be BEEME  ZFEITERBEETIEE
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes (VR ERESRENED : ()EVE sk Kk =M
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other J& A A SH fh R SR G RE P S| RE R E )
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange (I)INEE RSB E  (v)Q 1 EBEHE
rates; (iv) changes in fair value; and (v) other changes. g RWWEMES -

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of ZEHEONFIRERERE RN
these items is provided in Note 33. Consistent with the 33 - IRIBEFTRIEE IR - REE W&
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not BEEFHOLRER - RHTF330EEINE
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart BN HAZEEITLEASASEENEGE
from the additional disclosure in the Note 33, the application W mRERTE -

of these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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7 AT T 0 T 0 O A
e ] (75 v o 5 8 2% e 1 D) iy
W () )
T 7 i AH v R AR R 2 B AT M 2R i
W] A WS B 5 Rk o YE
AEBWHEIERZEANTEBMHEERKRE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

M REIET BB B RE LA

effective:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments® EAVBmEEN SRIA
ELh
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers EAVBWEEL BERPAAKRAREBEE
and the related Amendments' F159% S
HKFRS 16 Leases? ERMBRESLERN ME
165
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts* EAVBWEEL REEH
175
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and &% (BEH%EER INELXGRBHARKE
Advance Consideration' tREZE®)
— BREFE22R
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax 5% (BEH%EER MENEENTET
Treatments? tREZE®) A =2
— BREFE23R
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of EAVBREEL ROINRZZHER
Share-based Payment Transactions' 825 2B F] G
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BEENBHEED ERBEBHBEREEL
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts' AR 2 EFT FOReRMIARSE
BB REERFL
SR A 4
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative EENBHELED REEREUR
Compensation? BN 2B F] BHE
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets between BEAVBWEE KREFEHEBENAK
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint B0 RBEBE ARELREHCEEH
Venture? STERIE28H . EFEAE?
EH)
Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and BEREEHEAFE2S BERTAREERAN
Joint Ventures? 2 1B ET & B R 22
Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual Improvements to BEREEHEAFEL BAUBRELN-T
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle' k2 IER] —MEE-T—RF
BHYzEEMEr—
BH
Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property! EAEGFERFI0 ERLEME
k2 IER]
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs EENBHRELD BAUBRELN-ZF
2015-2017 Cycle? AL —hEE-T—LtF
B2 F B

AEBEARAA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

1

2

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, except

for the 2010 version of HKFRS 9, which the Group has early adopted on
1 January 2011.

Except for the new HKFRSs mentioned below, the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that the application
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
Interpretations will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are applicable to the Group

are:

in relation to the impairment of financial assets. HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

the new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components of
non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the retrospective quantitative
effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced disclosure
requirements about an entity’s risk management activities
have also been introduced.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The Directors are of the view that the expected credit loss
model may result in early provision of credit losses which are
not yet incurred for the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised costs. Based on the assessment by the Directors, if
the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be
recognised by the Group as at 1 January 2018 would not be
materially increased as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39.

The Directors anticipate that the application of new hedging
requirements may not have a material impact on the Group's
current hedge designation and hedge accounting.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

Based on the existing contracts and arrangements, the
Directors have assessed the impact on application of HKFRS 15
and did not anticipate a material impact on the timing and
amounts of revenue recognised in the respective reporting
periods of the Group. However, application of HKFRS 15 may
have impact on the following areas:

Currently, the Group expensed off the costs associated with
obtaining the sales of properties contracts with customers.
Under the requirement of HKFRS 15, incremental costs of
obtaining a contract is eligible for capitalisation as deferred
contract costs if they meet certain criteria. The Director
expects the recognition of deferred contract costs would not
materially increase opening retained profit and deferred tax
liabilities at 1 January 2018.

In respect of sales of properties, when payments are made
before the properties are delivered to the customer, the
customer may provide the Group with a benefit of financing.
The Group will not adjust the amount of promised
consideration if the difference between that amount and the
cash selling price is not material at a contract level or if the
Group expects at contract inception, that the period between
the Group transfers the property and when the customer pays
for that property will be one year or less. Otherwise, the
Group will adjust the amount of promised consideration and
recognise revenue at the cash selling price in accordance with
the requirement of HKFRS 15.

In addition, the application of HKRS 15 in the future may

2.
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result in more disclosures in the consolidated financial ARESERREEUERRIELESZH
statements. %
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The Directors intend to apply the limited retrospective method
with cumulative effect of initial application recognised in
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to
be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. Hial R BB R B A o BB
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING e Q) ([ 7 8 10 5 3 e T 1) Y
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED) WEH (4)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (SRR EN T s ey T S § 8 5
effective (Continued) w) A ok BB R e T (4)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) B i Y TR AR E 1698 [ ()
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable AT FE3SFT R ER - AEER T —+F
operating lease commitments of HK$27,045,000 as disclosed in T A=+ — B%AE AU AR & 4
Note 35. A preliminary assessment indicates that these #27,045,0008 7L c I F T BT - % F
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon the ZHRFEHEZEE - [ERB RN KR
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of- HEBE165 % AEERAAEZLEFMN
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these ERATRAEEERBENEE  BRIFF
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases. In AEETEEEERENES - it &
addition, the application of new requirements may result R HERREZB E Xzt E - 25 &
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as BEEEEH AN REFTHNFERS
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a BIAl REFAG BT E &R ME LA
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the Directors A[AT e

complete a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment il & Al R E1098 2 15 5T [ 15 B 7 &
Property EN

The amendments clarify that a transfer to, or from, investment REBI R FEENEEREMETNM
property necessitates an assessment of whether a property MERBFEXTHREREMEZTE
meets, or has ceased to meet, the definition of investment E ZTEANEREERE(BgME) X
property, supported by observable evidence that a change in Fro ZEEBRIE—PRBER G EUE
use has occurred. The amendments further clarify that 405% FT 5 1B R A 2 18 1 3 AT 78 A A 38 X
situations other than the ones listed in HKAS 40 may evidence B mZzAsKNENRERRERTY
a change in use, and that a change in use is possible for X oENH ERFEBARERMREBRF
properties under construction. For example, change in use for HEERPYENRENE FTHERAS—
transfer from properties under development for sale in the FREMKERERERE - Bl NEE
ordinary course of business to investment properties could be BEKLHERBEBEBERAR-

evidenced by inception of an operating lease to another party.
Currently, the Group accounts for such transfer only upon
commencement of an operating lease.

The Directors do not expect a material impact on the amounts EFERHBE I EEHAEENGS I BRE
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated SHERBBEERKERTE -

financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the fair
value of investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transferred at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals the
transaction price.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as below:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributable to the equity holders of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the equity holders of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to ensure conformity with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the equity holders in their capacity as
equity holders. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid or received and the relevant share of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary adjusted is
recorded in equity and attributed to equity holders of the
Company.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interests and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on the initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Associates and joint ventures

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate or a
joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture other than
profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint
venture. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value on the date it lost
significant influence over the investee and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of such interest (or partial interest) in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the associate or joint
venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by the associate or
joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate or joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of assets),
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of respective entities of the Group using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for:

—  Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; and

—  Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s interests.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

— income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, attributable
to non-controlling interests as appropriate. Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation that does not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposal of associates
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax and discounts and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as described below.

Sales of completed properties

Revenue from sale of completed properties is recognised when
the properties are delivered and titles are transferred, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

o The Group has transferred to the purchasers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods.

o The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

o The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and instalments received on properties sold prior to
meeting the above criteria for revenue recognition are
recognised as deferred revenue under current liabilities.

Contract revenue
The accounting policy for contract revenue recognition is set
out under construction contracts.

Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised when services are
provided.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for
leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Operating leases

Leases in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit
of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as an
operating lease. Specifically, the entire considerations
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element at initial recognition.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the leasehold land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance
lease.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises the related costs as expenses for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs are
expensed in the profit or loss during the period in which they
are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEEEBOR (M)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued) W3k ~ BB Kok e (48)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences o rRmEMEZHE LN LA
amortisation from the time when the land interest becomes HEBTREANEHABHE S AMEMR
available for its intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land EvHEIHBHEREMEENENRA
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets is BEEELAEET A8 A BB 4R T 21 4F R 5 B
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost to the Ro#EHEFBREBETE -

residual values over the estimated useful lives with annual
rates as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 2%-5% HETHREF 2%-5%
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining period HEMEEE | #4270 & BB
of the lease

Machinery 5%—-25% 1 23 5%—25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%-25% RE -KBREZE 15%—-25%

Motor vehicles 20%-30% ] 20%-30%
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation HEAEASEE SRERFTEERNSHRS
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, BARAR AT - AT E B8 52 8% R K@
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a FREAETIER o

prospective basis.

Gain and loss on disposals are determined by comparing the HEWRERERIEREERMSREAL
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the LR ME - WRIBm AR -

profit or loss.

Investment properties BREWE

Investment properties, comprise land held under operating KRENMEBRERBEEERNERAN TR
leases and buildings, are held to earn rentals or for capital BF HERRE S E RIEENREF
appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the companies B BVWEBHALEEETARMGRZY
comprising the Group. X

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including KREMEZVEKAGTE (BREEERXS
related transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, BAR) - EBRERE REVEERAR
investment properties are carried at fair value. Gains and losses B REMEAABEGEEHNRKE
arising from fair value changes on investment properties are REBEREEEBBEG AER -

included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use REFERNERHEBERBIEREMEZY
as investment property is carried at fair value. Where fair value EERRAREYE- WA R ETEERET
is not reliably measurable, such investment property under = HEHEEREMEZKAGE B
construction is measured at cost until the fair value becomes EAEBITEARBEHIRELIETI (R
reliably measurable or construction is completed (whichever is REERE)RILL - FEREREYMEM
earlier). Investment properties that are being redeveloped for FTESRIREMEEBRAREFE -

continuing use as investment properties continue to be
measured at fair value.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and
maintenance costs are expensed in the profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value
at the date of transfer becomes its deemed cost for
accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has been changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any differences
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of
property, plant and equipment in accordance with HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment. However, to the extent that a
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss for that
property, the gain is recognised in the profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from the
disposals. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises from the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree (if
any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets and liabilities assumed. Goodwill is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EEEHBUR(H)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Goodwill (Continued) 2 (4)
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more HEGFETRERN  HEBESHLR
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a HERNEE R L IRAER  EHE
potential impairment. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in R c R BmEHKEmMELENEE
a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill mE - WEMYENKIERSESEURZ
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of HE A RAGETRENR - MRS EA
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash- BAmr ke e ERAEREDE  Bles
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the FEHOBEREBEEEUEIRSEZEZECNE
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying ENEEE BRERBEZEVTEEE
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the WEEEE R BRESE REEMN
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the B E DB E o (AP E 2 R (E B 1R BN R AR
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss ReEALZ BEETSEEMD -

for goodwill is recognised immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the REEFHARESELEUR  BENRESG
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the CHEEECHEERNeEREELA -

determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets DI ZHIE K& EEE E WA
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the RBERR  AEBEHCHAFREENE
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with FREFREEZIKRABEETERN UEBETE
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication ZEEBERSLBEREDR o WL REM
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such FANKR  AEZEEAEE RO S
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset HETHE UETRESEZEE (0
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the B) o B T AR g ET B B & ZE /) AT
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the B&%E  AASEGEFEEBRNNRESE
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates EBMHAIKREESE WIHENEER—
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which WEETTHR AIRREBEENESER
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of ERREEEESLN  HREMBERTRE
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated WHORERSEABNVNRNES  MiZ
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are REeEABMNEGER—BOEELEAT
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for #al e

which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of A E S AN R EREHEEKARER
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the BEMERFzZEaE RIBEREER
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present By TR 2RI & = 9 AR AT AL 3R & Bh
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market WEIRE - ZAIR E e R E AT % FTaT
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific B EBREEREE (KBS EEHM)
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the BRERRGIUEME ARRRE& RS MHET
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. M ARAIEL T E) o
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: those to be measured subsequently at fair value,
and those to be measured at amortised cost. Regular
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on the trade date basis, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant periods. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for HEHBIAMES  FERARERIEXE
debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost. EER  HBREHKARTE -

Debt investments g % # &

Financial assets at amortised cost REERAARCMBEE

A debt investment is classified as financial assets at amortised
cost only if both of the following criteria are met: the
objective of the Group’s business model is to hold the asset to
collect the contractual cash flows; and the contractual terms
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding. The nature of any derivatives embedded in the
debt investment are considered in determining whether the
cash flows of the investment are solely payment of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding and are not
accounted for separately. The Group’s financial assets at
amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash
and bank deposits in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost is recognised in profit or loss
when the financial asset is derecognised or impaired.

The Group is required to reclassify all affected debt
investments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Equity investments

All equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity
investments that are held for trading are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. For all other equity investments,
the Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-
by-instrument basis) at initial recognition to recognise changes
in fair value through other comprehensive income rather than
profit or loss. The Group’s equity investments comprise
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity investments (Continued)

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has irrevocably elected
to present unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses
on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is
no subsequent recycling of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as long as they represent a return
on investments.

Impairment of financial assets

For financial assets at amortised cost, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
measured at amortised cost is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. For certain categories of financial assets,
such as trade and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

The amount of impairment loss is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credit to profit of loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

For perpetual capital instruments, there is no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or another financial
asset to the holders or to exchange financial assets or financial
liabilities with the holders under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the Group, are classified as equity instruments
and are initially recorded at the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including borrowings and trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into a derivative financial instrument to
manage its exposure to interest rate risk. Further details of
derivative financial instrument are disclosed in Note 22.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as
instruments for cash flow hedges.

hedging

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged item, along with its risk management
objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and
on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in
cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve are reclassified
to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss, in the same line of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as the recognised hedged item.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the
hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or
loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.
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Hedge accounting (Continued) b g6t (8)
Derecognition (Continued) AL 1 B (H)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories represent properties under development and
completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development and completed properties held
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Development cost of properties comprises cost of land
use rights, construction costs and borrowing costs incurred
during the construction period.

Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable variable selling
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion.

Properties under development are classified as current assets
unless the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete beyond normal
operating cycle.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, the Group uses the “percentage of
completion method” to determine the appropriate amount to
be recognised in a given period. The stage of completion is
measured by reference to cost incurred to date as a
percentage of total contract cost. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that
the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent
of contract costs incurred that it is probable to be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period when
incurred. When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Construction contracts (Continued)

The Group presents as an asset the gross amounts due from
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid
by customers and retentions are included within trade and
other receivables.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amounts due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised
profits (less recognised losses).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax (Continued)

3.

= a5 BOR (4)
B 3 R 3 %€ A JE (%)

Deferred tax W Bt
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising BERIBZANEE G W ERERANNEE
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their REEHERERAENEREZEER -

carrying amounts in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting periods and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting periods,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Current and deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS
40 Investment Property, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time, rather than through sale.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity
leaves are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

Group companies participate in various defined contribution
pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded through
payments to insurance companies or trustee-administered
funds.

The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised
as employee benefit expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.
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Employee benefits (Continued) i B & A (%)
Share-based compensation U Rt 75 2E BE 2 i 15
The Group operates an equity-settled share-based AEERE -EHUERREE URHARE

compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense in the profit or loss. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments granted at the grant date. The total
amount expensed is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied and based on
the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the employee share-based compensation
reserve.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits at the
earlier when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises any related restructuring
costs. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the Group's financial statements unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. When a change in the probability of an outflow
occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Critical accounting judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties located in Hong Kong are not held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the
Group's deferred taxation on investment properties located in
Hong Kong, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties located in Hong Kong are recovered entirely
through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of
investment properties located in Hong Kong as the Group is
not subject to any income taxes on the fair value changes of
the investment properties on disposal.

With regards to the Group’s investment properties located in
Mainland China, the Directors considered that they are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in these
investment properties over time. Therefore, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts of
investment properties located in Mainland China are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
recognised deferred taxes on changes in fair value of the
Group's investment properties located in Mainland China on
the basis that the entire carrying amounts of these properties
are recovered through use.

Key estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing uncertainty to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities are discussed below:

4.

CESER) WER SN
€ PR

o B €1 A B

fEERH e R AREBEERRE MR
TR BEEARBEATHEEARS
B2 RKEHRA -

B Wy 5 WA Bt H
RABENAAAEREGAENRENEE
EREERE  EFERSAKENKRE
MELEG  BRAANKEURBENRE
) 5 30 FEAR 1% DA BB B [ 10 538 48 3H B JH RE IR
BENEMBNERBIRENSZSBR
MEBRAFAE - Bt RFFEAK BT
REBHNREMEVELEH BN EFH
T URBEENRENENEEEB)IE
BHEEZBBENBRRRERERD - A
o ARETERURBENRENED
AREEPEREMELTCHE  BRAEE
ERHERENERBERIABEHH
MIERPTS AL -

ERASERTEAMNRENE EF
RR ZEMEURERXN(EBERRME
ERRNEBERARSTREVEMEEHN
BAMOKHEME)FHH - At EFH
EoURPEAMNIKENENREEE
TEBHEERBRONRRDHEES -
o BERAEERTEAMKEYENE
MEEERAEAND  HAKEDHZ
EMEIABEHERELERE -

A G A W N R

AR B H A B R KA 5t R RER © P
HEENBEREEENTHEERRZNE
KRB B0l 5T R R AR N Xt am e

AmMESRAT —T—+aE® | 191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

N

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=Z—

—
- —

-

tFE+Z A=+ —HLEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Investment properties

Independent external valuer was engaged to carry out an
independent valuation of the Group’s investment property
portfolio as at 31 December 2017. The fair value of each
investment property is individually determined at the end of
the reporting period based on market value assessment, on an
existing use basis. The valuer has relied on the income
capitalisation approach as its primary method, supported by
the direct comparison method. These methodologies are based
on an estimation of future results, a set of assumptions and a
determination of relevant key inputs specific to each property
to reflect its tenancy and cashflow profile. Changes to these
estimation, assumptions and key inputs would result in
changes in the fair values of the Group's investment properties
and the corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or
loss would be recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31
December 2017 was approximately HK$1,814,294,000 (31
December 2016: HK$1,662,326,000). More details are set out
in Note 14.

Construction contracts

The Group recognised profits and losses from construction
contracts, which were derived from the latest available
budgets of the construction contracts with reference to the
overall performance of each construction contract and the
management’s best estimates and judgements. Estimated
construction income is determined in accordance with the
terms set out in the relevant contracts. Estimated construction
costs which mainly comprise sub-contracting charges and costs
of materials are estimated by the management on the basis of
guotations from time to time provided by the major
contractors/suppliers/vendors involved and the experience of
the management. Because of the nature of the construction
industry, the management regularly reviews the progress of the
contracts and the estimated construction income and costs.

When the actual costs incurred are significantly more or less
than expected, or changes in circumstances which result in
revision of management’'s estimates on the percentage of
completion, the effect of such change is recognised
prospectively in the profit or loss in the period of the change.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred taxes

As at 31 December 2017, deferred tax assets of
HK$1,096,579,000 (2016: HK$560,757,000) have been
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position as set out in Note 29. The realisability of the deferred
tax assets mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
The Directors determine the profit projections of the Group for
coming years during which the deferred tax assets are
expected to be utilised. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are more or less than expected, an additional
recognition or a reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a recognition or reversal takes place.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence on
impairment loss of trade and other receivables, the
management considers the estimation of future cash flows to
be recovered from these receivables. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. The amount of the
impairment of receivables is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows. When the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise.

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of trade and
other receivables was HK$9,664,457,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$3,279,844,000). Further details are set out in Note 20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

3.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

Revenue (represents turnover) comprised the following:

WA K 5y 6 &R
WA (BD# % 38) B TEE -

2017 2016

—ET—tF A S

HK$'000 HK$'000

TH&ET FAT

Sales of properties MEHE 10,907,177 10,557,010

Revenue from specialised construction BERESHRA

contracts 964,271 954,791
Rental and management fee income from  HREWEZHENERE

investment properties WA 64,057 64,544

11,935,505 11,576,345

Operating segments

The chief operating decision maker has been identified as the
executive directors. The executive directors review the Group's
internal financial reports in order to assess performance and
allocate resources. The executive directors have determined the
operating segments based on these reports as follows:

Real estate development: Development and sales of residential
and commercial properties

Specialised construction: Design, installation and selling of
curtain walls and aluminum
windows, doors and other
materials

Property investment: Holding of properties to generate

rental income and/or to gain from
the appreciation in properties’
values in the long-term

Securities investment: Investment of securities

No operating segments identified by the executive directors
have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.
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3.

g
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA K4 & & 8 (4)
(CONTINUED)
Operating segments (Continued) 2=k (48)
Segment revenue and results ﬁ' g/“&/\ VE V|
Real estate Specialised Property Securities
development construction investment investment Total
EREER LEY £ NERE EHRE oy
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—¥-tf -T-X"F Z%-tf ZE-F Z¥T-tf —T-R%f ZF-t§E -EBF CZ¥-tf —T-1f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEL T TEL THL TER THT TEL T TEL THL
Revenue WA
Total segment revenue anHlA 10,907,177 10,557,010 970,123 1,009,145 69,093 67,080 = — 11,946,393 11,633,235
Inter-segment revenue AHEEA = — (5,852) (54,354) (5,036) (2,536) = — (10,888) (56,890)
Sales to external customers  ¥ANEFHE 10,907,177 10,557,010 964,271 954,791 64,057 64,544 = — 11935505 11,576,345
Results ES
Segment results PHEE 3,665,578 1,746,040 (123,705) 48,219 224,429 180,532 39,490 18,410 3,805,792 1,993,201
Unallocated corporate APELE
expenses, net B FE (275,264)  (169,267)
3,530,528 1,823,934
Finance income 1 ON 147,039 241,362
Finance costs B 75 B AR (114,674) (55,669)
Share of results of MEBENREE
associates (2,495) (12,135)
Share of results of joint AERENREA
ventures (2,610) —
Profit before tax B B 1 A 3,557,788 1,997,492

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting polices
described in Note 3. Segment results represent the profit
before tax without allocation of unallocated corporate
expenses, finance income, finance costs and share of results of
associates and joint ventures.

Inter-segment revenue is charged at prevailing market rates.
Finance income, finance costs and share of results of

associates and joint ventures are not included in the measure
of segment results.

a2 @t R R 3T A My AR &

et BR B DEXERESHBEL
BEORERMAX MHBRA BBERAR
’VS RN DS NI ¥ R=oR Sl
A e

DEZEHWATIRRITHIGERFTE

MBEA BBERARDERERRRA
ERRRERTERENBEENGE
q:o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Operating segments (Continued)

5. WA Boar i &R (8)
22 oy il (48)

Segment assets and liabilities S EER A
Real estate Specialised Property Securities
development construction investment investment Total
ERERRE BxEH NERE BHERE ok}
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZB—tE ZF-F ZF—tF ZT—F ZF—tE ZF-F ZF—tF ZT—F ZF-tE —F-1F
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET TER TET TER FTAET FTERT FTHET FHET FTET
Assets BE
Segment assets NHEE 41,568,430 33,520,084 929,363 1,123,835 1,912,047 1,768,600 811,636 481,682 45,221,476 36,894,201
Unallocated corporate RO B ¥
assets BE 3,796,905 3,967,880
Total assets BELRE 49,018,381 40,862,081
Liabilities af
Segment liabilities PHEE 32,212,713 30,562,088 572,653 617,534 21,710 20,340 = — 32,807,076 31,199,962
Unallocated corporate ~ AH B %
liabilities BfE 2,608,767 1,112,247
Total liabilities BfERE 35,415,843 32,312,209

Segment assets consist primarily of interests in associates,

interests in joint ventures,
investment properties, goodwill,

property, plant and equipment,

inventories, receivables and

operating cash but exclude items such as bank deposits for

corporate use and deferred tax assets.

Segment liabilities

comprise all operating liabilities but exclude item such as

taxation.
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3.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(CONTINUED)
Operating segments (Continued)
Other segment information

Real estate development Specialised construction  Property i

WA B gy 58 E B (%)
88 oy ik (4

p—

BRERR LY H hERE

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Z§-tF ZF-7F Z¥-tF ZT8F C%-tfF ZERF
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T#n TEx TEx TAT  TEn  TER

H A 1 w5 E
Securities i Segment total Unallocated Total
B5RE SBEE *9E a5

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Z¥-tF ZF-RF ZR-tF ST8F C¥-tF ZF8F Z%-tE CRAF
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T#n TEx TEx TAz FEn  TER TER  TAn

Amounts included in the measure B E AHHBERL
of segment profit or loss or PHEE:
segment assets:

Interests in associates RESRRZER 1218483 1,141,052 = - = = — 1218443 1,141,052 = — 1218443 1,141,052
Interests in joint ventures REERAZER 99,065 - = - = = — 99,065 - - — 99,065 -
Capital expenditures EXEX 8,893 1333 2,046 1,295 81 - - 11,020 2,997 230 87 11,250 3,084
Depreciation recognised in the REABRXTED

consolidated statement of hE

profit o loss 3,840 3,958 1,770 2,036 460 s — 6,070 6,424 1133 898 7,203 1302
Fair value changes on investment ~ RANELABLE

properties s — ) — 151,334 123977 = — 151,334 123,977 = - 151,334 123,977
Provision for/(reversal of) FERERRE/ (B

impairment of inventories ) 83,713 (2,921) ) - = = — 83,713 (2,921) = - 83,713 (2,921)
Provision for/(reversal of) 5 REMERTE

impairment of trade and other AERE/(BRE)

receivables 1212 1,839 29,017 23) = = — 30,229 1,816 = - 30,229 1,816
Provision for impairment of AERNERE

goodwill = — 9,425 - = = — 9,425 — = - 9,425 —

Geographical information Hh 7 & AL

The Group operates its businesses in two main geographical

areas:

Hong Kong: Real estate development, specialised
construction, property investment and
securities investment

Mainland China Real estate development and specialised
and Macau: construction

In presenting geographical information, sales are presented
based on the geographical locations of the customers. Total
non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred
tax assets.

AEBEZEBETZE DN MEMRLE

i FHEZRR BEXEE Y
ERENREFRE

PEAME BFHMEERLRERZE
P

REFMBRERR  HEZ 2 NDERER
Zﬂlfi{iﬁﬁ’r%ﬁ 3F/}\L@J§§m%ﬁiﬂ_ﬁ
RemMIAREEHEEE

Hong Kong Mainland China and Macau Total
EiE oh B i % R ‘|
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tE —E-XF ZB—tE —"ZT—RF ZT-tE —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TFERT FET TERT FET
External sales HINEE 554,494 443,271 11,381,011 11,133,074 11,935,505 11,576,345
Total non-current assets FRBEELTE 1,952,837 1,802,434 1,368,990 1,196,484 3,321,827 2,998,918
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE IR AR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA &7 #& B (&)

(CONTINUED)
Operating segments (Continued) R Ek (4)
Information about major customer FHEEEFZEH
No revenue from transaction with single external customer is AEEVES " ZEAMEEEZWAT
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for both BA10% 8K A | o
years.
6. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 6. ASAFEBE R A
2017 2016
—T—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FTET FAET
Advertising and other promotional costs J& & F At HE BE Bk AR 185,569 218,096
Cost of properties sold (Note (i)) BEEEWERA (HIFEG)) 6,840,034 8,465,395
Cost of specialised construction BEREEKAR 988,646 838,262
Depreciation e 7,203 7,322
Auditor’s remuneration =% EAT BN & 4,500 4,330
Direct operating expenses incurred for MMBESBAZIREYE
investment properties that generated EEXCEEREEERY
rental income 13,255 12,376
Employee benefit expense (including EERBNFAX(BEES
directors’ emoluments) (Note 8) B &) (Fff 5£8) 224,108 151,745
Legal and professional fees FERBEEER 15,127 16,313
Operating lease charges — minimum lease “EHEEH — @ L
payments in respect of land and MEBFZHEBER
buildings K 13,193 26,106
Provision for impairment of trade and other & 5 K H {th fig Wy 2k 18 5 (E
receivables B 30,229 1,816
Provision for impairment of goodwill R R B B 9,425 =
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of GERERE (BO)
inventories 83,713 (2,921)
Net exchange (gain)/loss bE N (We) BB F 58 (14,064) 3,427
Note: M &E
(i) Included in cost of properties sold are interest expenses of @) B & 1 ¥ 2 5k AN R 835545,923,00008 70 (= &
HK$545,923,000 (2016: HK$729,546,000). — N4 729,546,000 7)) 2 Fl B X o
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7.

8.

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND 7. B A~ H il e g B s 1B
LOSSES
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Government subsidies BT & B 4,363 5,440
Dividend income e B & 39,562 18,438
Management fee income from an WE — K fE EER A 5 &
intermediate holding company and BRRZERAFIZERE
ultimate holding company WA 32,666 27,579
Fair value changes of other financial HMmHBaBEAAEES
liabilities (Note 22) (B 7E22) (41,960) —
Others Hth 26,675 30,187
61,306 81,644
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8. 1B Azl
2017 2016
—E-tx —T-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FTET FAT
Wages, salaries and bonus I& - Fehita 321,934 234,607
Pension costs — defined contribution plans EAR &K AR — FEEMEK
(Note 32) st & (M 7E32) 34,828 22,161
Reversal of share option benefits cost 7 [B] B B fE 43 A1 A AR — (2,050)
356,762 254,718
Less: amount capitalised as properties under & : LA & At 77 = B A
development BRAMEZLRE (71,746) (43,643)
Less: amount included in cost of sales W ETAHE R AR Z
TR (46,832) (40,337)
Less: amount included in advertising and W ETAES REMHE
other promotional costs AR Z & 58 (14,076) (18,993)
224,108 151,745
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8. BEMmAMZH (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) HEME

(E=FE—tF+A=+—H1
FE REFZHMeHIMOT :

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out below:

Employer’s
Salaries contribution Share
and Discretionary to pension option
Name of directors Fees allowances bonuses scheme  benefits Total
e BAREtE P R A
ESMa wsE b 3-4:1] BETEAL L3 =7 M
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$°'000
FET FHERT FHET FET FHERT FHET
Non-executive directors *BITES
Mr. Li Fuli (note (i)) FREAMESE
(Pt 3EG) ) = = = = = =
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong (note (i)  GRJC&R %4
(B (i) ) = = = = = =
Mr. Cui Hushan (note (iii)) ERILEE
(B &% (i) ) — — — — — —
Executive directors BITES
Mr. He Jianbo* ] B 55 4 * = 3,632 1,200 128 = 4,960
Mr. Yin Liang (note (iv)) FmiaE
(B #EGv) ) = 1,439 — 45 — 1,484
Ms. He Xiaoli fAl/NBEZ+t — 2,892 900 101 = 3,893
Mr. Liu Zeping (note (v)) 281 5 4
(Bt 3% (v)) = 1,109 500 60 = 1,669
Mr. Yang Shangping (note (vi)) 5 & F %6 4
(B 5% (vi) ) = 953 900 34 = 1,887
Independent non-executive BIUFRITES
directors
Mr. Selwyn Mar BRELEE 360 = = = = 360
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria BEKZ LT 360 = = = = 360
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy AR A 350 — — — — 350
1,070 10,025 3,500 368 = 14,963
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8.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8. & B A > i (4)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) 7 F & (4)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 BE_Z-—R"RF+_A=+—H8H1I
December 2016 is set out below: FE - JFEFZHE2HINAT :
Employer’s
Salaries contribution Share
and Discretionary to pension option
Name of directors Fees allowances bonuses scheme benefits Total
e RixE a8 FE A e
EEgs wme RO AL B B EAL & EHH% 2 7l @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FH&IT FHT FHT TFHT FHEIT
Non-executive directors *RITES
Mr. Zhang Yuanrong RITRELE — — — — — —
Mr. Cui Hushan ERILEE — — — — — —
Executive directors BITES
Mr. He Jianbo* ] RO o5 4 * — 3,492 1,000 123 66 4,681
Mr. Yin Liang F it — 2,882 850 105 50 3,887
Ms. He Xiaoli A/ NER T+ — 2,557 800 90 48 3,495
Mr. Liu Zeping 281 F 5 & — — — — 33 33
Independent non-executive BIAEPITES
directors
Mr. Selwyn Mar BREELEE 360 — — — — 360
Ms. Tam Wai Chu, Maria BHEKLZL 360 — — — — 360
Mr. Lam Chung Lun, Billy AR A 350 — — — — 350
1,070 8,931 2,650 318 197 13,166

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ and independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services as directors of the Company.

Discretionary bonuses were determined by the
management with regard to the performance of the
directors of the Company and the Group’s operating
results.

During the year, no directors of the Company waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments (2016: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as an inducement to
join or as compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil).
The executive director marked “*” above is also
considered as chief executive of the Group and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 8. BB MLl ()
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) M5 (8)
Notes: B -
0) Appointed on 18 May 2017 (i) RZFE—tFRA+N\BEEZE
(i) Resigned on 18 May 2017 (i) R=FT—+tFRA+NBBET
(i)  Appointed on 25 August 2016 (iii) NZE—RNENA=ZT+HEHEZE

JiS
(iv) Resigned on 22 June 2017 (iv) R-ZEBE—t&FNA=-+=-BHEE

(v) Re-designated from a non-executive director to an executive (v) R-E—RNE=A+/\BHEFHTE
director on 18 March 2016 ERERNTES
(vi) Appointed on 22 June 2017 (vi) R-ZTE—+tENA-+_BHEZFE
(b) Five highest-paid individuals (b) Tu# B A L

In 2017, five highest-paid individuals in the Group
include three (2016: three) directors. These directors’
emoluments are disclosed in (a) above. Details of the
emoluments of the remaining two (2016: two)

R-F—tF AKERLEESH
MALTHBE=2(ZF—RF: =
FEF-BEFMEN EX@EFHE
B-HBEMB(ZTE-XRF MA)

individuals are as follows: AT Z2BEFBOT
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Salaries and allowances e ROER 2,599 3,268
Discretionary bonuses (SRR 2,776 2,402
Employer’s contributions to pension RIKEETEIME EHK
schemes 89 89
Share option benefits i % 4 18 T — 111
5,464 5,870
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B <& &6 E a0 T -
2017 2016
—E-tx —T-RF
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £3,000,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,0007% 7T — —
HK$3,500,001-HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T £4,000,0007% 7T — —
2 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to these individuals as an inducement to join or as
compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil).
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9. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9. WHBHWARKBA
2017 2016
—E—tHF —EF—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
Fi#&T FAT
Finance income B 75 e A
Interest income from bank deposits RITF A B WA 33,265 176,502
Interest income from loans to a non- WE—KHBA Rz —
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary BIFERBRRERZ
A WA 109,128 64,860
Interest income from loans to WA & R RIREE R
shareholders of joint ventures Z R B U A 4,646 —
147,039 241,362
Finance costs B 7% Bk AR
Bank borrowings wholly repayable within ARAFRNEBHREEREZ
five years RATIE K 341,592 288,196
Other borrowings wholly repayable ARAFRNEBHREERZ
within five years HEiER 248,814 111,550
Other borrowings not wholly repayable NERAFANBEEE
within five years ZEMER 63,357 63,109
653,763 462,855
Less: Amount capitalised as properties B AE A (b 75 A
under development (note (i)) BRPMEZ
5 (i) (539,089) (407,186)
114,674 55,669
Note: B -
(i) Borrowing costs were capitalised at rates ranging from 1.87% to 6.50% (i) BRKANIZFEF EHE1.8726.50E(=F — <

(2016: 2.85% to 6.50%) per annum. & :2.85%6.50F) FIAE AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. P43 BE B X
Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated on the estimated BANSMOAREREIRE BB 2 HEtIE
assessable profit for the year derived in Hong Kong at the rate AR R IL16.5% (ZF — N F : BLERE
of 16.5% (2016: no Hong Kong profits tax expense REBFER) 2B EGHE - AR
recognised). The PRC enterprise income tax has been SRTIARE FEIR B F B A 2 (45T E R
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year Tt A A%25% (ZF —RF : 25% ) 2 T &K
derived in Mainland China at the rate of 25% (2016; 25%). FrE -
Land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates ranging THEEHRE LI WERC SR (BILE
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being VI FTS R IBHIBR Al 1R Z i (B s £ i
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures R FERRBETH)DZZER X H
including costs of land and development and construction 30% £60% 15 4 -
expenditures.
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—XF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FAT
Current tax B IR
PRC enterprise income tax RSN 1,245,063 841,600
Hong Kong profits tax BEBENEB 1,852 —
Land appreciation tax T IR E R 1,305,285 308,947
2,552,200 1,150,547
Deferred tax (Note 29) iR 3E 7 18 (Pt 5229) (443,213) (150,234)
2,108,987 1,000,313
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

10.

Tax charge on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the

theoretical

amount that would arise using the weighted

Pi 5 e BA 52 (41)
7 £ B 54 B4 AT 3 ) 2 BRI X - SR
L%Kﬁé?ﬁZmﬂZM%?ﬂﬁ <&t

average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated HHE CREIEENT :
entities as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —EF—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAT
Profit before tax B B A gt A 3,557,788 1,997,492
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ZE AR EER T S F 22 H
applicable to profits in the REFE 2 A
respective countries 909,143 449,632
Land appreciation tax T (E 1,305,285 308,947
Deferred tax on undistributed profits R IE 5 M 2 35 FE B 18 38,239 175,362
Tax effect of land appreciation tax iiﬂzi'ﬁfﬂzm % & (326,321) (69,543)
Tax effect of share of results of DhBERNREE I MG E
associates 624 3,033
Tax effect of share of results of joint D EAEERREBEZHBTE
ventures 653 =
Income not subject to tax BARNZ WA (36,105) (29,598)
Expenses not deductible for tax N H 2 B X
purposes 162,611 174,168
Utilisation of previously unrecognised — Z)F F Al A& ¥ i 2 Fi 15 &5 18
tax losses (57,370) (43,634)
Unrecognised tax losses RERBBER 112,228 31,946
Tax charge 18 2 2,108,987 1,000,313

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 25.6% (2016:

22.5%).

The year-on-year change is primarily caused by a

change in the relative profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries

in the respective regions.

ERAZMEFAREB256%(ZF— X
F:225%) BMEAFNREFTTARAK
SENEBLRNEREME 2B R NG
BB FTEL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|A.|
iy

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE—-T—

11.

CRE R e

tFE+Z A=+ —HLEFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE — BASIC AND
DILUTED

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company divided by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to

11.

B BB — A K i

BREXRRBNDEARARERE ARA
8 MR A F A E BT E B ARz i T 19 IR
G

BREERNTHBEE BT EBBNEF
BRBARRER AR EBRETE TR

assume exercise of share options granted under the 2 A B 5E e R B 7R B AR st
Company’s share option schemes. "o
2017 2016
—FT—txF —E—RF
Weighted average number of ordinary EETERKRMETS
shares in issue (thousands shares) % 8 (F %) 3,344,548 3,344,301
Adjustment for share options (thousands BEREAE(TR)
shares) 2,298 2,146
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt E R ER A
shares for diluted earnings per share Z RN
(thousands shares) A& 8 (F A% 3,346,846 3,346,447
Profit attributable to equity holders of the AR R A AL
Company (HK$000) & A (F % 7T) 712,914 512,058
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BRERRZF GBI 21.32 15.31
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FREERZF (BL) 21.30 15.30
12. DIVIDENDS 12. B8
The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of EEERLNRERE TR T B®R6O
HK6.0 cents (2016: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share with total BAU(ZZE—ARF 408 ELFE A
amount of HK$200,715,000 (2016: HK$133,777,000). Such 200,715,000 7T (Z T —7X4F : 133,777, 000
dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the annual BIL) R B AFRREEARRRNZ

general meeting of the Company to be held on 31 May 2018.
These consolidated financial statements do not reflect this
dividend payable.

Final dividends in respect of the year ended 31 December
2016 of HK4.0 cents per ordinary share totaling
HK$133,777,000 (2016: final dividends in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2015 of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share
totaling HK$66,886,000) was recognised as distribution during
the year.
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EHE - WEEAFBRERARE R
e AE
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W3~ BB Kokt i

Movements in property, plant and equipment are as follows: WMk BMEREZBEZESHOT :
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold and Motor

buildings improvements Machinery equipment vehicles Total
HETHR HEME RE KB

[ £ K HEs REkfE B @

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET THET TET FET THET

Year ended 31 December 2017 HBE-T—+t%f

+=-RA=+-—8

W E
Opening net book amount FYREFE 171,532 2,186 4,321 5,349 3,273 186,661
Exchange differences MEHZRE = 107 264 478 401 1,250
Additions NE — 1,195 2,576 4,749 2,730 11,250
Disposals & — (229) (1.260) (257) (187) (1,933)
Depreciation e (1,593) (806) (821) (2,489) (1,494) (7,203)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 169,939 2,453 5,080 7,830 4,723 190,025
At 31 December 2017 RZT—tF

+=-—A=+—H
Cost (DN 178,702 8,595 9,764 30,152 18,265 245,478
Accumulated depreciation and 258 RRE

impairment (8,763) (6,142) (4,684) (22,322) (13,542) (55,453)

Net book amount BREFE 169,939 2,453 5,080 7,830 4,723 190,025

Year ended 31 December 2016 &HBE—F—71F

+=A=+-—8
IEEE
Opening net book amount F A REFE 109,376 1,794 5,255 7,424 5,504 129,353
Exchange differences MEHE% (2) (100) (253) (480) (260) (1,095)
Additions NE — 672 33 2,326 53 3,084
Transfer from investment properties & & 5 1% & ¥) % 66,070 — — — — 66,070
Transfer to investment properties — HEEERE Y ¥
(note (i) (B =EG)) (2,765) — — — — (2,765)
Disposals & — — (340) (177) (147) (664)
Depreciation e (1,147) (180) (374) (3,744) (1,877) (7,322)
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 171,532 2,186 4,321 5,349 3,273 186,661
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+=ZA=+—H
Cost A AX 178,699 9,744 8,232 24,976 17,302 238,953
Accumulated depreciation and REHITE MRE
impairment (7,167) (7,558) (3,911) (19,627) (14,029) (52,292)
Net book amount BREFE 171,532 2,186 4,321 5,349 3,273 186,661
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ARE IR AR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) The amount transferred from property, plant and equipment upon the end
of owner occupation included the carrying value of the property, plant
and equipment amounted to HK$2,765,000 with fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income of approximately

HK$3,045,000 during the year ended 31 December 2016.

(ii) At the end of both reporting periods, the Group’s buildings are erected
on land under medium-terms and long-terms lease in Hong Kong and

long-terms lease in Mainland China respectively.

(iii) As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not pledge any leasehold land

and buildings as collaterals for bank borrowings (2016: Nil).

13.

Wk ~ b Kouk fli (#)

(i) HE-Z—X"F+-_A=+—HLFE &H
BEAGERIEAREREAVE BEREEHENS
BHFEEEME BEEARRKENEEE
2,765,000 7T « KRR EME2EBAFERH D
#t {E % B) 493,045,000/ 7T °

(i) RBEHRERRE  ARERFOHINEER
TEANRETARRAEERRSEEL
Hy b B5Z o

(i) R-ZE—+&F+-A=+—0 Zx£EHEL
WRIEFEEREABITERZEFRR(ZF
—RNEFE)

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. EWE
2017 2016
—g-t5 —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
At Fair Value BARE
At beginning of the year F 1) 1,662,326 1,599,234
Transfer from owner-occupied land and EREE AL RESF
buildings — 5,810
Transfer to owner-occupied land and EREEALHRESF
buildings — (66,070)
Fair value changes on investment properties I8 NER IR E W E
recognised in profit or loss NAEE 151,334 123,977
Exchange differences fEH =5 634 (625)
At end of the year FR 1,814,294 1,662,326

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not pledge any
investment properties as collaterals for bank borrowings (2016:

Nil).

The investment properties were fair-valued at 31 December
2017 by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent
valuers. The valuation for completed investment properties was
arrived at by considering the income capitalisation of the
properties or, where appropriate, by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties in the

same locations and conditions as direct comparison.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and

best use of the properties is their current use.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. # % ¥ 3 (4)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information RMEHRKRE  NEEREMERRA
about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting BRERDT :

period are as follows:

Fair value as at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31.12.2017

ARE

R-F—tfF

E— B B=% +=-H=+—H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

FTET FTET FTET TFHET

In Hong Kong R BB — 39,920 1,764,900 1,804,820
In Mainland China iz 7 FR B A 3 = 9,474 = 9,474

Fair value as at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 31.12.2016

ARE

RZZT—RF

FE—® E-H F=H +=—A=+—8H

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET FHET

In Hong Kong LN & B — 36,070 1,617,000 1,653,070

In Mainland China 2 70 P B Ay 3t — — 9,256 9,256
The investment property in Mainland China was transferred RZE—tF+_A=+—H0 RHFEA
out of Level 3 at 31 December 2017, as the investment R EMEBF=REL BARFTH
property in Mainland China is temporarily vacant and the Wiz REMFERFZEE R HEERTH

valuation technique of which has been changed to direct WAEBBEZELBX -

comparison method from income method.
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. # % %3 (4)

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and key inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 2 to 3) based on the
degree to which the key inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of Fair value

TEREHRNMEERENEAABZERH
(LEZMERMBERDT REE AR
B URREBEEREABERY QA ER
ENABEEREEREAABAEEARE
BERTFHNIBR(B-REE=HR) -

Relationship of
unobservable inputs for

financial position hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) fair value
GEMBRARTFEE FEHEE A\ BRE
FiAZRENE ARERR HERARARBANE EXFABRRZBABR AREZER
Property 1 in Hong Kong Level 3 Direct comparison method and income method  Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit The higher the reversionary
BEME F=8 HEELBERKAZE market rental income and unit market value of the yield, the lower the fair
comparable properties of 5% (2016: 5%) value
The key inputs are: BEkax ZRUALBYEZEEENTEAE EEKkaxlds AnE
BREABEA: WARERT5EE L% (ZF—RF:5%) B
1. Reversionary yield; and

1. ERRERR

2. Market unit rent of individual unit
2. AR B BAES

Market unit rent, using direct market comparables and The higher the market unit

taking into account of similar character, location rent, the higher the fair
and sizes, from HK$46/5q.ft/ month to HK$100/ value

sq.ft./ month (2016: from HK$41/sq.f/month to ~ MZEMNMAEHMS * A4
HK$94/sq.ft/month) EV]

MEENES RRAEETSLBREEY 82 EEMN
BECUBRAE - BEAGTHRI6BITEI0
BL(ZE—AF: BABFARNBTEIET)
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of Fair value

14. #EWE (H)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs for

financial position hierarchy Valuation technique(s) and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) fair value
GEMBRARTERE T HEH A\ BRE
FAZRENE ARERR  HERARARBANE EXFABRRZBABR AREZEE
Property 2 in Hong Kong Level 3 Direct comparison method and income method  Reversionary yield, taking into account annual unit The higher the reversionary
bR Y] E=/k BEELBERBANE market rental income and unit market value of the yield, the lower the fair
comparable properties of 5% (2016: 5%) value
The key inputs are: BRUER ZRUENENEZFEENTHAS BRUERES AAE
BREABEA: WARERT5EE L% (ZF—RF:5%) WA
1. Reversionary yield; and
1. BREWEE R
2. Market unit rent of individual unit
2. AR Ef M msERES
Market unit rent, using direct market comparables and The higher the market unit
taking into account of similar character, location rent, the higher the fair
and sizes.from HK$21/sq.ft./ month to HK$42/sq.ft/  value
month (2016: from HK$20/sq.f/month to HK$40/ MHEMMEHE A%
sq.ft/month) V]
mHENES REERETSLREEY B ZERNU
FE UERAE BB ABTAR2MBTLERE
T(ZEB-—A"F: BABTHIR0ETE40ET)
Other properties in Hong Level 2 Direct comparison method based on market — N/A N/A
Kong F-R observable transactions of similar properties i F TER
BEREMYE and adjust to reflect the conditions and
locations of the subject property.
EREBEEREUNEZTSATERR S
WIEBBARMZNE 2 GHERMUE -
Property 3 in Mainland Level 2 Direct comparison method based on market ~ N/A N/A
China F-R observable transactions of similar properties i F TER
B A 4 %3 and adjust to reflect the conditions and

locations of the subject property
ERUBZERNAUNEZTSUBEERS
WEREARBZNEZ GHERE

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the

ERFAREVENDAER  NEEFEA

Group uses market observable data to the extent it is
available. The management of the Group works closely with
the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and key inputs to the model.

EERAMSAEREE A5ENEEE
BEEMETAE  UHITEEENEER
iy e 8 422 B A BRI -
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

15. GOODWILL 15. &
Goodwill arising from an acquisition of a subsidiary is as BURE-—FRNEBLAAMESEEBMT
follows:
2017 2016
—T—tE —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FER FHET
At beginning of the year F 7)) 8,879 9,483
Exchange differences b X =& 546 (604)
Impairment loss recognised in the year FAEHRZBIEREE (9.425) =
At end of the year FR — 8,879
Impairment test for goodwill 7o 5 A b S
Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU") FEDOEERAI#HcReEFEL ([
identified as follows: SEABN]  FBHEOT
2017 2016
—T-tx —T-RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FHET
CGU: ReEE BN
Specialised construction BXERERE — 8,879
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group RBEZE_ZE—+F+_A=+—HILHF
recognised an impairment loss of HK$9,425,000 (2016: Nil). € - 7N & B % R (8 & 189,425,000 7T
(ZE2—RF:8)-
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on REeEABM 2 NESEREEAER
the value in use calculation. The calculation uses cash flow AE-HEAANBRERETEN - KL
projections based on financial budgets approved by KEREIEN —FHMBRBERKE -
management covering a one-year period and extrapolated for i 7 &5 45 & F HA B R LA T B RHE B
the remaining operating period based on the following B UW2ERFTRBARENISERE AR
information with reference to past performance and FTHE
expectation for market development.
2017 2016
—E—tF TE—XE
% %
Estimated growth rate HEr R X — 5.00
Discount rate before tax AR IR X 4.35 4.35
The estimated growth rates disclosed above applied to the EXBBREFEREBRARAFRERN
five-year cash flow projections and no growth was assumed S TR - T BLE & AR 4 E e Ty R AR I 4
when extrapolating to later periods. The estimated growth rate R -RAMG2ERRERBESESL
of zero used represents the past performance of the CGU. BRARBAEKRR -
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16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

()

Investments (a) #HE
2017 2016
—E—-tHF N
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
At beginning of the year F 1) 1,141,052 1,352,198
Exchange differences ME X Z & 79,886 (78,151)
Dividends received 2R 5 — (120,860)
Share of results of associates DILEEE N R EE (2,495) (12,135)
At end of the year F IR 1,218,443 1,141,052
Details of the Group's associates at 31 December 2017 KEBRZZE—EtFRZZT—RF
and 2016 are as follow: TZA=tT—BZHERRFBA
T
Proportion of Proportion of
Place of equity interest  voting rights
incorporation held by the held by the
Name of entity Principal activities and operation Group Group
AEERFHE AEERFHE
EREE ETEER HEMREEME RAREDL S BRHELL B
B EEREEMERERRA R Real estate Mainland China 50% 40%
(Langfang Wanheng Shengye Property development
Development Co., Ltd) (“Langfang
Wanheng”) (note (i)
BB EEREEHMEREAERA R P b 2 3% & o B A D
(TELr & 1B 1) (P E))
IR AEEREXZERA A Real estate Mainland China 51% 40%
(Beijing Minmetals Vanke Real Estate development
Co., Ltd) (“Beijing Minmetals Vanke")
(note (i)
ERABEENEZRRAA P 3 2 3 R H B A
(MHEmETEE R (H i)
Note: B & -

(i)

The companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established
in Mainland China with operating periods of 30 years. The Group
accounts for its investments in these companies as associates as it
only exercises significant influence over the investees by minority
representation in the board of directors. Pursuant to
shareholders’ agreements, the Company has the right to cast
40% of the votes at shareholders’ meetings of Langfang
Wanheng, and 40% of the votes at shareholders’ meetings of
Beijing Minmetals Vanke.

(i) ZERRRNFEAMKILZHINE
BREDE  SEHAR30F - ANAE
BHRNZBERELELBRRESTS D
BRRITEBEAXEN  MEBRZLR
AZRAEANRIEREERE - RIFMERE
BR = ARRERREBSEERR
ARERI0%NE - URPIERAES R
PRERA G RA0%E R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

16. % i & o\ 2 BE 4 (79)

(b) Summarised financial information of (b) k8 o Wl Z B4 B B ORI
associates
Summarised financial information in respect of each REBEBSBERNT 2 MBERBE
associate of the Group is set out below. The summarised FIFMT - THMBERNBMERZ
financial information below represents amounts shown in FIREEE RB MM B ]wMKRAZ 2
the associates’ financial statements prepared in DIRBEEBMBRELERRE -
accordance with HKFRSs.
All of these associates are accounted for using the equity P A a2 S0 & A Rl R AR 22 A 0 7%
method in these consolidated financial statements. ERETBHEMRAR -
Langfang Wanheng i 5f 5
2017 2016
—T—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Current assets MEBEE 484,129 376,593
Non-current assets ERBEE 178 3
Current liabilities mEAE 110,834 23,381
2017 2016
—T—tF NS
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FTET FHET
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (BB mFl (4,341) 50
Other comprehensive income/(expense) A JE E Ath 2
for the year WA/ (FAX) 24,599 (23,904)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AEEE2EKRAS
for the year (M%) M 20,258 (23,854)
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16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16. U= v 2 B %3 (48)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Summarised financial information of (b) i 8 o Wl Z WA B ORI
associates (Continued) (%)
Langfang Wanheng (Continued) s 55 1 (#)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial [t B 7S B R B RR O B B R AR
information to the carrying amount of the interest in EMBREAMER 2 ERKREE
Langfang Wanheng recognised in the consolidated 2 HER

financial statements:

2017 2016
—E—tE —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Net assets of the associate BE N NR 2 EEFE 373,473 353,215
Proportion of the Group's interest in AEERBRHEEZ#
Langfang Wanheng % bt A 50% 50%
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Carrying amount of the Group's AEER B EERAR
interest in Langfang Wanheng w2 BREE 186,736 176,608
Beijing Minmetals Vanke b 5 2 0 H
2017 2016
—T—tE A S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Current assets mENE E 2,102,173 2,077,228
Non-current assets IRBEE 1,119 886
Current liabilities mBAE 80,338 187,047
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

16. % i & o\ 2 BE 4 (79)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Summarised financial information of (b) Wi 8 o Wl Z WA B B ORI
associates (Continued) (%)
Beijing Minmetals Vanke (Continued) AL 5% 7 i 45 P (#H)
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Revenue WA 13,143 92,979
Loss for the year REEEE (635) (23,843)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) A& € E th 2
for the year WA/ (%) 132,522 (129,802)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AEE2ZEKEAS
for the year (FAX)®%E 131,887 (153,645)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial FXHBERMEBEIERARES R
information to the carrying amount of the interest in REEMBHREANERREE Y
Beijing Minmetals Vanke recognised in the consolidated R -
financial statements:
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHET
Net assets of the associate BERNRBEEFRE 2,022,954 1,891,067
Proportion of the Group's interest in AEERIERAESER
Beijing Minmetals Vanke HY 4 23 LE 71 51% 51%
HK$°000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Carrying amount of the Group's REERIERERER
interest in Beijing Minmetals Vanke A 2 BRE A 1,031,707 964,444
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17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

17. &8 o\ Z B g

(a) Investments (a) ®E

2017

—E—tf

HK$'000

TFET

At beginning of the year N =

Investments in joint ventures REeEERalZRE 98,292

Exchange differences MEH =7 3,156

Gain on deemed disposal RIEH & 2 Wz 227
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEERAIFEE (2,610)

At end of the year RER 99,065
Details of the Group’s joint ventures at 31 December AERR-_ZE—tEFT+HA=1T—

2017 are as follow:

HZ

Place of
incorporation

BERBZHBWOT :

Proportion of Proportion of

equity interest  voting rights

held by the held by the

Name of entity Principal activities and operation Group Group
AREHHE AREHHE
EREE FEER HEMREEME RAREEL S R B
ERENmREMEREGRA A Real estate Mainland China 33.9% 33.9%
(Gekuangli Nanjing Property development
Developement Co. Ltd. ) (“Gekuangli”)
(note (i)
ERENmREMEREGRA A 5 3 B R [ A 3
(TE w1 (B EG) )
mRER S EHERZEGR QA (Nanjing Real estate Mainland China 39.8% 39.8%

Kuanglijin Property Developement Co. development
Ltd. ) (“Kuanglijin”) (note (i)
ERENEREMERERRARQ A P b 2E 3% &
(TEE A = 1) (B 5EG) )
Note:

0]

The companies are joint ventures established by the Group and
other investors in Mainland China during the year with operating
periods of 30 years. The Group accounts for its investments in
these companies as joint ventures as it exercises joint control over
the investees through its voting rights, as unanimous consent is
required for the relevant activities. Pursuant to shareholders’
agreements, the Company has the right to cast 33.9% of the
votes at shareholders’ meetings of Gekuangli, and 39.8% of the
votes at shareholders’ meetings of Kuanglijin.

B A 3

M S

EZ%’AE—J?%$"£I&EFIWhEﬁﬁﬂ&
BERFAKILZAEAR  EERE
306 - IR AR EEBREEL KT A
HITEARES (R SRR AK—
HAE) WEHRZERARZREA
RIERBERTF - REBRRMZ AR
AEEREBmAMRRAE E#33.9%H)
B URRENEBRERKREHR39.8%H
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e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. &8~ 6 Z#E (4)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Summarised financial information of joint (b) &8 EZ M5 E R
ventures
Summarised financial information in respect of each joint AEBECERAIZHMBENRE
venture of the Group is set out below. The summarised §|J%UZD—F s THMBERNMERZ
financial information below represents amounts shown in FIREERBINMBERER 2B
the joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in BIEBATEREERR -

accordance with HKFRSs.

All of these joint ventures are accounted for using the FAEZSEEE A AFERERER
equity method in these consolidated financial REFEUBEREAALR -
statements.
Gekuangli Y v
2017
—T—tE
HK$'000
FHET
Current assets mEE E 8,125,308
Current liabilities ik 2R=NE 8,009,632
2017
—T—tE
HK$'000
THET
Loss for the year REEFEE (3,815)
Other comprehensive income for the year REFEH M2 E K= 3,641
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEEHEMEHERAZBE (174)
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17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. &8~ 6 Z #w (4)

(CONTINUED) ‘
(b) Summarised financial information of joint (b) &8 HZ W5 E R
ventures (Continued) (%)
Gekuangli (Continued) B (4)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial PR BERNBERBBENNES
information to the carrying amount of the interest in MBHRRAMBER 2 ERREEY
Gekuangli recognised in the consolidated financial BRAOT :
statements:
2017
—T—tF
HK$’'000
FHET
Net assets of the joint venture BERNAIZEEFE 115,676
Proportion of the Group's interest in REBENE BN 2w Al
Gekuangli 33.9%
HK$’'000
FHET
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in REEREEANK AR ZREE
Gekuangli 39,214
Kuanglijin W 7 &
2017
—ET—tE
HK$°000
TFERT
Current assets mENE E 5,267,403
Current liabilities ik R=KE 5,117,024
2017
—T—tE
HK$'000
FET
Loss for the year NEFEEE (2,651)
Other comprehensive income for the year REEH M2 E K= 4,742
Total comprehensive income for the year AEELHE W= B5E 2,091
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. &8~ 6 Z#E (4)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Summarised financial information of joint (b) &8 HZ M5 E R
ventures (Continued) (%)
Kuanglijin (Continued) e 2 (#)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial TR BERMEERNBENEES
information to the carrying amount of the interest in MBHRRAMBER 2 ERREES
Kuanglijin recognised in the consolidated financial BRANE :
statements:
2017
—E—t#E
HK$'000
FHET
Net assets of the joint venture BERNAIZEEFE 150,379
Proportion of the Group's interest in RE BN IEN © 2 5 bl
Kuanglijin 39.8%
HK$'000
FHET
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in AEBRBENSRAERZ ZREEE
Kuanglijin 59,851
18. INVENTORIES 18. &
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Properties under development — located in R HHE — 17
Mainland China (a) AR B R (a) 17,595,853 12,031,127
Properties under development — located in  ZERERFWHE — IR
Hong Kong (a) A5 (a) 4,158,708 4,026,103
21,754,561 16,057,230
Properties held for sale — located in FIELEMR — un
Mainland China B A 3,598,682 2,861,910
25,353,243 18,919,140
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18. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

()

18. 77 8 (#4)

Properties under development R YE
2017 2016
—FT—txF ZE—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Land use rights + 3 {5 A 18,223,333 11,928,062
Construction costs BERK A 3,531,228 4,129,168
21,754,561 16,057,230

As at 31 December 2017, properties under development
with carrying amount of HK$6,165,669,000 have been
pledged as collaterals for bank borrowings (2016: Nil)
(Note 28 (a)).

As at 31 December 2017, properties under development
with carrying amount of HK$15,557,530,000 (2016:
HK$9,563,420,000) are expected to be completed and
realised after twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Properties held for sale of
approximately HK$403,700,000 (2016: HK$896,420,000)
as at 31 December 2017 are expected to be sold after
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

19. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN
PROGRESS

R=ZT—tF+=_A=+—H" &
T 18 /46,165,669,0005 7T &) 2% & &
MEDEHERRBTERZIEAR
(FfsE28@)(=F— N F &) o

RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H" 'K
M {8 415,557,530,000/% T (= =
— 754 1 9,563,420,000/8 7T) B 3 B
R ETE AN RS R 1218 A
BETIREK RZTE—tF+=
A = + — B - #403,700,0005% JT
(ZZF — /N4 : 896,420,000/ 7T) K
BIELEWHE KRR E B RE12(E
AEH -

19. ERTEGH

Contract costs incurred plus recognised
profits less recognised losses
Less: progress billings

Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work

BEELANRAINERER
i MR B R R e 1B
W TIREEERR

BREFZEHIRAEE

2017 2016
—T—tf —E-RF
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
3,868,737 3,792,992
(3,749,717) (3,445,455)
119,020 347,537
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e EEmRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIEFE
20. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER 20. FHAFHKIE ~ B 5 S H b RE Wk
RECEIVABLES X JH
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#T FABT
Trade and contract receivables, net (b) B 5 NA&AEWZIE  F5i(b) 603,515 499,839
Retention receivables (c) & AR & £ () 181,040 107,483
Deposits B 35,243 48,175
Prepayments (d) T8 < FIE(d) 840,991 1,219,047
Prepayments for land cost (e) TE 5 £ b A AN (e) 1,497,699 7,265,799
Loans to a non-controlling shareholder EXF —KHME QA E 2
of a subsidiary (Note 37(b)) — A TR E
(Mf&E37(b) ) 3,748,606 2,465,064
Amount due from a non-controlling R —KMERAF 2
shareholder of a subsidiary — B IEERBRRRIE
(Note 37(b)) (Mt 5E37(b) ) 125,058 —
Amount due from an associate FE W — R & A R RIE
(Note 37(b)) (Mt 7E37(b )) 94,674 88,062
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW & & AR FKIAE
(Note 37(b)) (Mt 7E37(b )) 4,750,871 —
Amounts due from an intermediate R —REBZER AR M&K
holding company and ultimate 2 iR A B FRIE (B E37(b) )
holding company (Note 37(b)) 35,889 27,579
Others H A 89,561 43,642
12,003,147 11,764,690
(@) The carrying amounts of prepayments, trade and other (@ TERFE -BZREAMEKNKIEZ
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: BREESATIEESE :
2017 2016
—FT—txF —F—RF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Fi#IT FAT
HK$ BT 229,133 189,145
Renminbi (“RMB") ARBETARED 11,741,760 11,543,748
Macao pataca (“MOP") RPTH (DRFI®]) 32,254 31,797
12,003,147 11,764,690
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20. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b)

The aging analysis of trade and contract receivables based
on due date for rental receivables, date of properties
delivered to purchasers and billing date of construction

20. FHA K - H 5 K I fth FE K
% JH (#1)

REKESINHD HWEINTE
ZHEHMERERERFNEE
BB 2B RAHNEWRIEALZ

services certified is as follows: BRER DT T -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0 to 90 days 0%290H 321,052 181,979
91 to 180 days 91%2180H 83,580 28,986
181 days to 1 year 181HZE—4F 50,740 88,641
1 year to 2 years —FEMF 92,465 158,270
Over 2 years A E 113,389 71,148
661,226 529,024
Less: allowance for impairment O EEE (57,711) (29,185)
603,515 499,839

In respect of trade and contract receivables, a credit
period of three to twelve months may be granted to
customers on a case-by-case basis.

Trade and contract receivables neither past due nor
impaired are with customers having good repayment
history and no default in the past.

Trade and contract receivables that are past due less
than two years are generally not considered impaired.
Trade and contract receivables of HK$301,529,000 (2016:
HK$332,690,000) were past due but not impaired. These
relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no history of default. The aging analysis of these
trade and contract receivables is as follows:

B 5 kA K EIKIE - RER B
ABRTFTEEP=Z2+_EAZEEH-

B 5 ke A RWRIRR A BB KR
B REHY MER R & KA
EBEIEENTRZER

—ms BHEIAMEZES R
BHARBKETSHEBERE -
301,529,000%8 (= & — N F
332,690,000 7T) < B 5 k& A FE
WHRIEE @ HEERE ZEHKE
BEZ R EENCBR 2BIYEFRA
- EEHRAEHRKFKEBZE
RO

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Past due days i 8 B &

1 to 90 days 1£90H 178,555 84,049
91 to 180 days 912 180H 11,253 29,798
181 days to 1 year 181HZE—4F 24,904 73,215
1 year to 2 years —FEMF 53,919 105,188
Over 2 years A 32,898 40,440
301,529 332,690
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

20. PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)

Trade and contract receivables of HK$57,711,000 (2016:
HK$29,185,000) were impaired and provision for
impairment was made. The individually impaired
receivables relate to customers, which are in unexpected
difficult financial situations. The aging of these
receivables is as follows:

TEAT s T ~ B 5 B I fth FE WK
= JH (1)

(b)

(&)

57,711,000 (= T — X F:
29,185,0008 L) 2 B 5 R & #IFE K
REBRE WEEHBRERE-
& 51 2, 3 (B 1 UK 30 78 B 22 A A A B
BRENEFER ZFRWHE
ZERE DI

2017 2016
—T—t#f —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#T FABT
Past due days #1813 2
Over 2 years M E A B 57,711 29,185

Movements in the allowance for impairment of trade and
contract receivables are as follows:

BE SR A K REIRFRE L 2
BBz EBNT

2017 2016

—E—+t#F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$ 000

FET FHET

At beginning of the year F 1) 29,185 28,587
Exchange differences PE i =%E 2,210 (1,398)
Allowance for impairment DRIER & 26,316 1,996
At end of the year FIR 57,711 29,185

As at 31 December 2017, retention receivables
with carrying amount of HK$125,783,000 (2016:
HK$85,523,000) are expected to be recovered after twelve
months from the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, prepayments include
prepaid taxes and other charges of approximately
HK$777,501,000 (2016: HK$1,130,838,000).

As at 31 December 2017, prepayments for land cost
represent payments to the PRC Bureau of Land and
Resources for the acquisition of lands in Mainland China
and the amount will be recognised as inventory upon
issuance of Land Use Rights Certificates.
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R-_ZE—+tHF+_-_A=+—8"
FAEKRGBRE S ZEEEA
125,783,000/8 7T (= T — 7N F:
85,523,000/ 7T) * TEEI B W& AR
B+—@E A% -

R-ZE—+F+_A=+—H8 &
NZEBEEMNREREMER
#9777,501,000% T (= F — N F ¢
1,130,838,0005% 7T) °

R-_ZE—+F+_-_A=+—H" 7
157 £ 3 AR AN 48 BE R AR B A A Uk RE &
WA FHRBEREIERRDZR
I8 - itk & B S P & A B L
BEEERAETE -



20.

21.

PREPAYMENTS, TRADE AND OTHER 20. THAT 3K IH -~ B 5 K H: il E W
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) X JH (#)
(f)  The other items within trade and other receivables do not ) EBESRHMEWKZFBEARNZEMIER
contain past due or impaired assets. WA BiEafsEREEE -
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the RBEMRB 2 &ESEERR T it EK
reporting period is the carrying amount of receivables HIBZHREE - AR B &EF A EAEF
mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as ma {EHE 1R o
security.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21. 7 3 3L i 4 i WY A % 4 fU A EE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BB R E
INCOME
2017 2016
—T—tf —T—RF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TET FAT
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong REB LT ZRAES
At beginning of the year F 4 481,682 610,745
Fair value gain/(loss) recognised in other REMEEKRERZ
comprehensive income DN EWE(EE) 311,135 (129,063)
At end of the year FR 792,817 481,682
The Group's equity securities investment is measured at fair AEERREHRANBAZHRERZAD
value at the end of the reporting period: R EFE -

Fair value as at

RUTHHMARE
31 December 31 December Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets 2017 2016 hierarchy and key input(s)
=®B-tf  —F-~F fEER AR
MBEE +ZB=+—-H +ZA=+—H AREER ETEBANBRE
HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FAT
Financial assets at fair 792,817 481,682 Level 1 Quoted prices in an
value through other active market
comprehensive income
— Listed equity securities
FREMEEWSRA R ER E— RGBT IS B R E
BEZHBEE — EWRAR AEB

i)
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|A.|
iy

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE—-T—

21.

22.

CRE R e

tFE+Z A=+ —HLEFE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 21. 7 38 Lt % v W AR 4% 4 fe A EE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE mZ WM EE ()
INCOME (CONTINUED)
The equity securities investment has been designated at fair N #&é{EBAKEIE_f——E?E
value through other comprehensive income upon the Group's FPRERAEAVBHRELNFZIR_ZFT—F
early application of the 2010 version of HKFRS 9 in 2011, FREF - BEREBEMEERE E’&/‘D
which, in the opinion of the Directors, resulting more relevant BEfE MEFRAEERASEARE
information for the Group’s financial instruments based on HERRATANAIR - BEFZemT
how the Group manages its equity instruments. The financial BEWEEER - FBREMEERTRAR
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income B2V BEEER_ZT—+tF+H
represent equity securities listed in Hong Kong of =+— B EBAAFALTHREES
HK$792,817,000 as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 792,817,000 T(=F — <N F + = A
2016: HK$481,682,000). Dividend income recognised during =+ —H : 481,682,000 7T) - F N #ER
the year related to those investments held at the year end is HERMP/AENZEREFANK A
HK$39,562,000 (2016: HK$18,438,000). There is no disposal or /339,562,000 T(= T — X F:
transfer of the cumulative gain or loss within equity during 18,438,000/ 7T ) © A Ml & F [Z 1T #e R R
both years. EEENES R RS HEE -
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES  22. Hfil B # % & 1 f&
2017 2016
—E—tHf —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Other financial assets B g &EE
Derivatives under hedge accounting HeEHTZHETR
Cash flow hedges — Interest rate swap (a) IR&HmEH H — FI=X
1= #(a) 76,085 115,637
Other financial liabilities H B i & &

Other derivatives (not under hedge
accounting)
Foreign currency forward contracts (b)

IA
HNEE 3B B &
(@)  Cash flow hedges:

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following interest rate swap contracts designated as
highly effective hedging instruments in order to manage

the Group’s interest rate exposure in relation to the
bank borrowings on a floating interest rate basis.
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22. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Cash flow hedges: (Continued)

The terms of the interest rate swap contracts have been
negotiated to match the terms of the respective
designated hedged items. The major terms of these
contracts are as follows:

31 December 2017
—E—tE+=-A=+—H

Notional amount

EHREH

Maturity
A

2. b B4 %5 B £ ()

@ RaREHMW: (B

MEEHEONGRDIEHERE
o AESZHEBETEFEBE W
fRFR - ZFERMMEBRMGRAOT ¢

Swaps

= 1

HK$3,600,000,000 Approximate 4 years
3,600,000,0007% 7T olikes

As at 31 December 2017, fair value loss of
HK$39,552,000 (31 December 2016: fair value gain of
HK$115,637,000) have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity.

Other derivatives (not under hedge accounting):

During the year, the Group signed certain foreign
exchange forward contracts with upper and lower strike
prices in the aggregate notional amount of United States
dollar (“US$"”) 80,000,000 as an economic hedge of its
exposure to exchange rate risks while converting RMB to
Uss$.

23. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED

From floating rate to fixed interest rates
)% B ) 8 5 [ 5 B K

R—ZE—+tF+_A=+—H0 42
ft {B 5 #839,552,000/% 7t (=& — /<
F+-_A=+—"HB:AAEKZ
115,637,000/ 7T ) E 70 & fth 2 m U
AR WHREEZR RE o

(b) FEHAEFTZHMITETA

RAFE AEBFTHTAFT
FELETRZINERZHEH £F
% {E © %8 A80,000,0003% T ([
T EABBARE B ETHIE
SRR B R O A A 57 0 o

3. % BR B & K SRAT A7 K

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

Ti#&T FHET

Restricted cash PR #) 3R & 623,774 242,201

The carrying amounts of restricted cash are denominated in
RMB. As at 31 December 2017, the weighted average effective
interest rate was 0.3% (2016: 0.3%) per annum.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of cash and bank
deposits.

SRFEREAAREIERE R_T—+tF
+_A=+—HB NEFHEEREMNEXA
03%(ZZF—RF:03%)°

RBEHRAAAZZEREERBRAR
& RRITHERZEREE -
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ARE IR AR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

23. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED 23.
(CONTINUED)
The restricted cash represents (i) performance deposits for
construction projects; and (ii) guarantee deposits for the
benefit of mortgage loan facilities granted by banks to the
purchasers of the Group’s properties.

52 B i B < e B AT A7 K (48

ERHRSEONEEHBEZBORES
ABEERTRITESAEEMEZER
BEERBEMREZERES -

24. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS, UNRESTRICTED 24. A 3% [R ] 8 & &% 8R 47 1%

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Cash at banks BITRE 5,275,257 4,590,342
Short-term deposits SRR 356,373 840,827
Cash on hand FHEBES 259 350
Cash and bank deposits RE RRITEX 5,631,889 5,431,519

R TRERSEPREARBTHNA(ZE
—ANEF 1R HBo-RZE—+tF+=
A=+—"HB NMEFHEBRFNEXA
141% (ZZF—RF:1.07%) °

Short-term deposits will be mature in approximately 6 days
(2016: 16 days) from the end of the reporting period. As at
31 December 2017, the weighted average effective interest
rate was 1.41% (2016: 1.07%) per annum.

Re MBITFRZEEETDATIEE

The carrying amounts of cash and bank deposits are

denominated in the following currencies:

B -

2017 2016
—E-tx —T-RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#ET FHT

HK$ BT 192,201 495,513
RMB AR 5,238,095 4,859,400
us$ ETT 140,681 35,344
MOP el 60,912 41,262
5,631,889 5,431,519

RBEMRAARRZZZEREERRAR
ERBITERZEEE -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of cash and bank
deposits.
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25. SHARE CAPITAL

25. WA

2017 2016
—FT—tF —E—REF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
B 8 &8 % 25 k|
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T % FTERT T & FAT
Authorised: VETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 BRAEEBENE T
each LR 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETREMY:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 BREMBENAE T
each i AR
Balance at beginning of F AR
the year 3,344,438 334,444 3,344,279 334,428
Exercise of share options TR AR e 589 59 159 16
Balance at end of the year F IR R 3,345,027 334,503 3,344,438 334,444
Share options i J%

On 29 May 2003, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”) under which the
Directors, at their discretion, invited any person who has
contributed or will contribute to the Group to subscribe for
shares of the Company at nominal consideration of HK$10 for
each lot of options granted. The exercise price was determined
by the Directors, and would not be less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price per share as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant of the relevant option; (ii) the average closing price per
share as stated in the Main Board of the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share of the Company. The 2003 Share
Option Scheme had expired on 28 May 2013. On 7 June
2013, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“2013 Share Option Scheme”) with the same terms under the
2003 Share Option Scheme. Notwithstanding the expiry of the
2003 Share Option Scheme, the share options which had been
granted during the life of the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with their
terms of issue and in all other respects its provisions shall
remain in full force and effect. No share options have been
granted by the Company pursuant to the 2013 Share Option
Scheme.

AZEBETZ=FFA=-1+NEB  KRQaEN
—EHEREFE (T = FERET
) o Btk - EEAWIBT BB TG E K
HeHAEEREER 2 ALTRERE
ARG 2 B SHEEERE
ZBANRERIOBE L - 1THFEEEHESE
T BEREERATI =ZFFZ2H&SHORN
R B BB R T EIR T B R (E
R ERETE ()R EEELEE
FEAR#E B BB AT A8 & 2 B IR (D R B R FT =
REBEBREXRAMHAZBRFEHRTE &
(VAR zEE  — T = FERE
FEER—_E—=FRA_t+N\BEM-
RZZE—=F"AtH ' XAREKMN—IE
FTREREAE(Z2Z —=F B R E:
2 BERE ST =FERETEAE
B-#A_ZTE=FEREFELERE
W MERZEE = FREREESIBRAR D
B EASEES N BRIBEHETIER
Al F17E - MEMEEM T EOE S #
BETRHRARER - AABWERE =
T FERETEE D ERE -
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 25. WA (%)
Share options (Continued) I Je (%)
()  Details of the share options granted are as follows: () HEBEREFBOT

Category of Date of grant/exercisable

participants period of share options Exercise price Number of share options
2EEHY RUBH WBRETEH TEE fBikEHE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF ZFT—tE ZT—KF
HK$ HK$ ‘000 ‘000
BT BT T iz T i
Directors 1 December 2008/1 December 0.45 0.45 — —
2010 to 30 November 2018
(note 1)
5= —EENF+=ZA—B/

—E-TF+=-A—HZE
—E-N\F+—A=+H
(ME3ET)
30 November 2012/ 1.20 1.20 — 8,670
30 November 2014 to
29 November 2022 (note 2)
—T——f+—A=+8/
—E-NOE+—HA=1THZE
—E_—_F+—-—HA=Z+ANHA

(B 5E2)
— 8,670
Employees 1 December 2008/1 December 0.45 0.45 3,525 4,114
2010 to 30 November 2018
(note 1)
== —EENF+=ZA—B/
—E—ZTF+_A—H=ZE
—E-NEFE+—H=1H
(B 5E1)
30 November 2012/ 1.20 1.20 — 37,100
30 November 2014 to
29 November 2022 (note 2)
—T——F+—A=+8/
ZE—WOFE+—A=+HZE
T +—-—HAZ+ThH
(Bt &E2)
3,525 41,214
3,525 49,884
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Share options (Continued)
Details of the share options granted are as follows:
(Continued)

(i)

Notes:

(1

The options are exercisable upon fulfillment of certain performance
targets achieved by the Group and grantees. These options are
exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage of options
of each tranche exercisable within the exercisable periods
commencing from 1 December 2010 to 30 November 2018, from
1 December 2011 to 30 November 2018 and from 1 December
2012 to 30 November 2018 are 30%, 30% and 40%
respectively. The fair value of share options in the three tranches
is HK$0.3355 per share. All share options are exercisable as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.

The options are exercisable upon fulfillment of certain performance
targets achieved by the Group and grantees. These options are
exercisable in three tranches: the maximum percentage of options
of each tranche exercisable within the exercisable periods
commencing from 30 November 2014 to 29 November 2022,
from 30 November 2015 to 29 November 2022 and 30
November 2016 to 29 November 2022 are 30%, 30% and 40%
respectively. The fair values of share options in the three tranches
are HK$0.6538, HK$0.6774 and HK$0.6912 per share
respectively. During the year, the vesting conditions have been
assessed and certain performance targets have not been achieved.
All share options are lapsed and no share option is exercisable as
at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: All share options are
exercisable).

25. JB A (#)
W Je HE (A5
BB T ()

(i)

RAEHMEFRLAR — T LFFR

GEX

BRELANAEERARANERS
TRABBRRIA TR - ZFBARE
Ao=#E: BT —FF+_-_A—
FRE-Z-NF+—-A= +E¢%
M B-E——F+t-A-BA#E=

—A$+—HE+E¢%W&E*§
——F+-A-BRBRE_ZT-N\F+—
H*+H¢ﬁE%ﬁWTﬂ@Z#H

BRES=E DL A A30% - 30%
F40% - &,m%%%Zi&“fﬁ

¥ /R30.33558 7T ° T A BRERT N =

—tER_FE-ARFT+_H=+— E
IE -
BRELANAEBERARANERS

FRIEBZRFAIFIIE - WL ERERE
Ao =#iTE: A= —ME+—A
=tE#EE-_ZT-_—"F+—A=-+h
AitHE - B =F—AF+—A=+H
BE 7__¢+ A=-t+hB1tH
MEE-Z—AR"E+—A=+tARLE
—E-—E+—A=-t+ABITTER
HMRATEZSRERESSEI L
2 B A30% * 30% K%40% ° % = #it 6§
&4 2 G RR A B 5 Bl /£0.6538% 7T
0.6774% 7T }20.6912/8 7T - R ANEE -
BEEKHBLETHERETREBZEYL
REH - R=ZFT—tF+t=-A=+—
B - BT AR HEY B 2K ik R A 4 R A 4
AFIIECE—A"FEF+=A=1+—
B:RaBRES F76E) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE IR AR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Share options (Continued)
(i) Movements in the above share options are as follows:

25.

e A (#)
Wi I HE (A1)
(i) ERBREZEBHNT

2017 2016

—E—tf —E-REF

Number of Number of

share options share options

Mk EHE fERR 2 A

‘000 ‘000

T TR

At beginning of the year F 1) 49,884 51,256
Lapsed B R (45,770) (1,213)
Exercised B17fE (589) (159)
At end of the year FR 3,525 49,884

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 589,000
(2016: 159,000) share options were exercised and the
weighted average share price was HK$1.24 (2016:
HK$0.96). No share-based payment expense recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$2,050,000 share-based payment expense reversed).
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26. RESERVES 26. fifi i

Employee
Capital  share-based Investments  Cash flow
Share  Contributed  redemption ~compensation  revaluation hedging  Revaluation Other  Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total

Bx  ERERA BE  ReR
BieR  EMRR EOGR ERAEEE  EGEE  HMOR  ERER  RAER  ERGE  REM ]
HKS000  HKS000 K000 HKFOOO  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TEn  TRER TH TH Th TR TH Thn TR TH Th

(note (al) (note (b)) (note (c))
(@) (R (b)) (H3(0)
Balance as at 1 January 2016 H=F-RE
—A-BZEH 4269948 515,336 769 37,534 53,008 — 1314 31,640 (397,368) 2,510,612 7,022,793

Issue of shares ¥k 56 - - - = = = = = - %
Reversal of employee share  EEERERH AR

option benefits - - = (2,050) - - - - - - 2050)
Fair value loss of financial FREM2ENE

assets at fair value BRAAEREZ

through other HHEEREE

comprefensive income LARERR - - - - (129083) = = = = - (129,083

Gain on revaluation of ERNFERERE
owner-occupied properties 9% 2 EfEME
upon transfer to

investment properties — - - - — - 3,045 — - — 3,045
Fair value gain on hedging ~~ B&TRH R #

instruments in cash flow IEZRAfE

hedges W - - - - - B - - - — 156%
Acquisition of non-controlling  WEEHB 2 A4

interests of subsidiaries FERER - - - - - - - (343,088) - = (343,088)
Currency translation EXAE

adjustments - - - - - - - - (864,822) — (864,822)
2015 final dividend paid ZH-%-1F

KBRS = = = = = = = = = (66,886) (66,386)

Profit fo the year EEEA = = = - = = = = 51,058 512,088

Balance as at 31 December ~ RZF—1F

2016 tZAZ+-A
284 4270004 51533 769 BB 0605 156 439 QUM (1262190 2955784 6247680
Issue of shares ¥R 206 - - - - - - = = = 206
Redlassification of employee BB B BRERA
share option benefits ENNE 3673 = = (34,301) = = = = = 30,628 =
Fair value gain of financial ~ FREM2ENE
asses at fair value ERARENEZ
through other HBEEREL
comprehensive income AR ERR - - - - 311,135 - - - - - 311,135
Fair value loss on hedging B e
instruments in cash flow IEZRR
hedges Fi - - - - - (39,552) - - - — (39,552)
Currency translation ExR%
adjustments = — — — — — — — 919,568 — 919,568
2016 final dividend paid IHZF-~ERE
Be _ _ - - - - - - - 0B
Profit for the year EERA - - - - - - - - - 712,914 712914
Balance as at 31 December ~ RZF—tF
2017 T-A=t-H
&% 4273883 515,336 769 1183 235,080 76,085 4359 (311,448) (342,622) 3,565,549 8,018,174
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

26. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Contributed surplus mainly represents the excess of the fair value of shares
in Minmetals Land Investments Limited acquired by the Company over
the nominal value of the new shares of the Company issued pursuant to
the share exchange agreement.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of its
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities, issued
share capital and share premium account.

Other reserve represents the differences between the amount by which
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of consideration
paid or received when the Group acquired or disposed of partial
interests in existing subsidiaries.

During 2016, the Group completed acquisitions of additional interests of
two non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, at cash
considerations of RMB2,327,589,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,618,571,000). The carrying amounts of the non-controlling interests
on the dates of acquisitions are approximately HK$2,275,483,000. As a
result, the Group recognised a decrease in equity attributable to equity
holders of approximately HK$343,088,000.

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in Mainland China are required to appropriate
a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year losses) to the
statutory reserves at the rate of 10%. The appropriation as at 31
December 2017, amounting to approximately HK$708,516,000 (2016:
HK$450,045,000), was included in retained earnings at 31 December
2017.
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26. fufi fhi (#8)

fi a2

(a)

BHEAEREZIEAR AR KEMinmetals Land
Investments Limited & 53 2 & 72 B #8 H AR 2 7]
BEROZRBRETHIROZKROEEZ

REBEABREQAFNL EHAKAHIIK TR
R BETIERTARATEEE KKK
ERDIKE AR - ()i A2 7R KN E
DIREHREXNERAE  ROARBEE
ZAEREESEAMENLEAE BEHTRA
R B i (B R 2 42N -

HitEhmiEsrEREa AR HEEAEEK
BRLERAMNBRARAMB O EERH Tk
BEROKRENRAEZIHOER -

RZF—ARFR AEETKBERARARK
FEEMBARZEIINRE RERBERAR
#2,327,589,0007T (8 & 7 492,618,571,0007%
L) RBERY AREZEERERZER
fE#/52,275,483,0008 7T - E It © AEBER
BREEEABGZEZHRER QD
343,088,000/8 Tt °

RPN ARGIRE - AR B B R &
BB 2 M B R R RS D ) BR AR i A (FE K 8
GEEBRRBALZERFE  LEBI0% -1
—E-—EFt-A=t—RB ARABFAAE
708,516,000/ 7T (= & — 734 : 450,045,000%
) BREE_E—tH+_A=+—HH
REAFZA -



27.

PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS

On 28 December 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (the “Borrower”), a fellow subsidiary and a bank
(the ”Bank”) have entered into an entrustment loan
agreement (the “Perpetual Loan Agreement”), pursuant to
which the fellow subsidiary shall entrust the Bank to lend
RMB2,000 million (equivalent to HK$2,392,600,000) (the
“Perpetual Loan”) to the Borrower. The Perpetual Loan bears
interest at the benchmark interest rate for loans over five years
as quoted by the People’s Bank of China per annum. Interest
payments on the Perpetual Loan are paid annually in arrears
from 28 December 2017 and can be deferred at the discretion
of the Borrower. Neither the fellow subsidiary nor the Bank
could request for repayment of the principal and accrued
interest save and except for when the Borrower elects to repay
the principal and accrued interest at its sole discretion, or in
the event of liquidation. Under the Perpetual Loan Agreement,
no guarantee of any kind is required to be given by any
member of the Group to either the fellow subsidiary or the
Bank for the Perpetual Loan. As the Group has the right to
defer the repayment of the principal and accrued interest at its
sole discretion, it has no direct or indirect contractual financial
obligation to pay cash or other financial asset in respect of the
Perpetual Loan, thus, the instrument is therefore classified as
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.

During the year, no interest related to the Perpetual Loan was
paid to the fellow subsidiary.

27.

KABEARTLHR
RZE—tF+_A=+N\H xRA—
FMeEWB AR ((ERALD  —ERRK
BRI R—RIEBT(TRITDIZERTER
e (kK ABERBZE]) BUHRRMBEA
AEZTRTRAEBERAEGEEARE
2,000,000,0007t (48 & 742,392,600,000/%
TLI([KAEF]) o XABRIZFEARR
TEAMBARLFHE RN EEFF K
B o KABRZMENRTBZZT—EF
T AT N\BRFEEFREIGTEITAE
RABBEL - BRIEEBERAZTERN B EIE
EEAE REFFESEE  TRIRRH
BARNBITH A EREERS RER
B - BEBEKABERBE - AEEERAK
BRARIHBARKAERRRERZWE QA%
BITIRHEEMBENNER EAXEEA
BEHNBECEEAEREMNFE  A&5E
MEBXKAER  WEEEXFEESDOH
BEANINE S BEEE  BIGHELT
ERGEVBERAIREEAER -

RAREE - BERKAERAE RN ER
BIXAAB -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

28. BORROWINGS

28. 2

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Non-current JE R &
Bank borrowings, secured (a) RITER . BAHEIH@Q) 9,801,029 8,618,418
Guaranteed bonds, unsecured (b) ERES  EEHF () 969,035 2,696,441
10,770,064 11,314,859
Current mED
Bank borrowings, secured (a) SRITIE R BE () 2,224,416 75,975
Guaranteed bonds, unsecured (b) ERES  EFKHD) 1,753,735 —
Loan from a fellow subsidiary, unsecured —XRARWBRGEZ
(Note 37(b)) B3 EE R
(M$5E37(b)) — 223,589
3,978,151 299,564
14,748,215 11,614,423
(a) Banking facilities (a) MITWE
The Group’s aggregate banking facilities, including RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—H &
bank borrowings, as at 31 December 2017 ERITHEAE(BRERITER

amounted to approximately HK$16,659,527,000
(2016: HK$12,240,570,000), of which approximately
HK$4,544,540,000 (2016: HK$3,464,595,000) was
unutilised. As at 31 December 2017, the collaterals for
the banking facilities are as follows:

(i)  Properties under development with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$6,165,669,000
(2016: Nil);

(i) 100% equity interests in subsidiaries; and

(iii)  Corporate guarantees given by the Company.
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49 516,659,527,0005 7T (= T — /X
£F 1 12,240,570,0007 7T) » E K&
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28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Guaranteed bonds

On 26 April 2013, the Group issued the Guaranteed
Bonds (”Guaranteed Bonds”) with a principal amount of
US$225,000,000 and US$125,000,000 bearing interest at
the coupon rate of 5.50% and 6.50%, per annum
respectively, which will be matured on 26 April 2018
and 26 April 2023 respectively. The Guaranteed Bonds
were guaranteed by the Company and have the benefit
of a keep well deed from China Minmetals Corporation,
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.
Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering
event, the bondholders will have the right, at the
bondholders’ option, to require the Group to redeem all,
but not some only, of the outstanding Guaranteed
Bonds at 101% of their principal amounts, together with
accrued interest. If the Group would be obliged to pay
additional tax amounts in respect of Guaranteed Bonds
as a result of any change in, or amendment to, specified
tax laws or regulations, all outstanding Guaranteed
Bonds may be redeemed at the Group’s option, in whole
but not in part, at their principal amounts together with
interest accrued up to but excluding the redemption
date.

The Group may at its option redeem the Guaranteed
Bonds at any time, in whole but not in part, at a Make
Whole Price as of, and accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, to (but excluding), the redemption date.

“Make Whole Price” means with respect to the
Guaranteed Bonds at any redemption date, the greater
of (1) the present value of the principal amount of the
Guaranteed Bonds, plus all required remaining scheduled
interest payments due on such Guaranteed Bonds from
the optional redemption date to the maturity date (but
excluding accrued and unpaid interest to the option
redemption date), computed using a discount rate, which
the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual equivalent
yield in maturity of the comparable treasury issue, plus
0.50 per cent., and (2) the principal amount of such
Guaranteed Bonds.

Early redemption options are regarded as embedded
derivatives not closely related to the host debt
instrument. The Directors consider that the fair value of
the above early redemption options is insignificant on
initial recognition and as at 31 December 2017 and
2016.

28.

ik (48)

(b)

# R

R-E—=FWA=-+,H K&
BaoEREHF(EREF]) &
& % % Bl £A225,000,000% T &
125,000,000% 7t + EH F F X 5 5
735.50%#6.50% - AL ESFE D
AR —_FE—NFERA=-+ BE=
T_=ZFWA-F+NHEH-ER
BHETTHARRER  TXERA
NABRKREBRBRRETFRAEEEAS
BRAE R A RIFRERE - RA
NAIBEAEEGEELEE 2 SH
B BEHFERFBABREEREEREX
MASEERDR 2 (MIEILD)KE
BHERESFZ101% AL ER ET
FE - MAFERBERIOERE
FokEE] BRASEEARERE
HRARRINGIE - 2 EB (ST M FEH
DIREENERESFUEASE 2
BEWED BROLBEAANLER
HEETBEEBELDRAHZ ZAFE -

AEBEAAITEREECAREUE
BmAEMs ABREEBREDE
REZ FAETEEEDA S
Rt E R RARNHFME (E) -

[ERERIZTEREBSNEME
B EHHATESENREZEFH
AeRE BNELEFBENEDA
HEIHEMFHRTINE (BB
HitERE R B MM R ORI AE)
FERAMNFTRESFHANERITXE
BESFFESRNFNE 0L
B Z050RQEREFNAS

REEREEGAEEEETAYW
ETYBERNRARNTET R - &
ERELMIBEREOERVINER
BER_ZE—ttFR_ZT—X
+_A=t+—"BHRARELTEK -

<|:R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 28. 1wk (%)
(b) Guaranteed bonds (Continued) (b) &0 15 27 ()
The effective interest rates of the Guaranteed Bonds at RZE—+tF+_A=+—HK=
the end of the reporting period were 5.89% and 6.73% -+ A=+—8 " ERE
for US$225,000,000 and US$125,000,000 respectively as #+225,000,0005% 7T %2 125,000,000
at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. TTHE KM XD R A589%K
6.73% °
(c)  The maturity of the Group’s borrowings is as follows: (c) AKEMERZEMBERDOT :
2017 2016
—ET—tF AN
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bank borrowings RITERK
Within one year —F R 2,224,416 75,975
In more than one year but no more —FEMF
than two years 35,889 4,166,395
In more than two years but not FE_EFRF
exceeding five years 9,765,140 4,452,023
12,025,445 8,694,393
Guaranteed bonds ERES
Within one year —FR 1,753,735 —
In more than one year but no more —FEMEF
than two years - 1,736,571
In the second to fifth year E_EZERF = —
In the sixth to tenth year EREETHF 969,035 959,870
2,722,770 2,696,441
Loan from a fellow subsidiary —RARWBRAZ
Within one year —FR = 223,589
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28. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

28. f&#x (#)

(d) Bank borrowings and loan from a fellow subsidiary of
totaling HK$12,025,445,000 (2016: HK$8,917,982,000)
are on floating interest rate basis. The effective interest
rates at the end of the reporting period were as follows:

(d) 12,025,445,000/& T (= & — /R F :
8,917,982,000/ T) 2 iR1T B K —
RRARMB AR 2 BERIRZEF =X
AR -MNMEPRAZERMNEN

T
2017 2016
—E—-tx —E-REF
HK$ RMB HK$ RMB
BT AR% BT AR
Non-current R B
Bank borrowings RITIE K 3.17% 4.99% 3.22% —
Current B
Bank borrowings AT 4.04% 5.10% — 4.62%
Loan from a fellow — KA RN B
subsidiary RNAElZE R = = — 4.79%
(e) The fair values of borrowings approximate their carrying (e) BRZARNBEHHEKREMBEMRSE 2

amounts. The fair values are determined based on
discounted cash flows.

(f)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are

RENZEURREREETE °

() AEEER EEET T &S

denominated in the following currencies: HI|BR -
2017 2016
—T—tHF NS
HK$’'000 HK$'000
Fi#&T FE T
HK$ BT 11,881,961 8,618,418
RMB AR # 143,484 299,564
us$ EVI 2,722,770 2,696,441
14,748,215 11,614,423

IBEWEARAR —
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. % #E B JH
2017 2016
—F—txF —E—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&ET FETT
Deferred tax assets EET IR & E 1,096,579 560,757
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE (168,431) (131,080)
928,148 429,677

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the

year are as follows:

FREEHRREERBBENESHNT

Deferred tax assets R %t B JH B e
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&ET FAT
Tax losses MIBE 8

At beginning of the year F 4 974 1,040
Exchange differences IE X =% 68 (66)
Recognised in the profit or loss R &= ER 1,556 —
At end of the year FIR 2,598 974

Temporary difference on cost recognition B e R B B B = AR
At beginning of the year F 47 559,783 394,314
Exchange differences E & =% 56,654 (33,491)
Recognised in the profit or loss 8 8 B RR 477,544 198,960
At end of the year FR 1,093,981 559,783
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29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities B IH £ 5
2017 2016
—E—LtF —ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Fair value gain n o ERE
At beginning of the year F 47 5,317 30,564
Exchange differences E & =% 1,464 (13,772)
Recognised in the profit or loss 18 = R (3,744) (11,475)
At end of the year FR 3,037 5,317
Accelerated tax depreciation IR IETE
At beginning of the year F 4 18,690 17,863
Recognised in the profit or loss NE=ER 1,392 827
At end of the year F IR 20,082 18,690
Undistributed retained earnings RIEMREB & F
At beginning of the year F1 107,073 47,699
Recognised in the profit or loss R &= ER 38,239 59,374
At end of the year FIR 145,312 107,073

Deferred tax liabilities of HK$36,947,000 (2016: HK$10,314,000)
have not been recognised in respect of temporary difference
associated with undistributed retained earnings of certain
subsidiaries, as the Directors currently intend not to distribute
the retained earnings outside Mainland China in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefits through future taxable profits is probable. Due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams, as at 31 December
2017, the Group had unrecognised tax losses in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$811,873,000 (2016: HK$682,893,000), which
can be carried forward against future taxable income and have
no expiry date, and unrecognised tax losses in Mainland China
of approximately HK$523,836,000 (2016: HK$389,530,000)
which will expire at various dates up to and including 2022.

iIE T i 78 B {&36,947,000/ 7T (Z F — /~
F:10,314,0008 ) WERE THE A
AZARDIRRBAENEANEGEREZZED
MR Ty R E =R R B N A B R 2R
REBEF 5K H B AR o

MEENEEERER2EERIEBEEE
TN BB A =R A Al 68 B KR
ERBRRMER 2BERABR - ER KK
HEA RO AT EANE MR T —tF
+ZA=Z+—H AEEREBALE
EHUEEARARERBBAZ RERT
% B 1B 4 5811,873,000/8 ;T (= & — /X
F : 682,893,000/ T) - AW EFIHH -
e B A EE 2 K ERREE B
#) /523,836,000 L(= T — X F:
389,530,000 L)  REE =T = =
(BEZE)IEZ2TRBHEE -
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

30. © 5 B 3L Ath FE £ sk 26

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E— R
HK$'000 HK$ 000
F#ET T
Trade, bills and contract payables (b) B 5 ZHNA L FENFRIED) 897,746 715,232
Retention payables EMRE S 46,014 40,214
Accruals and other payables FEET & A & E th fE S 5B 4,210,333 3,617,548
Rental deposits received BB EEE 16,630 16,758
Amounts due to non-controlling FE ST B B & B FE 12 AR AR 3R 30IE
shareholders of subsidiaries (B 5£37(b) )
(Note 37(b)) 68,112 172,600
Amounts due to a fellow subsidiary e — KB R E A F
(Note 37(b)) E (M 5E37(b) ) 3,310,162 2,124,419
Amounts due to associates FE - Bt & R &) 5B
(Note 37(b)) (Pt 5E37(0) ) 967,788 1,066,438
9,516,785 7,753,209

(@) The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are

B NEMENRIBEZREETA

denominated in the following currencies: T3 BB
2017 2016
—E—tFf ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
HK$ BT 73,046 184,550
RMB AR ¥ 9,367,860 7,472,361
uss$ e 29,278 29,278
MOP R P 46,601 67,020
9,516,785 7,753,209
(b)  The aging analysis of trade, bills and contract payables of by AEEZES EBRREHENKE
the Group based on invoice date is as follows: ERBEQHZERRSMAOT
2017 2016
—E—LtF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
0 to 90 days 0%90H 149,314 357,298
91 to 180 days 912180H 7,220 49,361
181 days to 1 year 181HE—4F 473,659 104,442
1 year to 2 years —FEMF 182,947 50,817
Over 2 years R F A E 84,606 153,314
897,746 715,232
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31.

32.

DEFERRED REVENUE 31. | A

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FAT
Receipt in advance from property sales Y % 8 & TR IR R IE 10,375,641 12,407,608
Government grants T & Bl 8,335 12,015
10,383,976 12,419,623

PENSION OBLIGATIONS 32. BRkEHIE

The Group participates in a defined contribution pension
scheme and a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") scheme for
the eligible employees in Hong Kong. Before 1 December
2000, a defined contribution pension scheme was provided to
certain eligible employees employed by the Group. The Group
ceased the contributions since 1 December 2000, upon
introduction of the MPF scheme.

Under the MPF scheme, the Company and each of the Hong
Kong subsidiaries of the Company make monthly contributions
to the MPF at 5% of the employees’ cash income as defined
under the MPF legislation. Contributions by both the
Company/Hong Kong subsidiaries and their employees are
subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 per month per employee
and thereafter contributions are voluntary. The Group's
contributions to the pension scheme and MPF scheme are
expensed as incurred.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China, the
Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plan for its
employees in Mainland China as determined by the local
government. The Group is required to contribute to the plan
at a rate ranging from 7% to 12% of the basic salary of
Mainland China employees in addition to contributions by
employees at a rate ranging from 7% to 12% of the basic
salary as specified by the local government, and the Group has
no further obligations for the actual payment of the pensions
or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions
made.

AEBREBTERERERZ2EERMEN
BRARSAEFRGIMEAER (TRES ]
2 - —TETFFT_A-BZAH - AEH
RERBZETRERREBRREHT—BRER
HREAKREE - R ERBESF R
AEEA _TEEF+_A—BHEERFL
BRAHER -

REBELFE ARAREARREEE
MEBARASAREERERESIENE
BELHSWAZS%ELRBESHR - K
RE,/BEEWNBRAREEE 2 AHRK
FRHAEMESR,5008TT  BELESR
ZEIMETBERELE - AREZEKE
AEI R REE S ERRNELERII -

RBEFBEAMOERRTE  ARE/EF
BritESREMBRFREFANBRE PR
REtBEL R - REBRBH T BN
REREEARNFSHAT%EI2% » &K
SEERTEARNMEER ZTNE12%ER
Framkat 8K - REESFHFRN
AEEY EEMHANERERARSIORIKE
MZBE-
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33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from/

33. LA B &R LW

(a)

BR Bt A M RS R E L (PR

(used in) operations: B &z $ek:
2017 2016
—T-tx —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FAT
Profit before tax B 35 A& A 3,557,788 1,997,492
Interest income B U A (147,039) (241,362)
Interest expense FMEFH 114,674 55,669
Depreciation e 7,203 7,322
Fair value changes on investment WEMERARBEEE
properties (151,334) (123,977)
Reversal of share option benefits P 0] 6 AR 4 1B I — (2,050)
Provision for impairment of trade and B 5 [k H A FE WK IE R
other receivables BREE 30,229 1,816
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of & &R E R, (B @E)
inventories 83,713 (2,921)
Provision for impairment of goodwill R ERE 9,425 —
Fair value changes of other financial HmoBaEsAnE
liabilities &g 41,960 —
Share of results of associates DIREEE R A EE 2,495 12,135
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEERAIFEE 2,610 =
Operating profit before working capital &iE & & Z A2
changes #E a A) 3,551,724 1,704,124
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEOEm I (4,652,418) 898,016
Decrease/(increase) in prepayment, trade FEfZIE - E 5 K H A
and other receivables EWRIER D, (38
yilih) 6,184,420 (6,839,776)
Decrease in amounts due from BRERFPZEHTIIE
customers for contract work KIER D 252,881 58,275
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 & E b &S 58
2 251,059 711,761
(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue  #EZEU 2z GRLA) /3840 (2,906,314) 3,329,407
Decrease in other liabilities H b & &R (163) =
(Increase)/decrease in cash and bank SREIRE MIBITER
deposits, restricted (3gm) D (364,593) 32,743
Exchange adjustments PE W 38 & 240,141 (478,980)
Cash generated from/(used in) REEISEY
operations (AR & 2,556,737 (584,430)
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33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

(b)

33. % & Bl & U & & Wk ()

by BMEEHMELRBIHE

Non-cash changes

RLEH

Financing cash Exchanges Other changes 31 December

1 January 2017 flows (i) adjustments (ii) 2017

—5-t% HERSE —B-tf

-A-H mE () EnifAg  Ht#8() +-A=+-H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET TAT TAT TAT

Guaranteed bonds BREH 2,696,441 - 26,329 - 2,722,770

Bank loans RITER 8,694,393 3,277,024 5,890 48,138 12,025,445

Loan from a fellow subsidiary —KRXKBAFZEH 223,589 (223,589) = = =
Amounts due to ER—RAZHBA

a fellow subsidiary e 2,124,419 1,036,812 148,931 — 3,310,162

13,738,842 4,090,247 181,150 48,138 18,058,377

(i) The cash flows from bank loans, loans from related () RER|RTER BEHAIERK

(ii)

parties and other borrowings make up the net
amount of proceeds from borrowings and
repayments borrowings in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Other changes include amortisation of front-end fee
of interest-bearing bank borrowings.

HER 2 REREBRER
ReREXRTBHRAEREAR
BEBRZFE-

(i) HA2 B SIEE BRT R
BB
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34.

35.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES 34. MBHR
As at 31 December 2017, guarantees given to banks for RZE—tF+ZA=+—H BETFTR
mortgage facilities granted to certain purchasers of the SEMEER 2 ELZBREMG TRITIE
Group's properties amounted to HK$13,142,935,000 (2016: R %13,142,935,000/8 ;L (= T — ;N F ¢
HK$13,688,767,000). Such guarantees will terminate upon the 13,688,767,000/8 L) © 7% F &R #5785
earlier of (i) the issuance of the property ownership certificate BREREERIE-(VEEWEMBER
which will generally be available within one year after the (—RREXREEHBEDEE —FRE
purchasers take the possession of the relevant properties; or (ii) B sk(iE REFIZBE R - RIBER
the repayment of mortgage loans by the purchasers. Pursuant B —BERFERERIEBNRIEA A5
to the terms of the guarantees, the Group is responsible for EEEHEERENEZBERSERENE
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together with RRGBITZBAFE - BAEEE#EE
accrued interest owed by the defaulted purchasers to the EHBEME - EZFBAT  ANEBETR
banks and the Group is entitled to take possession of the BENBZEERRI 2 W EHEEFRER
related properties upon default in mortgage payments by these H-WKWELEAKERNEEEN TR
purchasers. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to Tz At RERBERZEER
retain the property sales proceeds previously received from & BEFERR/BARZZERNEEUE
such purchasers and sell the property to recover any amounts R A E B o
paid by the Group to the banks. Therefore, after taking into
account the creditworthiness of the purchasers, the Directors
consider that no provision is required in the consolidated
financial statements for the guarantees.
In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the financial EERA MBERSANAALERYSA
guarantee contracts at initial recognition and subsequently at ERAREEESERERRLTEX -
the end of each reporting period is not significant as the REDRBRIK -
default rate is low.
COMMITMENTS 35. KI5
(@) The Group had capital commitments as follows: (@) AEEBEAREREMAT :
2017 2016
—E—-tH —T-REF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FAT
Contracted but not provided for EETHEREE
Expenditure in respect of acquisition B [ 3 5 PR R
of land use rights ZHX — 924,492
Expenditure in respect of properties ERABRPMERX
under development 2,011,831 1,419,555
2,011,831 2,344,047
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35. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 35. & ¥ (%)

(b)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments (b)y AEEIREBBEHRAE DA
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of L2EHERNAREFz2REHEHEN
office premises as follows: HABEEOT :

2017 2016

—E—tHF —EF—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FAT

Not later than one year —F R 12,515 24,676
Later than one year but not later than —F&ERFR

five years 12,943 35,207

Later than five years HF 1% 1,587 1,735

27,045 61,618

() The Group leases out investment properties under (0 AEERBE—RUTAHF—ZE=2=F
operating leases which generally run for initial periods of ZEEBEHERLREYME -HHOHW
one to three years. None of the leases includes mEENAES -

contingent rentals.

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts REBRBREATHESERER K
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows: REKR  ZEESBRELOT -
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FTET FAT
Not later than one year —F A 56,096 63,274
Later than one year but not later than —EEERER
five years 33,349 61,201
89,445 124,475
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36. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND
MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash
flow interest-rate risk, fair value interest-rate risk and
equity securities price risk for financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income), credit risk and
liquidity risk. These risks are managed by the Group’s
financial management policies and practices as described
below to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

(i) Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities. Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group
operates in Mainland China, with most of their
transactions denominated in RMB, functional
currency of the respective group entities. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from the exposure of RMB against US$. It has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the exchange rate, and
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 December 2017, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against US$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$9,000 (2016: HK$10,000)
higher/lower mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency that is different from
the functional currency of the Group’s entities.

Cash flow interest-rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest-rate risk arises from
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on restricted and unrestricted bank deposits,
loans to a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary and borrowings issued at variable rates.
Other than the concentration of interest rate risk
related to the movements in Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate and the loan interest published by the
People’s Bank of China, the Group has no
significant concentration of interest rate risk.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

()

Market risk (Continued)

Cash flow interest-rate risk (Continued)

The Group maintains a close relationship and
communicates regularly with its finance providers
to explore financing alternatives to monitor and
mitigate interest-rate risk. The Group has entered
into interest rate swaps to hedge against its
exposures to changes in cash flows of its certain
interest payments of borrowings (see Note 22).

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. No sensitivity analysis has been presented
for bank balances as the Directors consider that the
fluctuation in interest rates on bank balances is
minimal.

If interest rates on HK dollar-denominated
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower
with all other variables held constant, (i) post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
have been HK$167,000 (2016: HK$5,678,000)
lower/higher in respect of the finance cost
charged to the profit or loss; and (ii) properties
under development would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$99,795,000 (2016:
HK$36,907,000) for finance cost capitalised into
properties under development.

If interest rates on RMB-denominated borrowings
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, (i) post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2017 would have
been HK$807,000 (2016: HK$2,247,000) lower/
higher in respect of the finance cost charged to the
profit or loss; and (ii) properties under
development would have increased/decreased by
approximately HK$269,000 (2016: Nil) for finance
cost capitalised into properties under development.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

()

Market risk (Continued)

Cash flow interest-rate risk (Continued)

If interest rates on loans to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary had been 100 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit would
have increased/decreased by approximately
HK$28,115,000 (2016: HK$18,488,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Fair value interest-rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest-rate risk relates
primarily to the guaranteed bonds issued at fixed
rate.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
the financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair
values at the end of each reporting period.

Equity securities price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because of investments held by the Group and
carried at fair value on the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s equity securities
price risk is concentrated on equity instruments
operating in property development industry sector
quoted in the Stock Exchange. The Group will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

If the market value of the equity securities held by
the Group increased or decreased by 10% and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s
equity would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$79,282,000 (2016: HK$48,168,000) as at 31
December 2017.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(i)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk primarily arises from
deposits with banks, trade and other receivables
and guarantees provided in respect of mortgage
facilities (Note 34).

The credit risk on deposits with banks is limited
because the counterparties are banks with sound
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s financial position, past history of
making payments and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers. Monitoring
procedures have been implemented to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other
receivables at the end of the reporting period to
ensure adequate provision for impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such
purchasers for repayments. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of its mortgage during the term of
the guarantee, the Group is able to retain the
property sales proceeds received from the
purchasers and sell the property to recover any
amounts paid by the Group to the bank. The
management considers the credit risk exposure to
financial guarantees provided to property
purchasers is limited because the facilities are
secured by the properties and the market price of
the properties is higher than the guaranteed
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on loans
to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary,
but the exposure is considered limited as the
counterparties are at a good financial position.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(i1)) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk on trade and other receivables, with
exposure spread over a number of customers.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds which are deposited with several
banks, which are mainly State-owned banks and
with high credit ratings in Mainland China and
Hong Kong.

(iii) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of credit
facilities. Management aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping credit lines available.
Management monitors the rolling forecasts of the
Group’s liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn
borrowing facilities (Note 28(a)) and cash and bank
balances (Note 24) on the basis of expected cash
flow.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities at amortised cost into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the
end of the reporting period to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including both principal and interest). To the
extent that interest flows are at variable-rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of each reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group's
liquidity analysis for its derivative financial
instruments. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted contractual net cash (inflows)
and outflows on derivative instruments that settle
on a net basis. When the amount payable is not
fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined
by reference to the projected interest rates as
illustrated by the yield curves existing at the end of
the reporting period. The liquidity analysis for the
Group's derivative financial instruments are
prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual
maturities are essential for an understanding of the
timing of the cash flows of derivatives.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND 36. B A By R &S B ()
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) B4 )E B A R (4)
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) 7% B & & M BE (A7)
Weighted Between Between Total
average Within 1and 2 2 and 5 Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years years 5years  cash flows amount
miEFY KUEH

ERAE -Fh -E@E WELE RfUL RESH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TiER TiER TiER TiER TiER TER

As at 31 December 2017 RZ-F-t%

+ZA=+-H
Non-derivative financial FNENKERE
liabilities
Borrowings EE 3.81% 4,456,927 412,219 10,313,890 994580 16,177,616 14,748,215
Trade and other payables ~ BHREMEFTE  — 3,466,214 = = = 3,466,214 3,466,214
Amounts due to FERTME 2 A1 FEE AR
non-controlling B R 5B
shareholders of
subsidiaries = 68,112 = = = 68,112 68,112

Amounts due to associates  JEfH & A RIHIE = 967,788 — — — 967,788 967,788
Amounts due to a felow ~ EN—XAZNE

subsidiary NGIE¢ = 3,310,162 = = = 3310,162 3,310,162
Financial guarantee BBERSH

contracts = 13,142,935 = = = 13,142,935 =

25,412,138 412,219 10,313,890 994,580 37,132,827 22,560,491

Derivatives — net ITEIR — 348

settlement
Interest rate swaps Flz= 5 (17,508) (40,360) (25,650) — (83,518) 76,085
Foreign currency forward ~ SNEREA L

contract 41,960 — - - 41,960 41,960
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36. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

()

36. s kg R K B BE (4
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Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) B %5 L B R 3K (%)
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) % B & & M BE (A7)
Weighted Between Between Total
average interest  Within 1and 2 2 and 5 Over  undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year years years 5 years cash flows amount
MEFH RERBER
ERF% -8 -Z@E WERF  EENE B8E REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAR TAT TAL TAR
As at 31 December 2016 R =F—7 4
+ZA=+-H
Non-derivative financial FNENBARE
liabilities
Borrowings &R 3.87% 752,105 6,303,575 4,881,165 1,057,953 12,994,798 11,614,423
Trade and other payables B 5 LAt EMFHIE = 3,887,341 = = = 3,887,341 3,887,341
Amounts due to non- FERTME 2 A SEERR
controlling shareholders BRHE
of subsidiaries — 172,600 — — — 172,600 172,600
Amounts due to associates  FE{THE & 1\ A FE = 1,066,438 = = = 1,066,438 1,066,438
Amounts due to a fellow  [Eff—F A ZH B
subsidiary ARITE — 2,124,419 — — — 2,124,419 2,124,419
Financial guarantee BMHERAN
contracts — 13,688,767 — — — 13,688,767 —
21,691,670 6,303,575 4,881,165 1,057,953 33,934,363 18,865,221
Derivatives — net ITEIR — 348
settlement
Interest rate swaps Fl== 58 2,172) (24257)  (100,552) — (126981 115,637




36. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The amounts included above for financial
guarantee contracts are the maximum amounts the
Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that
amount is claimed by the counterparty to the
guarantee. Based on expectations at the end of the
reporting period, the Group considers that it is
more likely than not that no amount will be
payable under the arrangement. However, this
estimate is subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparty claiming under the
guarantee which is a function of the likelihood
that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest
rate instruments for non-derivative financial
liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The total equity and borrowings of the Group represents
the capital structure of the Group. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current
and non-current borrowings as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less cash
and bank deposits.

36. % R B R R K o B (4

(a)

B4 5 L B A R ()

(iii) I B & <+ M g (4H)
P BERaENESER/R
EREFHFREABEHRIER
REBERBLZHAIEAREH
EREBEMNESSE 1R
BREARNTELY  AEER
A BEARBLRY X NFIERN
ARERK - A BFAE
ERUBERKGIENEFHE
RiEEE KM AR ERER
BR BRAMGSRGNE -

RE TIELOE TV S
REETE B F % A3 R - AL
MDA R R A S FI% T
AHSEHERL-

A B b A B
AEEEREAZBERDRELRE
BREgEZRN BUAKRRS
RE®RRELMERFAARS
AR @R HEBERZERNEE - LR
REZMA -

AEBZ BB RERRRAE
BZEXRER RERFHNABRER
R AREHSHTHRO KD
EEENRDER -

HEMRAX -3 AKENAELRE
BLEREREEXEARNZELE I
RREBFERAERBESE -
BRFEREFAE(BREEMH
RRKRFFT25RE FIERE B )
WA e RRITERGE -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

Capital risk management (Continued)
The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
are as follows:

36.

B 5 A B N R B B (7))

(b)

A B B A B ()
R-FB—tFR-_F-—RF+_-AH
St HZEXRABFELERMNT :

2017 2016

—T—t#f —T-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Total borrowings EESt- 14,748,215 11,614,423

Less: Cash and bank deposits B IRE RIBITER (6,255,663) (5,673,720)

Net debt (TR 8,492,552 5,940,703

Total equity T AR RR 13,602,538 8,549,872

Gearing ratio BEARBELE 62% 69%
Fair value estimation (c) 2 fufl fhiwt

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised costs approximate their fair values. The fair
values are estimated using generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flows.

The financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income represent equity securities listed in
Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2017, equity securities
amounting to HK$792,817,000 (2016: HK$481,682,000)
are measured at fair value and based on quoted market
prices of an active market (Level 1) at the end of the
reporting period.

Other financial assets represent interest rate swap
contracts designated as highly effective hedging
instruments in order to manage the Group's interest rate
exposure in relation to the bank borrowings on a
floating interest rate basis. As at 31 December 2017, fair
value of interest rate swap contracts amounting to
HK$76,085,000 (2016: HK$115,637,000) are measured at
the present value of future cash flows estimated based
on the applicable vyield curves derived from quoted
interest rates at the end of the reporting period and
contracted interest rate discounted at a rate that reflects
the credit risk of various counterparties and categorised
in Level 2.
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36.

37.

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS AND
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Other financial liabilities represent foreign currency
forward contracts designated as an economic hedge of
its exposure to exchange rate risks while converting RMB
to US$. As at 31 December 2017, fair value of foreign
currency forward contracts amounting to HK$41,960,000
(2016: Nil) are measured by option pricing model. The
model incorporates the constant price variation, the time
value of money, the strike price and the time to the
option’s expiry and categorised in Level 2.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies under
China Minmetals Corporation (“China Minmetals”), which is
controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with the parent company and its subsidiaries
which have been disclosed in other notes to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group also conducts businesses with
entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by the PRC government
("government-related entities”) in the ordinary course of
business. The Directors consider those entities other than the
China Minmetals and its subsidiaries are independent third
parties as far as the Group’s business transactions with them
are concerned. Apart from the transactions in below (a), the
Group also conducts business with other government-related
entities. In establishing its pricing strategies and approval
process for transactions with other government related
entities, the Group does not differentiate whether the
counter-party is a government-related entity or not. The Group
is of the opinion that it has provided, in the best of its
knowledge, adequate and appropriate disclosure of related
party transactions in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has entered into various transactions, including
sales, purchases, borrowings and other operating expenses
with other government-related entities during the year in
which the Directors are of the opinion that it is impracticable
to ascertain the identity of the counterparties and accordingly
whether the counterparties are government-related entities.

36.

37.

S B A B N R B B B (7))

(c) 2> feAd Akt (4)
EmyBaEasEEArBARKYE
126 JT /Y D 26 3| B it O Y 4 8 S50 0
ZHNERHAEHN R —tF
+-_A=+—H ERBEHZ
N #t {B 541,960,000/ T (—ZF — <
FT) NIRPETERNGE -
ZEAGFTABTERZH ¢ EF
FEE - 17 E & IEREE R K HE
WHERE K-

I5H Wk 05 22 %

AEEAGIRTEIBREEEGR A A
(TP B A& ) (&R A+ BT ) &
T—REKBERRMEKIBD - FrEx A &
BREREMHEMRENEZG QR REN
BRAARETHRZIN AKRETRERX
BB 2P B A E R R RS T
B KEZEHAZEAZENESR (BT
HACXDETEBER -BEFRAR #
AEEEZEERETHNRBERISIME -
ZEER(BRTEABREENBARIN G
RBIYF=T7 - B TX(@2ZXHI - K&
BT REMBTEEERETER A&
EREEMBRAEBEREYIR S EEE
B R BALBIET A ES PE T 2B BSBF
HELX AKERS BEMRMA
RIFEMBRERARBES R BHIEL TR
BEENWRE -

AEEDNHRRELMBFERCER
VEBERSG(BEHEE BE BREHE
fhiCEBRH) MESRAE BEHAIN
BNRZERGREABEMBFRED
XETIHTIYER -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial 53
statements, the Group had the following material transactions
and balances with related parties, which were carried out in
the ordinary and normal course of business of the Group:

(a) Transactions with related parties (a)

37. iYWk 5 22 5 (%)

REMBHRREMM T AREEIN &K

2017
=t
HK$°000
Fi#R

ST 2R 5%

SHERBIRNASEARE R —REHT
ETZEAR S REHRWT

2016
—E—REF
HK$'000
FHET

Construction costs to fellow subsidiaries
for real estate development projects
(note (ii))

Construction costs to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary for a real
estate development project (note (ii))

Rental expense to a fellow subsidiary
(note (iii))

Rental and management fee income
from fellow subsidiaries (note (iii))

Management fee income from an
intermediate holding company and
ultimate holding company (note (iv))

Loan interest expense to a fellow
subsidiary (note (v))

Loan interest expense to
a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary (note (vii))

Loan interest income from
a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary (note (ix))

Interest income from a fellow subsidiary
(note (xi))

Interest income from shareholders of
joint ventures (note (xii))
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BTYREWBAREH
EHEZRERE 22
SRS (B &EG))

BT ZRXWBREIZ—
ZIEBRRREEE
WEHZRIEE ZEE
Rk A (B Ry )

BT RRAEZWEB AT
i G E )

0] [F) 2 B /B8 A &) YR B A
e REBEEWRA
(B 2 i) )

WEl— K ERER R A
DB IER AR ZE
B8 U A (M 7 (iv))
m—RERMBRAL
NMZERF AT H
(M &EW))

B ZRXHBREIZ—
ZIEBRREZER
A B3 (B = (vii))

WEB—RWBAGZ—
ZIEBRRE 2 ER
B U A (H 7 (ix) )

WE— KRR ZH B A A
Z R B (P EE(xi) )

WAL ANFIREZ
B U A (B R (xii) )

209,318

2,958

6,757

32,666

151,320

109,128

314

4,646

121,123

179,007

16,505

6,236

27,579

341

579

64,860

1,601




37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

37. BWi 5 22 5 (#)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Balances with related parties (b) BLBRE T Z & B
2017 2016
—T—tf —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Specialised construction costs payable to  JEN — R [F R E A 7
a fellow subsidiary (note (i) ZHEERERR
(B ) 69,923 81,553
Contract payable to fellow subsidiaries ENERMBARZE
for real estate development projects HMEZRIEE SN
(note (ii) T8 (B 52 (i) ) 48,856 42,983
Management fee receivable from an W — R & BER A A
intermediate holding company and REGEERARCE
ultimate holding company (note (iv)) B2 (K aEdv) 35,889 27,579
Loan from a fellow subsidiary (note (v)) fEA—KRERKWE R 7
Z B (M 5E(v)) S 223,589
Amounts due to a fellow subsidiary e — KR R E A A
(note (vi)) I (B = (vi) ) 3,310,162 2,124,419
Amounts due to non-controlling FETB B A R IEFE AR AR
shareholders of subsidiaries Bz 778 (B (viii) )
(note (viii)) 68,112 172,600
Amounts due to associates (note (viii)) FE (Bt & N | 2 FRIE
(B 3 (viii) ) 967,788 1,066,438
Loans to a non-controlling shareholder EXHXF—XMEAFZ
of a subsidiary (note (ix)) — B IERRE
(B 3% (ix) ) 3,748,606 2,465,064
Amount due from a non-controlling EW—RWBAF 2 —
shareholder of a subsidiary (note (x)) A IR AR R 2 FRIE
(B 5 (x) ) 125,058 —
Amount due from an associate JE W — S Bt & A Rl 3RIE
(note (x)) (FF7E(x) ) 94,674 88,062
Amounts due from joint ventures Bl & &N B IE
(note (x)) (B 52 (%)) 4,750,871 —
Current deposits placed in a fellow FER —XF R B
subsidiary (note (xi)) Nal 2 EHER
(Bt 3 (xi) ) 2,148,537 1,574,445
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

Balances with related parties (Continued)

Specialised construction costs to a fellow subsidiary of the
Company were based on terms mutually agreed by both parties.

Construction costs to fellow subsidiaries and a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary for real estate development projects
were based on terms mutually agreed by both parties.

Rental and management fee income/expense received or receivable
from/paid or payable to fellow subsidiaries of the Company were
based on the terms in the agreements entered into between the
parties involved. The operating lease commitments with fellow
subsidiaries has been included in Note 35(b) and (c).

Management fee income and receivable from an intermediate
holding company and ultimate holding company were based on
the terms in the agreements entered into between the parties
involved.

The loan from a fellow subsidiary is unsecured, bearing interest at
110% of the benchmark interest rate for a one year loan quoted
by the People’s Bank of China per annum and repayable within
one year.

The amount due to a fellow subsidiary is unsecured, interest free
and repayable on demand.

The short-term loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary was unsecured, bearing interest at 110% of the
benchmark interest rate for a one to three year loan quoted by
the People’s Bank of China per annum and repayable on demand
and was fully settled in 2016.

The amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
and associates are unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

The loans to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary is
unsecured, bearing interest at the benchmark interest rate for a
one-year loan quoted by the People’s Bank of China per annum
and repayable on demand.

The amounts due from a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary, an associate and joint ventures are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

The interest rate of the current deposits placed in a fellow
subsidiary was 0.3% per annum.

The interest rates of the loans to shareholders of joint ventures
were 6.0% to 8.0% per annum.
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37. iYWk 5 22 5 (%)

(b)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

(ix)

(i)

(xii)

S [5R WGk Oy 2 &6 B (4
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BRERATDENRET XA E Z HXK
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HEHEXRBEATRRANERR
AR — KM B R B2 — B FFER AR
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EeERAMBARZKEMERED
A Bt 5535(b) K (c)

FEW A R B — KB R A B K&K
BERARZEREBRATDREARBA
#)73 FRR]SL % A ok 2 IR E -
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(c)

37. BWi 5 22 5 (#)

(CONTINUED)
Key management compensation (c) FEBEHMABZHM
2017 2016
—T—tF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Salaries and short-term employee FeRkEHEERAT

benefits 14,595 12,651

Pension costs — defined contribution RRSKA — B4
plans KEt & 368 318
Share option benefits B IR e T — 197
14,963 13,166
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. FEME A 6 Gk
SUBSIDIARIES
(@) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017: (@ R-ZE—+HF+_-_A=+—8"=
E X NG
Percentage of equity interest
BRAEZF AU
2017 2016
—%-t% ZE-RF
Place of Particulars of issued  Directly held Indirectly Directly  Indirectly held
incorporation/ share capital/paid up by the  held by the held by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company  Principal activity
L/ BEIRA/HRERA HiEd Gk E#H R M
= NGER EEME F#EONEG)  ARFARKE  F2IRKE  FRAKA  AREARE FEER
ERERFHERE Mainland China RMB2,338,120,000 — 51 = 51 Real estate
ARRRA development
(Beijing Wanhu Property
Development Co., Ltd.)
("Beijing Wanhu")
(notes (iii))
ERERFHERE REIR AR #2,338,120,0007 = 51 - 51 RBHERE
BRAR(ERER])
(P £ i) )
Best Pearl Development Hong Kong HK$1,000 = 100 — 100 Property investment
Limited 1,000 shares with
no par value
ERERARDA i 1,000 7 = 100 = 100 #ERE
1,000 EEE
BREEERNME Mainland China RMB778,013,150 — 100 = 100 Real estate
FEERRA development

(Boluo County Bihua
Property Development
Company Limited “Boluo
County Bihua")
(note (iii) & (v))
BREEZZRHERE  tEAYL AR 778,013,150 = 100 - 100 BHEZE
AERAA(BEEZ])
(55 ) Bev))

Bright Circle Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 — 100  Property investment
10,000 shares with
no par value
B ERAH &k 10,0007 70 = 100 - 100 #ERE
10,0008 EH &
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. EEE A Al FEE (M)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017: (@ R-_ZE—+HF+_A=+—8" =
(Continued) DB AREK : (B)
Percentage of equity interest
RA#ERE 5
2017 2016
—%-t% ZE-RE
Place of Particulars of issued  Directly held Indirectly Directly  Indirectly held
incorporation/ share capital/paid up by the  held by the held by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company  Principal activity
L/ BEARE/HRRA EE/ E#H B il &
W& R A2 BRI #EMN))  AAEIRKE  XAFRE  ARARE  ARARE TEER
ER(EREE Mainland China US$6,600,000 - 1Al — 71 Real estate
BRRA development
(Dragon Construction
(Nanjing) Properties Co.,
Ltd.) (note (ii))
ER(ER)EXBRAR  wEAM 6,600,000 ¢ = n - N RBERR
(i 2E(i))
Eastrend (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 — 100 Property investment
Limited 2 shares with
no par value
RE(BR)BERAA Bk 2T = 100 - 100 WERE
YRERE
BLTREREME Mainland China RMB520,000,000 — 100 N/A N/A  Real estate
REERAA development
(Foshan Kuangsheng
Property Development
Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))
BUTREEHERE HREIR AR #520,000,00070 - 100 TEA TR BHEER
AR AR (kD)
Full Pacific Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 — 100  Property investment
2 shares with
no par value
EHEBRAF &k 2T = 100 - 100 #ERE
YRERE
Great Way Properties Hong Kong/Mainland HK$2 = 100 — 100  Property investment
Limited China 2 shares with
no par value
BREXARLA B/ PERY VETURERE = 100 = 100 #iKE
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. FZ W& A vl ak e ()
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(@) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017: (@ R-ZE—+HF+_-_A=+—8"=
(Continued) DB ARIEK : (B)
Percentage of equity interest
BRAEZF AU
2017 2016
—%-t% ZE-RE
Place of Particulars of issued  Directly held Indirectly Directly  Indirectly held
incorporation/ share capital/paid up by the  held by the held by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company  Principal activity

L/ BEIRA/HRERA HiEd Gk i Bk

= NGER EEME F#EONEG)  ARFARKE  F2IRKE  FRAKA  AREARE FEER

ENTRERME Mainland China RMB120,000,000 = 100 N/A N/A  Real estate
REERAA development
(Guangzhou Kuangyue
Property Development
Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))

ENTRERERE  TERM AR %120,000,0007C = 100 il TER BHEER
AR AR (M3HG)

HETREEES Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100 = 100 Real estate
ARRA development
(Hunan Zhongrun
Chengzhen Real Estate
Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))

AT ERAERARARE TEAL AR 110,000,000 = 100 = 100 EHEXE
(P £E(i))

BEMESREMRAT  Mainland China RMB100,000,000 = 100 N/A N/A  Real estate
(Kuangjin Property development
Development Nanjing
Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))

BRWERRARAT  RERM AR 100,000,007 = 100 TER TER BHEER
(P £ (i))

BEMWEERBRAR  Mainland China RMB100,000,000 = 100 N/A N/A  Real estate
(Kuangmei Property development
Development Nanjing
Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))

BEWERRARAT  RERM AR %100,000,0007C = 100 TER TER BHEER

(Hf 3 (i)
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. EEE A Al FEE (M)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017: (@ R-_ZE—+HF+_A=+—8" =
(Continued) DB AREK : (B)
Percentage of equity interest
RA#ERE 5
2017 2016
—%-t% ZE-RE
Place of Particulars of issued  Directly held Indirectly Directly  Indirectly held
incorporation/ share capital/paid up by the  held by the held by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company  Principal activity
A/ BEARE/HRRA EE/ E#H B il &
W& R A2 EEME #EMN))  AAEIRKE  XAFRE  ARARE  ARARE TEER
BHEtEERENE Mainland China US$55,000,000 = 50 — 50 Real estate
HEERAF (Langfang development
Kuangshi Jiye Property
Development Co.,
Ltd. “Kuangshi Jiye")
(notes (iii) & (iv))
BYBREEEARHERE HEAL 55,000,000% 70 = 50 - 50 RMERR
ARAR(EHEX])
(Pt &) B v))
Linkcheer Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 = 100 Property investment
2 shares with
no par value
EFARAE BB 2T = 100 - 100 #ERE
YREEE
Luck Achieve Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss§2 = 100 = 100 Securities Investment
Hong Kong 2 shares of US$1 each
ZEERAA RERRHS/BE BET = 100 = 100 EFHRE
MREREEIET
Massive Leader Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 - 100  Real estate
1 share with development
no par value
ARERAE BB 1%L = 100 = 100 BHEZE
1RERE
Minmetals Condo (Hong Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 = 100  Design and installation
Kong) Engineering 1 share with of curtain walls
Company Limited no par value
LRERM(EE) IR B 17T = 100 - 100 RARZEER
BRRA REEE
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RE M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. & A wl aEAE (4)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(@) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017: (@ R-ZE—+HF+_-_A=+—8"=
(Continued) DB ARIEK : (B)
Percentage of equity interest
BRAEZF AU
2017 2016
—%-t% ZE-RF
Place of Particulars of issued  Directly held Indirectly Directly  Indirectly held
incorporation/ share capital/paid up by the  held by the held by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company  Principal activity
A/ BEARS/BRRA EEl E#H B il &
B LA AR EEME F#EONEG)  ARFARKE  F2IRKE  FRAKA  AREARE FEER
Minmetals Land Capital British Virgin Islands Us$10 100 = 100 — Fund raising
Limited 10 shares of
US$1 each
IBRREABRAR  XBRRHS 10X 100 = 100 — %%
10RERAEIZT
Minmetals Land (China) Hong Kong/Hong HK$2 = 100 — 100 Provision of
Limited Kong and 2 shares with management
Mainland China no par value service
RRER(PE)BERAR FE/BER WETIREEE = 100 = 100 REEBRE
B A
Minmetals Land Investments  British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 = 100 —  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of
US$10 each
Minmetals Land Investments B R Z & E /&b 1,000% T 100 — 100 — REZR
Limited 1008 & REE10% T
AREER(AE)EMBE  Mainland China RMB380,000,000 — 100 = 100 Real estate
EHEREERAA development
(Minmetals Land (Hunan)
Jiahe Risheng Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.
“Jiahe Risheng")
(note (ii))
BER(AR)ENBE FEAL AR 380,000,000 - 100 — 100 RHEEE
EHEREERAA
(T30 B 2 ) (B i)
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. EEE A Al FEE (M)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017: (@ R-_ZE—+HF+_A=+—8" =
(Continued) DB AREK : (B)
Percentage of equity interest
BRAEZT I
2017 2016
—%-t% N3
Place of Particulars of issued  Directly held Indirectly Directly  Indirectly held
incorporation/ share capital/paid up by the  held by the held by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company  Principal activity
A/ BEARA/BRRA EE/ E#H E#H R M

WBRARAMRE EEME #EMN))  AAEIRKE  XAFRE  ARARE  ARARE TEER

nEERE)RE Mainland China RMB280,000,000 — 100 N/A N/A  Real estate
BRRA development
(Minmetals Land
(Wuhan) Development
Co., Ltd.) (note (ii))

R E (5 F) & ER L A #280,000,0007 = 100 il TER FHEER
AR AR (ki)

IREX(ED)ER Mainland China US$100,000,000 — 100 = 100 Real estate
EXERAA development
(Minmetals Land
(Yingkou) Hengfu
Properties Co., Ltd.)

(note (if))

TEER(BN)BEEE +EAM 100,000,000% 7 = 100 — 100 FHEZE
AR AR (ki)

IRMEERERAA Mainland China RMB94,800,000 — 98.88 = 98.88  Real estate
(Minmetals Property development
Development Nanjing
Co., Ltd.) (note (iii)

LEERRERAT HE A AR %94,800,0007 = 98.88 — 9888 FEHEER
(P = i) )

IBEX(RR)ES Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100 = 100 Real estate
HMEERAR development
(Minmetals Real Estate
(Tianjin) Binhaixinqu Co.,

Ltd.) (note (ii))
IREZ(RR)EENR TEMNM AR #10,000,0007 = 100 = 100 BHEZE

AR ()
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. FZ W& A vl ak e ()
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(@) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017: (@ R-ZE—+HF+_-_A=+—8"=
(Continued) DB ARIEK : (B)
Percentage of equity interest
BRAEZF AU
2017 2016
—%-t% ZE-RE
Place of Particulars of issued  Directly held Indirectly Directly  Indirectly held
incorporation/ share capital/paid up by the  held by the held by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company  Principal activity

L/ BEIRA/HRERA HiEd Gk i Bk

= NGER EEME F#EONEG)  ARFARKE  F2IRKE  FRAKA  AREARE FEER

BEME@R)BERAT  Mainland China RMB5,400,000,000 — 100 = 100 Real estate
(Kuangji Properties development
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd.

"Kuangji Properties”)
(note (iii) & (vi)

BEME@RERRAE  RERM AR #5,400,000,0007 = 100 = 100 BRHEXE
(TgeE s 2 1) (W 2
Rvi)

BttwE(ER)ERAR  Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 100 = 100 Real estate
(Kuangshi Properties development
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd.)

(note (ii))

BiwE@RERAE  RERM A #50,000,0007 — 100 = 100 RHEZE
(i £ (i))

NERREHERE Mainland China RMB600,000,000 — 100 = 100  Real estate
ARRA development
(Hunan Kuangdai
Property Development
Co., Ltd) (note (ii))

HRBERFHEREER TENL AR #600,000,0007C = 100 = 100 BHEER
AR (MG

BEMWESRBRAT  Mainland China RMB100,000,000 = 100 = 100 Real estate
(Kuanggi Property development
Development Nanjing
Co., Ltd) (note (ii))

BHWERRARAT  RERM AR 100,000,007 = 100 = 100 RHEXE

(Hi 3 (i)
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. FEMHE A EFEE (4)
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
(@) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017:

(Continued)

R—_E—+F+_A=+—8" =
DB AREK : (B)

(a)

Percentage of equity interest

RA#ERE 5
2017 2016
—%-t% ZE-RE
Place of Particulars of issued  Directly held Indirectly Directly  Indirectly held
incorporation/ share capital/paid up by the  held by the held by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company  Principal activity
L/ BEARE/HRRA EE/ E#H B il &
W& R A2 BRI #EMN))  AAEIRKE  XAFRE  ARARE  ARARE TEER
ONFEM Finance Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 = 100 —  Provision of financing
Hong Kong 1,000 shares of for group
US$1 each companies
ONFEM Finance Limited ABRLHE/EH 1,000% T 100 = 100 — REERARRERE
10008 8 RAEIXT

Oriental Dragon Hong Kong/Hong HK$10,000 = A — 71 Investment holding

Construction Limited Kong and 10,000 shares with
Mainland China no par value

RAERBRAA R/ BERTE 10,0007 70 = 7 = 71 RELR
Rt 10,0008 & E &

AREM(EE)ER Mainland China US$8,500,000 — 100 = 100 Design and installation
BRRRA of curtain walls and
(Minmetals Condo aluminum windows
(Shanghai) Construction
Co., Ltd. (note (ii))

RBRM(LB)ER mER L 8,500,000% 7T = 100 - 100 RethZEBEREE
AR AR (ki)

Texion Development Limited Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 = 100 — 100  Property investment

50,000,000 shares
with no par value

ErLERARAF Bk 50,000,007 70 = 100 - 100 #ERE
50,000,000/ & E &

Top Gain Properties Limited Hong Kong/Mainland HK$2 = 100 — 100 Property investment

China 2 shares with
no par value

HREXFRAF &/ REND bl = 100 = 100 NERE
YRERE
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@) List of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017:
(Continued)

38. FEWE A Bl aF I (4)

(a)

R-_E—+F+_A=+—8" =
DB ARIEK : (B)

Percentage of equity interest

RAEZE I
2017 2016
—¥-tf ZE-RF
Place of Particulars of issued  Directly held Indirectly Directly  Indirectly held
incorporation/ share capital/paid up by the  held by the held by the by the
Name of subsidiary operation capital (note (i) Company Company Company Company  Principal activity
s/ BEARS/BREA E#dH H#H E#H fél &
B LA AR BRI F#EONEG) A2FAKE  F2IKT  ARARE  ARARE FEER
Virtyre Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 = 100  Property investment
2 shares with
no par value
Virtyre Limited B 2T - 100 = 100 MERE
YRERE
REBERMEREER  Mainland China RMB350,000,000 - 100 N/A N/A  Real estate
NG| development
(Wuhan Runling Property
Development Co., Ltd.)
(note (i)
HERERHERLEER HEAL AR #350,000,0007C = 100 TE TER RBHEXR
) (Bt (i)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

(i) The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. None
of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

(ii) These are foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China with operating periods ranging from 15 years to 40 years.

(iii) These are sino-foreign equity joint ventures established in Mainland
China with operating periods ranging from 20 years to 30 years.

(iv) Although the Group owns 50% equity interest in Kuangshi Jiye,
it has control over Kuangshi Jiye by holding 60% of the voting
power over the board of directors of Kuangshi lJiye, which require
simple majority votes of the directors on making decision on
relevant activities.

(v) The acquisition of the 20% equity interest in Boluo County Bihua
by the Group, as announced on 27 May 2016, has completed in
July 2016. Upon the completion, Boluo County Bihua became a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

(vi) The acquisition of the 33.33% equity interest in Kuangji Properties
by the Group, as announced on 6 December 2016, has
completed in December 2016. Upon the completion, Kuangji
Properties became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

38.

that have material non-controlling interests
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material

controlling interests:

Place of

incorporation and
principal place of

non-

Proportion of equity
interest held by

F R E 2 B A (8D

(b) A IE ¥ 4 2 04k &
% W& 2 W Z W
TREIAEHEABEAFTHIE
mZFREWNBRRZFE:

Profit allocated to Accumulated

Name of subsidiary business non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
AL R FIEHRRFE EEAEE 4
AR TEERME RAEZE R REZiH Rt EERER

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016

S¥-t§ “F-A% ZE-tF CF-AF SB-tE C3AF

HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

TiERT TEL TiERT T

Boluo County Bihua (Note 38(a)(v)) ~ Mainland China = — = (1,863) = —
&2 (M:E38(a)(v)) B R

Kuangshi Jiye Mainland China 50% 50% 141,222 69,677 426,404 261,689
R E O A

Beijing Wanhu Mainland China 49% 49% 592,069 341,781 2,377,500 1,648,305
TREM O A

Kuangji Properties (Note 38(a)(vi)) ~ Mainland China
T 3 2 (238 (a)vi)) MBI A

Individually immaterial subsidiaries with
non-controlling interests

ARFEREGNEMNEER
MERR

Summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup

eliminations.

- 72,445 - =

1,293 3,081 52,054 57,754

734,584 485,121 2,855,958 1,967,748

BRASERAFE A EH#ER
ZHBABZMBEMBZHI M
T-ATHBERBERTIEER
BIHAZ S8 -
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. B HE 2 vl wE A (A)

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) HA K Ik 5 i HE 48 B Ik &
that have material non-controlling interests B BB o ml 2 WE N (D
(Continued)

Kuangshi Jiye W 7 F
2017 2016
—F-t# —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ERT TR
Current assets B & E 1,435,708 1,878,885
Non-current assets EREBEE 31,223 19,822
Current liabilities mE A A 614,124 1,375,330
Total equity T A EE 852,807 523,377
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

(b)

38. FEWE A Bl aF I (4)

(b) A JE ¥ 0 2 0 Jk &
% W& 2 W 2 o A (8D

(Continued)
Kuangshi Jiye (Continued) W 2 5% (4)
2017 2016
—F—-tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Revenue PN 1,521,509 908,088
Expenses B X (1,239,065) (768,733)
Profit for the year NGl 282,444 139,355
Other comprehensive income/(expense) A4 & H fth 2 mE U 25,

for the year (R %) 46,986 (32,344)
Total comprehensive income for the REE2AWERE

year 329,430 107,011
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from FEEHELRS

operating activities ORE) /A FHE (484,237) 287,377
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing HR&EEEHELIR &

activities WA O ) R 58 374,090 (681,350)
Net cash outflow from financing BERBSELRES D

activities F R (106,025) —
Net cash outflow BEmHFHE (216,172) (393,973)
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. FEWE 2wl wf (50

SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) HA K Ik 5 i HE 48 B Ik &
that have material non-controlling interests B BB o ml 2 WE N (D
(Continued)

Beijing Wanhu AL 5% 4
2017 2016
—E-t#F —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#ET TETT
Current assets B & E 9,845,760 9,630,027
Non-current assets EREBEE 602,602 220,942
Current liabilities mER A 5,596,320 6,487,080
Total equity T A EE 4,852,042 3,363,889
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

38. FEWE A Bl aF I (4)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) H A K JE 45 e 4 i Ik 4
that have material non-controlling interests B BB o ml 2 wE N (D
(Continued)

Beijing Wanhu (Continued) AL 5% 4 i ()
2017 2016
—T—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FAT
Revenue WA 4,657,579 2,719,384
Expenses -2 (3,449,275) (2,021,872)
Profit for the year AN E A 1,208,304 697,512
Other comprehensive income/(expense) A4 & H fth 2 mE U 25,
for the year (B =) 279,850 (225,380)
Total comprehensive income for the REE2AWERE
year 1,488,154 472,132
Dividends paid to non-controlling B AT JE R B FEE AR
interests of Beijing Wanhu m 2 IR B = 258,653
Net cash inflow from operating LERHEERSTA
activities FRR 2,069,064 3,286,168
Net cash outflow from investing KRERHEERSRT
activities == (1,986,927) (3,009,602)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from MEGTHELERS
financing activities (RH) /mAFERE (495,784) 153,439
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Re (i) / mAFEE (413,647) 430,005

ARMESRAT —T—+taEE® | 275



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE IR AR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZE-T—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39. A ] Z BB IR O I Bk e i R
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) AW Z M BRI E
Company
2017 2016
—T-tx —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
F#&T FET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z&®E 880,677 918,164
Current assets MEBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A N ENE R 15,808,341 14,982,219
Other receivables H e W 5K IE 5,821 32,917
Cash and bank deposits, unrestricted PR HIRE RIRT
F% 150,815 383,957
15,964,977 15,399,093
Total assets BEEHE 16,845,654 16,317,257
EQUITY B
Share capital fi% 25 334,503 334,444
Reserves 1 4,803,535 4,914,373
Total Equity W 5,138,038 5,248,817
LIABILITIES BfE
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE £~ B B A B FR IR 11,641,226 11,019,887
Accruals and other payables J& 5T 3R I8 Ko E fth & A
I 66,390 48,553
Total liabilities BfEEE 11,707,616 11,068,440
Total equity and liabilities EExRaEen 16,845,654 16,317,257
Net current assets REBEEFEE 4,257,361 4,330,653
Total assets less current liabilities BEUERRDER 5,138,038 5,248,817
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 39. A A ] Z BB IR D0 I Bk e iR R

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (%)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Statement of reserves of the Company (b) AR W Z Gl i ek
Employee
Capital share-based
Share  Contributed  redemption  compensation Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve earnings Total
ESki
Bt it (8 ENERN A4HORE BERWHERE RERF C 1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE T T T FET FET FE T
(note 26(a))

(M EE26(a))

Balance at RZZ—RF

1 January 2016 —R—Bz&% 4269948 491,773 769 37,534 268,891 5,068,915
Issue of shares Biif 56 = = — = 56
Reversal of employee B B

share option benefits & F| & [E — = — (2,050) = (2,050)
2015 final dividend YR-ZE-REX

paid ke - — = = (66,886) (66,886)
Loss for the year FRER — — - - (85,662) (85,662)
Balance at 31 December M=E—14

2016 +=A=+-H

P 4,270,004 491,773 769 35,484 116,343 4,914,373

Issue of shares L) 206 = = — — 206
Reclassification of EEBERERT

employee share BNAE

option benefits 3,673 — — (34,301) 30,628 =
2016 final dividend INZE-RER

paid ik E — — — - (133,777) (133,777)
Profit for the year EREF — — — — 22,733 22,733
Balance at 31 December R-ZE—+%F

2017 +-RA=+—H

ZEH 4,273,883 491,773 769 1,183 35,927 4,803,535
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PROJECTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT OF CHINA MINMETALS

w8 . B 5 R JEH H

Province/City Attributable land area

#/h FE1E T 5
(sq.m.) (FF 73 K)

Beijing 346,000

it=

Yingkou City, 30,000,000

Liaoning Province

BEXEOS 216,000

Shenyang City and 187,000

Jinzhou City,

Liaoning Province

BELEGTREME

Tianjin 1,965,000

xZ

Changsha City, Xiangtan City and 811,300

Zhuzhou City, Hunan Province

MEERDH  HEHREME 23,100

Shantou City, Guangdong Province 140,000

BEREIMES

Xining City, Qinghai Province 185,300

EFBEEES

Taian City, Shandong Province 223,600

LWERERRT

Founded in 1950, China Minmetals is one of the largest State-owned

conglomerates that operates globally with core business in exploration, mining,
smelting, processing and trading for metals and minerals, finance, real estate, and
mining and metallurgic technology. China Minmetals achieved the total revenue of
approximately RMB500.0 billion for 2017 and was ranked 120 among the US
Fortune world top 500 enterprises in 2017.

China Minmetals has, in recent years, actively participated in commercial estate
development, construction and installation business after it has a footing on the
residential development and industrial estate business. Accordingly, it has
equipped with considerable resources in this respect. Excluding real estate
development projects of Minmetals Land, China Minmetals has a total gross floor
area of approximately 5.24 million square metres for residential and industrial
estate development in the Pan Bohai Rim region and the eastern and central part
of China. Furthermore, it has an industrial site of 30 square kilometres in Yingkou
City of Liaoning Province.

China Minmetals through its Hong Kong subsidiary, Minmetals HK, holds
approximately 61.91% equity interest in Minmetals Land. Upon the approval of
inclusion of property development and operation to the core business of China
Minmetals by the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of the State Council, China Minmetals announced its intention to transform
Minmetals Land into its sole listed real estate flagship. Through gradual asset
injection and consolidation of its real estate resources, China Minmetals aims at
the listing of its real estate business and turning Minmetals Land eventually into a
leading real estate development corporation which creates better returns to its
Shareholders, employees and the society.

Total gross floor area

OB EEE
(sq.m.) (FF 77 K)
223,000 Residential
=
N/A Industrial and Commercial
TER IT2km%
209,000 Residential
F=E
429,000 Residential
F=£
2,518,000 Residential
F=E
834,000 Residential
=
16,400 Commercial
[EES
410,000 Complex
maRE
315,000 Residential
F=£
282,000 Residential
F=

PEABRI950FEK YT - RASBRE DOE - K -
BRI -EBS UEked FBHE BARKAE
¥ BOUERRLEEENREBRBLEER--2017F - F
HE AT RGBS 000B T AR (15X E)
5520171 SR500%8 1 2 5512017 ©

MER PEARBAEERAEMTEMERER HE
SEBEMENEZERKER RATEENERER
Hep A RBEERD SR FRIE K EBLEHE
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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following

meanings:

EREHRAN  BRXESEEN

“2003 Share Option Scheme”
[T =FBRR B

“2013 Share Option Scheme”
—E-=FBRERE

“23rd Metallurgical”

[RE=+=)4]

"AGM"
RRBFAE]

“Album Enterprises”

[ZAEE]

" ASP"
[FHEE]

“Beijing Vanke”
[HERE&E R

“Beijing Wanhu”
[t =&

“Board”

B¢

“Brightway Asset”
[FRE & E |

“Bye-laws”
[RRRIER]

"CG Code”
[ERE AT A

“Changsha Minmetals Grace Home”

(=2 HEYE]

“China” or "PRC”
[ B

THAEAERATES

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 29 May 2003
AARN_EEZFRA -+t NBERANZERESE

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 7 June 2013

ARAR T =< AL B R 2 BREHE

The 23rd Metallurgical Contruction Group Co., Ltd. of Minmetals
EH -+ ARREEERAR

annual general meeting of the Company for 2018

ARR —E-\FERRBFKRE

Album Enterprises Limited
EHRPEARAA

average selling price

FHEE

Beijing Vanke Co., Ltd.
EREREEER QA

Beijing Wanhu Property Development Co., Ltd.
kR ENEMERZEERQA

the board of directors of the Company

ARARZEFE

Brightway Asset Management Limited
PREEEEBABERAQA

the Bye-laws of the Company
PN Do 3

the Corporate Governance Code
EERERATERTE

Changsha Minmetals Grace Home Property Management Co., Ltd.
AT BHEMEERARLQA

the People’s Republic of China
hEANREME
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“China Minmetals”

[ B A

"CMCL"

[ A A A7

“CMN"
(AEA 2T BRN

"CMNH"
(AR BITR]

“Company” or “Minmetals Land”

YNGR R $: 8-

“Condo Hong Kong”
[ 36 F & 7

“Condo Macau”
[T A58 PT

"Condo Shanghai”
[ A1 E78 ]

“Director(s)”

[E=]

“Fifth Plaza Co”
[ERES A

"GFA”
[ 48 12 H [ 75 |

"Group”
[AREE]

“Hanten”
[18 B

”HK$"
&)

China Minmetals Corporation
TEAREEAGRAA

China Minmetals Corporation Limited

TEAEERDARA A

China Minmetals Non-Ferrous Metals Company Limited

ITEAEETEBRNERQA

China Minmetals Non-Ferrous Holding Company Limited

TEEETBERERA A

Minmetals Land Limited

AEMESR QA

Minmetals Condo (Hong Kong) Engineering Company Limited
RN (EE) TIEARQA

Minmetals Condo (Macau) Engineering Company Limited

HEERMORF) TRBER QA

Minmetals Condo (Shanghai) Construction Co., Ltd.
AEREM(EE) ZRERAF

director(s) of the Company

ARBIZES

Beijing Fifth Plaza Real Estate Co., Ltd.
IRERESBEXARLDA

gross floor area
EIEEERE

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARE R EWNE R A

Hanten Investment Limited
BEIREBRA A

Hong Kong dollars
BT
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“Hong Kong” or "HKSAR” The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

(&% TEFEFHNITHR

"Huizhou Minmetals Grace Home"” Huizhou Minmetals Grace Home Property Management Co., Ltd.

(BN AN E] BENABUHEMEEREERAA

“Jiahe Risheng” Minmetals Land (Hunan) Jiahe Risheng Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.

[ A0 A A% | hEREZCHIE) EMEREHEREEGR A A

“Jiasheng Properties” Hunan Jiasheng Properties Service Co., Ltd.

2227k MERBEMERBERAR]

“June Glory” June Glory International Limited

[ June Glory | June Glory International Limited

“Kuangshi Jiye” Langfang Kuangshi Jiye Property Development Co., Ltd.

[t B % | Byt EXEEREARA G

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

[ £ Al EEBMERIMBRRAES EHAA

“Minmetals Capital” Minmetals Capital (Hong Kong) Limited

[AEE A TRERN(BB)BERAQTA

“Minmetals Cheerglory” Minmetals Cheerglory Limited

[HHER K] HEERBERLDA

“Minmetals Finance” Minmetals Finance Co., Ltd.

[ %% B 7% IREEVBERET AR

“Minmetals HK” China Minmetals H.K. (Holdings) Limited

(&8 D] TEOBEREEERBRAF

“Minmetals Land Beijing” Minmetals Land Investment Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

[F &R R IEERREEEULR)BRAA

“Minmetals Land Holdings” Minmetals Land Holdings Co., Ltd.

[ T 0 b, 7 22 AR HEMmEZERBR QA

“Minmetals Real Estate” Minmetals Real Estate Co., Ltd.

[(REE %] IREXBERAQA
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“Minmetals Zhidi"”
[ B 25 4

“MLI"
[ MLI ]

“MLIML"
[AfREREE]

“Model Code”
[ < B

“Nanjing Minmetals Grace Home"

(R AmRRE]

“"NAV per Share”
[ EEFE]

“OFL"
[ OFL |

“RMB”
PN

“SFO"
(787 R EE 1R A )

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% 3]

“Share(s)"”
[ A% 15 |

“sgq.m.”

[ 755k

“Stock Exchange”
[ gk 32 PR

“Texion”
[T ]

Minmetals Zhidi Corporate Management Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
hESHAXEEZRACRID BERAA

Minmetals Land Investments Limited
Minmetals Land Investments Limited

Minmetals Land Investment Management Limited

IBEERREEEERQA

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

EHETAZEFETES R HFEESTH

Nanjing Minmetals Grace Home Property Management Co., Ltd.

EREABEUENEREEBRAA

net asset value per Share

BREEFE

ONFEM Finance Limited
ONFEM Finance Limited

Renminbi

AR

Securities and Futures Ordinance

& 7 K HIE R B

the shareholder(s) of the Company

ARAZBER

the ordinary share(s) of par value HK$0.1 each of the Company
RAFIERAEMBENE T2 EBR

square metres

F 5K

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

EEMARXIABERAA

Texion Development Limited

T ERER AT

TEBEAR QA
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“Tianjin Minmetals Grace Home" Tianjin Minmetals Grace Home Property Management Co., Ltd.
[RFERBEYE] RELBUEVEEERERLQA

"US$” United States dollars

= ETT

“Yingkou Industrial Park” Minmetals (Yingkou) Industrial Park Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.
[EOEXE] IR(ZOD)EXEERARAA

"Yingkou Minmetals Grace Home” Yingkou Minmetals Grace Home Property Management Co., Ltd.
[0 R E] EORBAEEMEERARAA

“Zhongrun Chengzhen” Hunan Zhongrun Chengzhen Real Estate Co., Ltd.

[ Fh 50 A MEPERBEERERRRAA

“%" per cent

[ % | Bt
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ML MINMETALS LAND LIMITED

BAENERDBERBER T RPBEREAE T/ &
18th Floor, China Minmetals Tower, 79 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

B 5 Tel: 2613 6363

{EH Fax: 25819823

B H Email : info@minmetalsland.com

#BHE Website : www.minmetalsland.com
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